2020-2021 FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans
180 New-Camellia Boulevard, Suite 100
" S Covington; Leuisiana—704334480 L.A-22, Suite 2
Mandeville, Louisiana 70471

COFFEE Telephone: (985) 792-5776

of new orleans Facsimile: (985) 792-1201
E-mail: franchise@pjscoffee.com

As a franchisee you will operate a retail business under the name PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans featuring
gourmet coffees and teas, blended coffee and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet
desserts sandw1ches and salads and other food products and beverages author1zed by Franchrsor }rkeertarn

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Traditional Model PJ’s Unit ranges from $200,775
- $582584,000. This includes $35,000 that must be paid to the Franchisor or its affiliate.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Non-traditional Model PJ’s Unit ranges from
$190,775 - $394393,000. This includes $25,000 that must be paid to the Franchisor or its affiliate.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Special Contracts Traditional Model PJ’s Unit ranges
from $175,775 - $562564,000. This includes $10,000 - $15,000 that must be paid to the Franchisor or its
affiliate.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Special Contracts Non-traditional Model PJ’s Unit
ranges from $173,275 - $376378,000. This includes $10,000 - $15,000 that must be paid to the Franchisor
or its affiliate.

We also offer multi-unit franchises under a Multiple-Unit Option Agreement (the “MUOA”), where you
agree to open a certain number of PJ’s Units according to an agreed upon development schedule. The total
investment necessary to begin operation of a PJ’s Unit under a MUOA ranges from $200,775 - $582584,000
for the first PJ’s Unit. The total investment necessary to begin operation of each PJ’s Unit numbered two
or greater is $175,775 - $557559,000. These total investment estimates include the initial franchise fee of
$35,000, as well as the reduced franchise fee of $10,000 for each PJ’s Unit numbered two or greater.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of Franchisee’s franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
Franchisee must receive this Disclosure Document at least fourteen (14) calendar days before Franchisee
signs a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the Franchisor or an affiliate in connection with
the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information
contained in this document.

You may wish to receive the Franchise Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of d1sclosures in dlfferent fonnats contact the Vice Pres1dent of Franchise
Development Direeter-at 180-Ne e : e Rgton §
22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Lou1s1ana 70471 and (985) 792 5776
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The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise”, which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance date: April +89, 26202021 as amended April 21, 2021. (The issuance date is not the effective date
for registration states.)
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about
outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You
should also try to obtain this information
from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or
Exhibit J.

How much will I need to invest?

Items S and 6 list fees you will be paying
to the franchisor or at the franchisor’s
direction. Item 7 lists the initial
investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or Exhibit F includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing,
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of
the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only PJ’s Coffee
of New Orleans business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in
the franchise agreement describe
whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled legal
history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a PJ’s Coffee of New
Orleans franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit J lists current and
former franchisees. You can contact
them to ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things
you should look for. Review all 23 Items
and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this
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franchise opportunity. See the table of
contents.

What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit M.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to
your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation
only in Louisiana. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you
to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to
mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Louisiana than in your own
state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

The Franchisor.
To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “we”, “us”, “our”, “PJ’s” or “Franchisor” means
New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans. “You” or “Franchisee” means the person
who buys the franchise, including a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other legal
business entity.

New Orleans Brew, L.LC. is a Louisiana limited liability company organized on January 23, 2008. Our
corporate address is 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180-New-Camelia Boulevard;-Suite
100, Covington; A, and our telephone number is (985) 792-5776. Franchisor does business under the name
“PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans”. Our agents for service of process are disclosed on Exhibit E to this
Disclosure Document.

PJ’s USA, Inc. began offering franchises in 1989. On June 17, 2008, our company, New Orleans Brew,
L.L.C.,, and our affiliate, New Orleans Roast, L.L.C. (collectively ‘“Purchaser”), completed an asset
purchase agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc. (collectively and interchangeably referred
to as “Seller” and/or “Predecessor”), for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s franchise system and
coffee roasting business (the “Transaction”). As of the date of this disclosure document, there are 94120
PJ’s franchised units in operation.

New Orleans Brew, LLC began offering unit franchises in July 2008. As of April 109, 20202021 as
amended April 21, 2021, Franchisor does not own or operate any PJ’s Coffee franchises. An affiliate of
Franchisor owns and operates 10 PJ’s Coffee franchises.

New Orleans Brew, LLC is also an affiliate of WOW Café & Wingery Franchising Account, L.L.C. that
offers the WOW American Eats restaurant franchise.

Our Parent, Predecessors and Affiliates.

Franchisor has no parent.

New Orleans Roast, L.L.C. is an affiliate company that will roast and distribute coffee beans, and coffee
related products to all PJ’s Coffee franchises and other retail businesses. New Orleans Roast, L.L.C. sells
to PJ’s franchisees some of the “Proprietary Products” that are prepared according to specified recipes,
standards and procedures, including our proprietary coffee beans that are branded, trademarked, produced
and/or packaged exclusively for franchisees (the “PJ’s Products”). New Orleans Roast, L.L.C. does have
the same address as New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. but will not offer or sell any franchises in this or any other
line of business.

Franchisor has one affiliate through common ownership that offers the following franchise:

WOW Café & Wingery Franchising Account, L.L.C., is a Louisiana limited liability company, with its
principal place of business at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471 180 New—Camellia
Beulevard,Suite 100,-Covington; Louistana;70433—(“WOW?”). Paul Ballard, Steven Ballard and John
“Scott” Ballard are all co-owners of this company. WOW offers the opportunity to own franchise units or
area developer franchises under the name WOW American Eats. WOW American Eats offers franchises
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whose primary business is a restaurant system that allows its customers to enjoy quality food, such as wings,
wraps, sandwiches, salads, burgers, drinks and other general food products. As of the date of this disclosure
document, there are 53-49 franchised outlets in operation. WOW American Eats has not offered franchises
for any other line of business. WOW American Eats has not operated any other type of business.

WOW American Eats offers franchises using its own Franchise Disclosure Document. Franchisee may face
competition from the above concept because this concept may be established in close proximity to your

Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. This affiliate has total discretion where to permit their franchisees to operate.

Except as described above, Franchisor has no parents, predecessors or affiliates required to be included in
this Item.

The Franchise Offered.

Franchisor offers Franchisee a franchise whose primary business is the sale of gourmet coffees and teas,
blended coffee and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet desserts, and other food products
and beverages under the name and service mark “PJ’s”. The type of business that Franchisee will operate
will be referred to in this Franchise Disclosure Document as a “PJ’s Unit”. Franchisor has developed its
unique system (“System”) which allows its customers to enjoy gourmet coffees and teas, blended coffee
and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet desserts, other beverages, and a food program
to satisfy multiple-day parts which are reasonably priced and served within a short period of time.

Franchisor developed and owns a System which Franchisee will utilize in Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. The
franchise agreement is attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit A. This System includes
specialized training, methods of operation, uniform standards, distinctive décor and design, and advertising
and promotional programs to assist Franchisee in operating Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Franchisor will also
provide Franchisee with certain confidential recipes and formulas, supplier lists, operations and training
manuals, and other confidential information and methods for managing Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. The PJ’s
Unit is identified by certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia or origin,
such as “PJ’s”, “PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans” and “PJ’s Coffee & Tea” (“Proprietary Marks”).

There are four types of PJ’s Units offered by Franchisor. A Traditional Model or a Special Contracts
Traditional Model which generally occupies approximately ;600550 to 1,850 square feet of space. A
Traditional Model or Special Contracts Traditional Model PJ’s Unit may be located in either a freestanding
building or an in-line retail plaza space with ample parking, drive-thru facilities, good visibility, and visible
signage. A Traditional Model or Special Contracts Traditional Model will employ approximately 10 to 16
people. A Non-traditional Model or a Special Contracts Non-traditional Model generally occupies 250 to
1,000 square feet of space possibly with a common eating area and/or common kitchen (i.e. airports,
shopping malls, sports arenas, hotels, university campuses, health care facilities, government & military
facilities). The space may be either owned by Franchisee or leased from a third party. A Non-traditional
Model or a Special Contracts Non-traditional Model will also employ approximately 10 to 16 people. All
PJ’s Units are constructed to our specifications.

A “Special Contract” is generally held by a foodservice and/or hospitality manager like Sodexo Group,
Delaware North, Compass Group, or Aramark, that are responsible for managing food portfolios for places
such as hospitals, universities, school districts, stadiums, airports, and government facilities.
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We also offer multi-unit franchises under a Multiple-Unit Option Agreement (the “MUOA”), a copy of
which is attached as Exhibit N. If you sign a MUOA, you agree to open a certain number of PJ’s Units
according to an agreed upon development schedule. Failure to meet the deadline imposed may result in the
forfeiture of your rights to develop additional PJ’s Units. You will sign a separate franchise agreement for
each PJ’s Unit you develop; future franchise agreements may be different from the franchise agreement in
this offering. The minimum number of PJ’s Units for an MUOA is two. Under the MUOA, the initial
franchise fee is $35,000, but subsequent PJ’s Units receive a reduced franchise fee. The fee for each PJ’s
Unit numbered two or greater is $10,000.

We offer existing franchisees, who are compliant and in good standing, the rights to acquire additional
franchise licenses. Single unit franchisees may acquire an additional license for $25.000. Multi-unit
franchisees may acquire an additional license for $15,000. A multi-unit franchisee is defined as a franchisee
who has been granted the option to establish and operate multiple PJ’s Units.

Franchisee will operate a PJ’s Unit as an independent business utilizing Franchisor’s business format,
procedures, designs, trade dress, standards, specifications, and methods of operation. Franchisee must use
the PJ’s System at Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, which includes, without limitation, the common use and
promotion of the name “PJ’s” and other service marks, trademarks, trade names, logos, emblems, signs,
slogans, insignia and other commercial symbols Franchisor may designate from time to time (collectively,
the “Marks”). Franchisee must also use Franchisor’s distinctive food products, recipes, quality standards,
procedures, training manuals, advertising & promotional programs, and ongoing assistance. Franchisor may
from time to time add or delete products and/or services and change specifications, standards, procedures,
and methods of operation and Franchisee will be expected to follow suit. Franchisee will offer and provide
products and services to the general public, at all times comply with the Franchise Agreement and our
confidential operations manual (the “Manual”) that will be loaned to Franchisee at the time of training.
Franchisee may only offer services and products with our prior approval.

Market and Competition.

The market for the products sold in a PJ’s Unit is to the general public. The market may be affected by
general economic conditions. The specialty coffee market is highly competitive. Franchisee will be
competing with other businesses, both national and local, offering similar items. National and local
specialty coffee businesses may also develop similar menu items; national and local supermarkets and other
retailers may carry some of the same or similar products. If Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit is located in a strip center
or local or regional shopping mall, Franchisee will typically have to compete with businesses offering
competitive goods or services within the same center or mall.

Franchisee should investigate all general laws in evaluating the franchise. It is Franchisee’s sole
responsibility to obtain and keep all necessary permits required by public authorities.

Government Regulation.

Local, state, and federal laws and regulations will apply to the business operations of Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit. Food service, health and sanitation laws and regulations will also directly apply to the preparation of
Franchisee’s food and handling of other food related products. In addition, Franchisee must comply with
all local, state, and federal laws that apply to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit including health, sanitation, non-
smoking, and EEOC, OSHA, discrimination, employment, and sexual harassment laws. The Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 requires readily accessible accommodations for disabled people, and,
therefore, may affect Franchisee’s building construction, entrance ramps, doors, seating, bathroom, and

New Orleans Brew, LLC 9
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/26262021 - Amended 4/21/2021




parking. Franchisee must obtain building permits, other licenses, and operational permits and certifications.
Franchisee should consult with Franchisee’s attorney concerning these and other local laws and ordinances
that may affect Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

Franchisee Referral Program.

We have a program (the “Franchisee Referral Program”) that provides existing PJ’s Franchisees the
opportunity to earn an incentive for each new qualified candidate they refer to us, who meet our criteria for
approval as a PJ’s Franchisee, and who sign a Franchise Agreement and pay the applicable Initial Franchise
Fee. The incentive for Franchisees is $5,000. The incentive applies only to the first PJ’s Unit of the referred
franchisee. All existing PJ’s Franchisees, who are in good standing, are eligible to participate in the
Franchisee Referral Program. Only one PJ’s Franchisee may receive the $5,000 referral incentive for each
qualified candidate. This program is not intended to supplement or amend the Franchise Agreement or any
other agreement and does not create any additional rights for a PJ’s Franchisee or any third party.

We can change or eliminate this program at any time without notice. Franchisees are not our sales agents
and are not authorized by us to qualify PJ’s franchise candidates or to make statements on our behalf relating
to the financial performance to prospects for success in operating the PJ’s Unit. PJ’s Franchisees are merely
referring/introducing candidates to us, and we retain sole discretion and responsibility for the new franchise
qualification and evaluation process.

Veteran Discount Program.

PJ’s Coffee participates the International Franchise Associations VetFran program and offers a twenty
percent (20%) discount on the Initial Franchise Fee to eligible PJ’s Franchisees. To be eligible for the
Veteran Discount Program, you must be an active member or an honorably discharged veteran from the
United States Armed Forces. If the franchisee is a business entity, an active member or an honorably
discharged veteran from the United States Armed Forces must hold in excess of fifteen percent (15%) of

the total Votmg power of the busmess entrtV s ownershrp mterest W&ha&t%a—pregram—&h%\leteraﬂ

FraﬁehrseLFeeLActrve members of the Umted States Armed F orces must provide us with valid mrhtarv

credentials and honorably discharged veteransVeterans must provide us with a valid DD214 form to qualify
for the discount. We can change or eliminate this program at any time without notice.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Board of Directors/Principal: John “Scott” Ballard

From June 2008 to present, John “Scott” Ballard has been a Principal and Member of the Board of Directors
for New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480 LA 22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471480 New—Camelia

& b 9

Board of Directors/Principal: Paul Ballard

From June 2008 to present, Paul Ballard has been a Principal and Member of the Board of Directors for
New Orleans Brew LLC at 4480 LA 22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 704711860 New—Camelia

& b 9
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Board of Directors/Principal: Steven Ballard

From June 2008 to present, Steven Ballard has been a Principal and Member of the Board of Directors for
New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New—Camellia

& b 9

President: Peter Boylan, III

In October 2011, Peter Boylan III Jo1ned New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480 LA 22, Suite 2, Mandeville,
Louisiana 70471 +¢ 3 ¢ ana-as the Executive Vice
President and Chief Development Ofﬁcer In June 2016, Mr. Boylan was promoted to President of New
Orleans Brew, LLC, a position that he currently holds.

Chief Financial Officer: Jeffery Giavotella

Since April 2010, Jeffery Giavotella has served as Chief Financial Officer of New Orleans Brew, LLC at

4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-Camellia Boulevard;-Suite 100,-Covington;
Louistana.

Chief Operating Officer: William J. DiPaola, CFE

From June 2014 to July 2018, William “Bill” DiPaola served as President and Chief Operating Office of

Dat Dogs Enterprises at 3336 Magazine Street, New Orleans, Louisiana. In July 2018, Mr. DiPaola became

the Chief Operatrng Ofﬁcer at New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana
» : aBouleva 4 ; : gistana, a position he currently holds.

Executive Vice President & Chief Development Officer: David Mesa, Jr., CFE

From 2003 until June 2016, David Mesa, Jr. was an executive with Planet Beach Franchising Corporation
at 5161 Taravella Road, Marrero LA, serving as their President of Franchise Operations. Since June 2016,
Mr. Mesa has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Development Officer of New Orleans Brew,
LLC at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New—CamelliaBoulevard,—Suite—100;

Ceovington, Leouisiana.

Executive Vice President/Chief Marketing Officer: Leslie Monson

From 2010 to 2018, Leslie Monson served as a Marketing Leader for Churchill Downs Incorporated and
the Fair Grounds Racecourse & Slots, and OTB & Casinos at 1751 Gentilly Boulevard, New Orleans,
Louisiana. In 2018, Ms. Monson was hired as the Executive Vice President/Chief Marketing Officer by
New Orleans Brew, LLC, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471380 NewCameHiaBoulevard;

Suite 100-Ceovington, Louisiana.

Chief Roastmaster: Felton M. Jones, 111

Since 2003, Felton Jones III has served as Chief Roastmaster and Coffee Buyer for New Orleans Brew,
LLC at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New—CamelliaBoulevard,—Suite—100;

Ceovington, Leouisiana.
VicePresid F National Sates: Mare Hubbl
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Vice-President of Operations: Patrick Shaheen, CFE

Since 2008, Patrick Shaheen has served as Vice President of Operations for New Orleans Brew, LLC at

4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471 180-New-Camellia Boulevard,Suite 100,-Covington;
Leuistana;-a position he currently holds.

Vice-President of Franchise Development: Ryan J. Stansbury, CFE

In May 2010, Ryan Stansbury joined New Orleans Brew, LLC as the Franchise Development Director at

4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-Camellia Boulevard;-Suite 100,-Covington;
Leuistana. In April of 2019, Mr. Stansbury was promoted to Vice-President of Franchise Development.

Vice President of Brand Strategy: Reid Nolte

From 2008 to 2018, Reid Nolte has served as the Marketing Director of New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480

LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 704714860 New—CameliaBeoulevard,—Suite 100, Covington;
Eeuisiana. In November 2018, Mr. Nolte was promoted to the Vice President of Brand Strategy, a position

he currently holds.

Director of Location Development-Manager: Mark Verges

From October 2009 to September 2017, Mark Verges served as the Franchise Development Director for
CC’s Coffee Concepts at 9131 Amber Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana. Sinee-From October 2017 to
presentDecember 2020, Mr. Verges has-served as the Location Development Manager of New Orleans
Brew, LLC at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-Camelia Boulevard, Suite 100;
Ceovingten;Louistana._In December 2020, Mr. Verges was promoted to Director of Location Development,
a position he currently holds.

Franchise Development Manager: Victoria Bermond, CFE

From January 2015 to April 2018, Victoria Bermond served as the Marketing Assistant for LSU Sports
Properties. From April 2018 to December 2020, Ms. Bermond served as Franchise Development
Coordinator of New Orleans Brew, LLC at 4480 LA-22. Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471. In January
2021, Ms. Bermond was promoted to Franchise Development Manager, a position she currently holds.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
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ITEM 4

BANKRUPTCY

| Other-thanthe-abeve;noNo bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Franchise Fee. The initial franchise fee can range from $10,000 to $35,000 depending on the type of model
chosen. The initial franchise fee is payable when Franchisee signs the Franchise Agreement. The initial
franchise fee is fully earned and non-refundable when paid, in consideration of the administrative and other
expenses incurred by Franchisor entering into the Franchise Agreement, and for Franchisor’s lost or
deferred opportunity to enter into the Franchise Agreement with others. The initial franchise fee is based
on the type of model chosen. Please review the table below to determine Franchisee’s initial franchise fee:

Type of Model Description Initial Franchise Fee

Traditional Units generally range between 5660550

Traditional Model _71.850 square feet. $35,000
Non-traditional Units generally range between 250
— 1,000 square feet and may feature a common
eating area and/or possibly a common kitchen—i.e.
Non-traditional airports, shopping malls, sports arenas, hotels, $25.000
Model university campuses, health care facilities, ’

government & military facilities. Non-traditional
Units generally feature a condensed food and
beverage menu.

Special Contracts Traditional Units range between 6800550 — 1,850

Traditional Model square feet. $10,000 - $15,000

Non-traditional Units generally range between 250
— 1,000 square feet and may feature a common
eating area and/or possibly a common kitchen— i.e.
airports, shopping malls, sports arenas, hotels,
university campuses, health care facilities,

Special Contracts

Non-traditional $10,000 - $15,000

Model government & military facilities. Non-traditional
Units generally feature a condensed food and
beverage menu.
New Orleans Brew, LLC 13
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Pre-Opening Purchases. Before opening for business, Franchisee must purchase the necessary PJ’s
Products and proprietary items from Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC.
Franchisor estimates that Franchisee’s pre-opening costs for PJ’s Products and proprietary items purchased
from us and/or our affiliate will range from $2,500 to $5,000 per Unit.

ITEM 6

OTHER FEES

Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Traditional Model
Royalty Fee"!

5.0% of gressnet sales

Automatically
withdrawn five
business days
after prior
week’s end.

Payable to PJ’s; uniformly
imposed; non-refundable.

Non-traditional
Model Royalty Fee
Ni

5.0% of gress-net sales

Automatically
withdrawn five
business days
after prior
week’s end.

Payable to PJ’s; uniformly
imposed; non-refundable.

Special Contracts
Traditional Model
Royalty Fee ™!

3.0% - 6.0% of gress
net sales
(depending on
Franchisee
experience). Generally,
a Franchisee with more
experience operating
other PJ’s Franchise
Units or similar types
of units within other
systems will have a
lower rate than
Franchisees with less
experience either in
terms of time or with
this particular type of
business. The Royalty
Fee will be determined
prior to the franchisee
signing the Franchise
Agreement.

Automatically
withdrawn five
business days
after prior
week’s end.

Payable to PJ’s; uniformly
imposed; non-refundable.

Special Contracts
Non-traditional

3.0% - 6.0% of gress
net sales
(depending on
Franchisee

Automatically
withdrawn five
business days

Payable to PJ’s; uniformly

Model Royalty Fee | experience). Generally, . imposed; non-refundable.
Ni . . after prior
a Franchisee with more R
. . week’s end.
experience operating
other PJ’s Franchise
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Training Fees™*

training program,
additional training
sessions may either be

programs- as
incurred before

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Units or similar types
of units within other
systems will have a
lower rate than
Franchisees with less
experience either in
terms of time or with
this particular type of
business. The Royalty
Fee will be determined
prior to the franchisee
signing the Franchise
Agreement.

Tradltlong 1 Model 2.0% of gress-net Same as Payable to PJ’s; uniformly
Marketing Fee sales royalty fee im d; non-refundabl
(System Fund) > . yalty fee. posed; non-re e.
Non—tradltlon'a ! 2.0% of gress-net Same as Payable to PJ’s; uniformly
Model Marketing sales royalty fee imposed; non-refundable

Fee (System Fund) ™ ' yaity fee. posed, '
Special Contracts
Model Marketing No fee for this model. | Not applicable. Not applicable.
Fee (System Fund) ™

Special Contracts

Non-traditional

Model No fee for this model. | Not applicable. Not applicable.

Marketing Fee

(System Fund) ™
Advertising 1.0% up to 3.0% of Established by As designated by Franchisee’s
Cooperatives ™ gross-net sales. cooperative. cooperative.
Prime plus 2.5% per
annum or the
Interest on late maximum rate allowed . .
. Immediately. Payable to PJ’s; non-refundable.
payments by the applicable
federal and/or state
law.
No fee charged for
initial training .
programs. After first Add.l t1.0nal
training

Additional training programs-
payable to PJ’s.

commencement
requested by the ¢
franchisee or mandated | ' PrOSAM
by PJ’s.
Initial Advertising Pr.10r to
Feel $7,500-$10,000 opening — See Payable to approved vendor.
Item 7.
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Refurbishment
Costs N

$20,000 - $65,000

After the first
five years of
opening of the
Unit.

Payable to approved
contractor/vendor.

Audit Fees Y

$2,500 - $8,000

After audit and
gress-net sales
are determined
to be
understated by
5% or more.

To designated auditor.

Transfer Fees™®

$15,000

Payable at time

Payable to PJ’s when, and if,
Franchisee transfers Franchisee’s
franchise; uniformly imposed; non-

Program Fee ™"

of transfer. refundable.
. . Payable to PJ’s and/or
Renovatwn/]?emgn $1,500 - $11,500 As incurred. approved/designated architecture
Construction o
NO irm.
Plans
Returned Checks ™' $30 for each As incurred. Payable to PJ’s.
occurrence.
Charge for
Inspection and As incurred — .
Testing of Proposed $0 - $1,000 See Ttem 8. Payable to proposed supplier.
Suppliers
$1,000 - 2,0500-ifpaid
Point of Sale (POS) | Eranchisee-may-eleet .
As incurred or
System Hardware to-pay-$40-to-$80-per Payable to approved vendor.
monthly.
Costs menth-for24-menths
o L oavine in full
for the POS-System.
Point of Sale (POS)
Software License,
Loyalty Program & | $-3660215 monthly fee. Monthly.
Gift Card Program Payable to approved vendor.
Fee
Labor Management $ 36-20 monthly fee Monthly Payable to approved vendor
Program Fee ™" = ] ] )
Mobile App Fee™' | $175-50 monthly fee. Monthly. Payable to approved vendor.
Inventory
Management $1466-99 monthly fee. Monthly. Payable to approved vendor.

Early Termination
Fee

The average monthly
Royalty and Marketing
Fees during the
preceding 12-month
period multiplied by
the number of months

As incurred- 30
days prior to
the early
closing of the
store.

Franchisee must provide PJ’s with
90-days’ written notice of the
termination of Franchisee’s
franchise agreement.

New Orleans Brew, LLC
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
remaining in the term
of the franchise
agreement.
This includes the registration fee,
cost of travel and lodging. It does
not take into account
Annual Convention $ 500 - $5,000 As incurred- miscellaneous expenses such as
yearly. food and entertainment. Travel
expenses may vary depending on
your point of origin.
Annual Convention $500 As incurred. Payable to PJ’s.
Penalty
Financial Statement . )
Penalty"'2 $100 As incurred. Payable to PJ’s.
NOTES:

General Comments.

All fees must be payable to Franchisor. Unless otherwise stated, these fees are non-refundable. During the
term of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor and/or its approved vendors may offer additional services not
currently contemplated, for which Franchisor and/or its approved vendors may charge a fee. Franchisor will
automatically withdraw all fees from Franchisee’s bank account on a weekly or monthly basis.

(D Royalty Fee. Franchisee must pay the appropriate percentage of Franchisee’s weekly gress—net
sales to Franchisor beginning the date Franchisee opens for business. This payment or withdrawal will be
made within five business days of week’s end. The term “gress-net sales” shall mean the amount of sales
of all products and services sold in, on, about, from, or from such other place for Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit,
whether for cash or on a charge, credit or time basis, including the reasonable market value of any goods
or services sold or traded in any barter or trade transaction, without reserve or deduction for inability or
failure to collect. “Gress-Net Sales” is 1ntended to include income of every klnd and nature related to
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unlt A i o hall-n

1nclude the amount of any excise or sales tax 1ev1ed on retall sales and payable over to the appropriate
governmental authority. In computing gressnet sales, Franchisee may deduct the amounts of over-rings,
refunds, allowances, er-discounts to customers (including coupon sales) or tips received from customers if

these amounts have been included in gress-net sales and if Franchisee complies with the requirements,
including time limits, established by Franchisor, in writing, regarding reporting and taking credits against

gress-net sales.

2) Marketing Fee (System Fund). Franchisee must pay the appropriate percentage of Franchisee’s
weekly gressnet sales to Franchisor beginning the date Franchisee opens for business for a System Fee.
This payment or withdrawal will be made within five business days of week’s end.

3) Cooperative Fee. Franchisee shall be required to participate in a marketing and promotional
cooperative (“Cooperative”) with other PJ’s franchisees. Upon becoming a member of a Cooperative,
Franchisee must pay the appropriate percentage of Franchisee’s weekly gress-net sales to the Cooperative.
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@) Training Fees. Franchisee must pay all personal expenses incurred by Franchisee or Franchisee’s
employees in training programs, including costs and expenses of transportation, lodging, meals, wages, and
employee benefits. Franchisor will not charge for the attendance up to three persons representing Franchisee
at the initial franchise management training program.

(5) Initial Advertising Fee. Franchisee must pay $7,500 to $10,000 to an approved vendor for
advertising associated with the Grand Opening. This spend must occur prior to opening. If the PJ’s Unit is
within a 75-mile radius of an existing PJ’s Unit, Franchisee is required to spend $7,500.00 to promote the
grand opening. If the PJ’s Unit is more than 75 miles from an existing PJ’s Unit (“Pioneer Market”),
Franchisee is required to spend $10,000.00 on the grand opening advertisement. If the PJ’s Unit is in a
Pioneer Market, Franchisor will spend an additional $5,000.00 to promote the grand opening. Franchisor’s
Pioneer Market advertising spend will not be deducted from any national advertising fund.

(6) Refurbishment Costs. Franchisor may ask Franchisee to refurbish, remodel or modify Franchisee’s
PJ’s Unit at Franchisee’s expense after the first five (5) years of opening of the PJ’s to conform to the then-
current building design, trade dress, equipment specifications and color schemes. The cost of each
refurbishment depends upon the extent and amount of work performed. These costs are estimated to range
between $20,000 and $65,000.

@) Audit Fees. Franchisor has the right to review the financial statements submitted by Franchisee. If
it is determined by an independent certified public accountant that the amount of gress—net sales was
understated by more than 5%, then Franchisee is responsible to pay all accountant’s fees incurred by
Franchisor. The cost of this audit is estimated to be $2,500 - $8,000 but the cost will vary depending on the
amount of work performed by the accountant.

(®) Transfer Fee. If the transfer of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit results in a transfer of control, Franchisee
must pay Franchisor $15,000.

) Renovation/Design Construction Plans. Franchisee must pay the fees and costs associated with
obtaining the plans necessary to complete the refurbishment described in Note 5 above. The fees and costs
associated with the renovation construction plans will vary. Franchisee must use a licensed and insured
general contractor for all construction and remodeling on the interior or exterior of the franchised location.
Costs are estimated to be $1,500 - $11,500.

(10)  Returned Checks. Franchisee must pay $30 to Franchisor for each check Franchisee issued to
Franchisor that is returned by the bank due to insufficient funds.

(11)  Labor Management and Inventory Management Programs; Mobile Application Platform.
Franchisee must utilize the labor management and inventory management program(s) designated by the
Franchisor. Franchisee must pay fees associated with the labor management and inventory management
programs separately. Franchisee must participate in Franchisor’s mobile application designated by the
Franchisor. Franchisee must pay fees associated with the mobile application.

(12)  Financial Statement Penalty.  Franchisee must pay $100 to Franchisor for failing to remit
financial statements to Franchisor.

ITEM 7
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ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a PJ’s Unit ranges from $173,275 - $582584,000. This
total investment estimate includes the initial franchise fee of $10,000 - $35,000, as well as pre-opening
costs for PJ’s Products and proprietary items of $2,500 - $5,000, that must be paid to the Franchisor or
affiliate.

YOUR INITIAL INVESTMENT

TRADITIONAL MODEL
To Whom
Type of Expenditure Low High Method of When Due Payment is to
Payment
be Made
Upon
Initial Franchise Fee $35,000 | $35,000 | LumpSum | Signingof Franchisor
franchise
agreement
Real ]'Estagle Lease for $1,875 $12,500 As arranged | As arranged Landlord
Premises
Furmture, 1; 12xtures, and $50,000 $150,000 | As arranged Befo.re Approyed
Equipment Opening Suppliers
Within first
Opening advertising™ $7,500 $10,000 As arranged month of Advertising
opening
Training expenses™* $0 $0 As arranged | As arranged Franchisor
Travel and living 7 600 Before Airlines, Hotels
expenses while training ™’ §3,500 1870605000 | As arranged Opening and Restaurants
Before Agent/Company
Insurance™® $2.,400 $5,000 As arranged : of Franchisee’s
Opening .
Choice
Other prepaid expenses, Before Suppliers and
such as deposits, licenses $1,000 $3,500 As arranged ) Government
. . N7 Opening .
and various permits Agencies
.. N8 Before Franchisor and
Opening inventory $7,000 $14,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
. Before Approved
Signage $4,000 $18,000 | As arranged Opening Suppliers
Approved
Leaschold $50,000 | $270,000 | Asarranged | Dctor General
improvements Opening
Contractor
Before Approved
Small wares $3,000 |$5,6009,000 | As arranged . .
Opening Suppliers
POS System & Back- Before Approved
office Computer System $1,500 $5,500 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Legal, accounting & Government,
gal, ace & $2,500 $5,000 As arranged | As arranged Attorneys,
organizational costs
Accountants
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Additional funds™'°

$30,000

$30,000

As arranged

As arranged

Suppliers and

Employees
Franchisor
Construction Drawings™'! | $1,500 $11,500 As arranged | As arranged | and/or Approved
Suppliers
TOTAL $200,775 $58250ﬁ’00
YOUR INITIAL INVESTMENT
NON-TRADITIONAL MODEL
To Whom
Type of Expenditure Low High Method of When Due | Payment is to
Payment
be Made
Upon
Initial Franchise Fee §25000 | $25,000 | LumpSum | Signingof Franchisor
franchise
agreement
Real ]'Estagle Lease for $1,875 $12,500 As arranged | As arranged Landlord
Premises
Furmture, 1; 12xtures, and $50,000 $100,000 As arranged Befo.re Approyed
Equipment Opening Suppliers
Within first
Opening advertising™ $7,500 $10,000 As arranged month of Advertising
opening
Training expenses™* $0 $0 As arranged | As arranged Franchisor
Travel and living expenses 7000 Before Airlines, Hotels
while training ™’ $3,500 |$7:0605.000 | Asarranged Opening and Restaurants
Before Agent/Company
Insurance™® $2.,400 $5,000 As arranged . of Franchisee’s
Opening .
Choice
Other prepaid expenses, Before Suppliers and
such as deposits, licenses $1,000 $3,500 As arranged ) Government
. . N7 Opening .
and various permits Agencies
L N8 Before Franchisor and
Opening inventory $7,000 $14,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
. Before Approved
Signage $4,000 $7,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Approved
Leasehold NO $50,000 $150,000 As arranged Befo.r N General
improvements Opening
Contractor
Small wares $3,000 [$5;0009,000 | As arranged Befo.r © Approv ed
Opening Suppliers
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POS System & Back- Before Approved
office Computer System $1,500 $5,500 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Legal, accounting & Government,
gal, ac & $2,500 $5,000 As arranged | As arranged Attorneys,
organizational costs A
ccountants
Additional funds™"° $30,000 $30,000 As arranged | As arranged Suppliers and
Employees
Franchisor
Construction Drawings™' | $1,500 $11,500 As arranged | As arranged and/or
onstructio wings , , g g Approved
Suppliers
TOTAL $190,775 | $391393,000
YOUR INITIAL INVESTMENT
TRADITIONAL MODEL
SPECIAL CONTRACTS
To Whom
Type of Expenditure Low High Method of When Due Payment is to
Payment
be Made
Upon
Initial Franchise Fee $10,000 | $15,000 Lump Sum St}gmng. of Franchisor
ranchise
agreement
Real ]'Estagle Lease for $1,875 $12,500 As arranged | As arranged Landlord
Premises
Furniture, Fixtures, and Before Approved
Equipment™ $50,000 | $150,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Within first
Opening advertising™ $7,500 $10,000 As arranged month of Advertising
opening
Training expenses™* $0 $0 As arranged | As arranged Franchisor
Travel and living expenses 7000 Before Airlines, Hotels
while training ™’ $3,500 1$%6005.000 | Asarranged Opening and Restaurants
Agent/
Insurance™® $2,400 $5,000 As arranged Before Company of
Opening Franchisee's
Choice
Other prepaid expenses, Before Suppliers and
such as deposits, licenses $1,000 $3,500 As arranged Oven Government
. . N7 pening .
and various permits Agencies
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.. N8 Before Franchisor and
Opening inventory $7,000 $14,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
. Before Approved
Signage $4,000 $18,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Approved
Leasehold NO $50,000 $270,000 As arranged Befolr ¢ General
improvements Opening
Contractor
Small wares $3,000 [$5.6009.000 | As arranged Before Approved
Opening Suppliers
POS System & Back- Before Approved
office Computer System $1,500 $5,500 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Legal, accounting & Government,
gal, ac & $2,500 $5,000 As arranged | As arranged Attorneys,
organizational costs
Accountants
Additional funds™'"° $30,000 $30,000 As arranged | As arranged Suppliers and
Employees
Franchisor
Construction Drawings ™' | $1,500 $11,500 As arranged | As arranged and/or
onstructio wings , , g g Approved
Suppliers
TOTAL $175,775 | $562564,000
YOUR INITIAL INVESTMENT
NON-TRADITIONAL MODEL
SPECIAL CONTRACTS
To Whom
Type of Expenditure Low High Method of When Due Payment is to
Payment
be Made
Upon
Initial Franchise Fee $10,000 $15,000 Lump Sum S1IghINg of Franchisor
franchise
agreement
Real ]'Estagle Lease for $1,875 $12,500 As arranged | As arranged Landlord
Premises
Furmture, 1; 12xtures, and $50,000 $100,000 As arranged Befolre Approyed
Equipment Opening Suppliers
Within first
Opening advertising $5,000 $5,000 As arranged month of Advertising
opening
Training expenses™* $0 $0 As arranged | As arranged Franchisor
Travel and living expenses 7 600 Before Airlines, Hotels
while training ™’ $3,500 1$%6005.000 | Asarranged Opening and Restaurants
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Agent/
Insurance™® $2,400 $5,000 As arranged Befolr N Comp any (,)f
Opening Franchisee's
Choice
Other prepaid expenses, Before Suppliers and
such as deposits, licenses $1,000 $3,500 As arranged ) Government
. . N7 Opening .
and various permits Agencies
.. N8 Before Franchisor and
Opening inventory $7,000 $14,000 As arranged Opening Supplicrs
. Before Approved
Signage $4,000 $7,000 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Approved
Leasehold NO $50,000 $150,000 As arranged Befolr N General
improvements Opening
Contractor
Small wares $3,000 [$5.0009.000 | Asarranged | Detore Approved
Opening Suppliers
POS System & Back- Before Approved
office Computer System $1,500 $5,500 As arranged Opening Suppliers
Legal, accounting & Government,
gal, ace g $2,500 $5,000 As arranged | As arranged Attorneys,
organizational costs
Accountants
Additional funds™'"° $30,000 $30,000 As arranged | As arranged Suppliers and
Employees
Franchisor
. - NI and/or
Construction Drawings $1,500 $11,500 As arranged | As arranged
Approved
Suppliers
TOTAL $173,275 | $376378,000
NOTES:

General Comments.

The above figures are estimates of the complete investment in establishing Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.
Franchisee’s actual investment will depend upon many different factors like location, amount of space
leased, amount of leasehold improvements, and Franchisee’s ability to efficiently manage and coordinate
the construction and opening of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. The amounts paid to Franchisor are non-refundable
unless otherwise stated. The refund ability of amounts paid to third parties depends upon Franchisee’s
negotiations with these parties. The following notes are integral to the understanding of the financial
commitment required to successfully establish and operate Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Franchisee should
review the notes thoroughly.

(D Real Estate Lease for PJ’s Unit. Locations for Traditional Model PJ’s Units are typically within
shopping strip centers and suburban shopping areas. Typically, Franchisee would lease an existing location
in a shopping strip center or other freestanding building and remodel the location to conform to the current
design specifications of Franchisor. Franchisee may also lease the land and an existing facility and convert
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the facility to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit or enter into a build-to-suit lease under which lease the landlord agrees
to construct a structure which is used as Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit and lease the land and the building back to
Franchisee. Franchisee may also purchase the land and build the facility itself. The cost of land may vary
dramatically depending upon a multitude of factors and it varies by city and region. Franchisor has not
included costs for land acquisition or construction of a building. Franchisee must perform a thorough
investigation in Franchisee’s local area concerning land, site, leasehold, and construction costs. These costs
may vary significantly from location to location and are dependent upon factors such as the general cost,
location, and availability of commercial real estate in Franchisee’s market area and the amount of space
desired.

Lease payments vary considerably depending upon regional and local factors and the type of lease
negotiated by Franchisee. For a typical Traditional Model or Special Contracts Traditional Model PJ’s Unit,
Franchisee must lease approximately 15600550 to 1,850 square feet of space. For a typical Non-traditional
Model or Special Contracts Non-traditional Model PJ’s Unit, Franchisee must lease approximately 250 to
1,000 square feet of space. Lease payments for a typical PJ’s Unit usually range from $1,875 to $6,250 per
month depending upon the size, location, and market demand for the property. The rate may be higher for
regional mall sites or locations in high demand. Franchisor estimates that the range ($1,875 to $12,500)
given will cover a deposit and first month’s rent. There is a low-end estimate of “$1,875” for certain
franchised models because some landlords do not require a lease deposit; therefore, an initial investment of
only first month’s rent will be required by the franchisee. Additionally, rent is typically based upon the size
of the location; therefore, if the leased property has less square footage, an initial investment of the first
month’s rent will be lower than if the lease property has more square footage and requires a lease deposit.
There is a high-end estimate of “$12,500” for certain franchised models because some landlords require
both a lease deposit and first month’s rent. Additionally, as rent is typically based upon the size of the
location, if the leased property is larger, the rent will be higher. Therefore, an initial investment of up to
$12,500 may be required by the franchisee.

2) Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment. Franchisor will provide a complete list of furniture, fixtures
and equipment needs and specifications. Franchisor estimates that the range given will also be enough to
purchase the initial decor package and other miscellaneous equipment. The decor package and equipment
must comply exactly with the designer and/or architectural plans specified by Franchisor.

3) Opening advertising. The cost of grand opening advertising spend will depend on the geographical
location of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. If the PJ’s Unit is within a 75-mile radius of an existing PJ’s Unit,
Franchisee is required to spend $7,500-80-to promote the grand opening. If the PJ’s Unit is more than 75
miles from an existing PJ’s Unit (referred to herein as a “Pioneer Market”), Franchisee is required to spend
$10,000-06-on the grand opening advertisement. If the PJ’s Unit is in a Pioneer Market, Franchisor will
spend an additional $5,000-00-to promote the grand opening. Franchisor’s Pioneer Market advertising spend
will not be deducted from any national advertising fund.

4) Training expenses. Franchisor provides instructors and instructional materials for up to three
managers at no cost. However, Franchisee must arrange for Franchisee’s own transportation, lodging, and
meals for Franchisee and for any costs incurred by associates. Franchisee or Franchisee’s manager must
attend approximately five to seven days of management training in the Greater Metro New Orleans,
Louisiana market.

(5) Travel and living expenses while training. These costs will depend on the distance Franchisee must
travel, the type of accommodations, the number of attendees and any wages paid by Franchisee to the
associates attending training. The costs listed include estimates for reasonably priced transportation,
lodging and meals for three people. The costs do not include wages paid for associates or employees
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attending training, local restaurants or other attractions in the Greater Metro New Orleans, Louisiana area,
which can significantly increase Franchisee’s costs and affect the quality of Franchisee’s training.

(6) Insurance. Franchisee must procure comprehensive liability, property and other types of insurance
coverage as provided in Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement, Franchisee’s lease and as may be required by
law. The estimate given in the chart is for the first year’s premium for a customary comprehensive general
liability policy in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, business interruption
insurance, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) aggregate with full replacement value of business
contents coverage. Franchisee also must list New Orleans Brew, LLC as an additional named insured.

@) Other prepaid expenses. These costs include installation charges and deposits for a business
telephone line, utilities, occupational licensing, health, and other permits, and, in some areas, zoning or
impact fees.

(®) Opening inventory. Franchisor estimates that the range given will be sufficient to cover a supply
of food and beverages for the opening of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

) Leasehold improvements. The cost of the leasehold improvements typically ranges from $50,000
to $270,000 depending upon the requirements of the city and/or state in which Franchisee is building. The
cost of the improvements will vary depending upon the condition and type of building leased and the
willingness of the lessor or owner to contribute to the construction or remodeling of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit
Costs could exceed the estimates provided if remodeling is extensive and the lessor or owner does not
contribute significantly to the costs of remodeling Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Franchisor will provide a
complete list of improvements and design and decor criteria for Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Franchisee must
use a licensed and insured General Contractor for all construction and remodeling on the interior and
exterior of the franchised location.

(10)  Additional funds. This amount reflects the minimum suggested amount of additional funds
Franchisee will need for the first three months Franchisee operates Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. This amount
includes the following items: salaries and wages, payroll taxes, advertising, product purchases, payment
of royalties, uniforms, utility bills, ongoing professional fees, freight, and other miscellaneous
administrative and operating expenses.

(11)  Construction Drawings. Franchisee must obtain construction drawings and make certain
improvements and modifications to the particular building Franchisee leases to conform to the decor and
design of other PJ’s Units. The cost of the construction drawings typically ranges from $1,500 to $11,500,
depending upon the project scope, size of the project and requirements of the city and/or state in which
Franchisee is building. The construction drawings fees do not include civil or environmental engineering
drawings as these are not typically required for a PJ’s Unit. Franchisor may offer the service of preparing
pre-construction drawings to aid the preparation of the complete construction drawing set. The pre-
construction drawings may include existing and proposed floor plan, reflected ceiling plan, equipment, and
furniture plan, finishes and details and typical elevations plan. The fee for the pre-construction drawings
prepared by Franchisor ranges from $500 to $2,500.

(12)  Total investment. Franchisor relied on its prior experience in this business to compile these
estimates.

(13)  Financing. Franchisor does not offer, either directly or indirectly, financing to Franchisee for any
items.
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(14)  MUOA. The total investment necessary to begin operation of a PJ’s Unit under a MUOA ranges
from $200,775 - $582584,000 for the first PJ’s Unit.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Designated Suppliers and Specifications.

To maintain the reputation, goodwill, high standards, quality and uniformity of our System, Franchisee
must purchase services, products and supplies which meet certain specifications. These specifications may
include minimum standards for building size, leasehold improvements, zoning, lease provisions, location
criteria, qualifications of architects or contractors, signs, equipment, quality, quantity, delivery,
performance, design, appearance, durability, style, and other related restrictions. Franchisee must also use
only the standard forms approved by Franchisor and use the display sales, marketing and promotional
material provided in the manner and for the time periods designated by Franchisor. Franchisee must ensure
that all items and printed materials used in Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit bears the Proprietary Marks in the manner
required by Franchisor. Franchisor considers these specifications to be of critical importance to the success
of the System. These specifications are listed in the Manuals or are otherwise provided to Franchisee in
writing. These specifications may be revised by Franchisor. If a supplier does not meet our specifications
stated in the Manuals or as provided to Franchisee in other written materials, Franchisor may require
Franchisee to stop using that supplier.

Purchases from Designated and/or Approved Suppliers or Distributors.

Franchisee must purchase or lease all equipment, inventory, supplies, products, and materials required for
the operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit in accordance with specifications set by Franchisor and from
approved suppliers, except for general office supplies & equipment and other general business items. These
items must be purchased from the designated and/or approved suppliers as listed in the Manuals. Franchisee
must purchase the designated proprietary items manufactured for Franchisor from New Orleans Roast,
L.L.C. (“Roast”) or other companies designated by Franchisor. Roast is Franchisor’s authorized roasting
facility and production company that allows for the distribution of uniform specialty coffee products
throughout the System. Roast is an affiliate of Franchisor. Our principals/owners, Paul Ballard, Steven
Ballard, and John “Scott” Ballard own an interest in Roast.

Designated suppliers and vendors allow for the ability to obtain discounts on volume purchasing from
manufacturer sources. Franchisor considers Franchisee’s use of the designated products essential to the
success of the System. Franchisor may, at any time, change the source of these designated products.
Franchisor estimates that Franchisee’s purchases from approved suppliers will be approximately 76% of
Franchisee’s total investment and 45% of Franchisee’s ongoing expenses in the operation of Franchisee’s
PJ’s Unit. For Franchisee’s benefit, Franchisor negotiates purchase arrangements, including favorable
pricing and/or terms, with designated or approved suppliers. Franchisee does not receive material benefits
from Franchisor if Franchisee uses designated or approved suppliers. However, purchasing or leasing from
unapproved suppliers or using products that do not meet Franchisor’s specifications is a default of
Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement, and Franchisor may terminate Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement
and/or pursue its other remedies available to it under the Franchise Agreement. A default under Franchisee’s
Franchise Agreement may also be cause for Franchisor to not renew Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement or
disqualify Franchisee from opening additional franchises. Franchisor estimates that Roast’s revenue from
sales of required purchases by franchisees under the System will be approximately 2532% of Roast’s total
revenue in 20202021. In the 2649-2020 fiscal year, Roast realized gross sales of approximately $2.93.8
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million for products for use by Franchisees. To determine Roast’s revenues from required purchases, Roast
has utilized its internal accounting software and year-end financial statements.

Franchisor negotiates purchase arrangement with suppliers, including price terms, for the benefit of
Franchisees.

Franchisee should be aware that there might be price increases in any or all the items Franchisee must
purchase from our suppliers or distributors. Costs of goods from designated or approved suppliers may
fluctuate from month to month. The volume of purchases, usage, vendor minimums, inventory turns, market
demand and other similar factors determines prices charged to Franchisee. Additionally, freight charges
may not be uniform for all locations. Freight charges will depend upon the location of Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit from supplier or distributor’s warechouse and the number of other PJ’s Units in Franchisee’s area.
When entering new markets Franchisee should be aware that Franchisee’s freight costs may be higher than
costs for PJ’s Units in other markets and should adjust Franchisee’s cost projections accordingly. Franchisor
does not know of any pending price increases, but Franchisor cannot guarantee that increases will not occur.

Computer Hardware & Software.

Franchisee must purchase the POS system currently approved by PJ’s, or other POS system that Franchisor
may require in the future. (Franchise Agreement-Article 18.4). The POS system must be purchased from a
Franchisor’s approved supplier. Various manufacturers provide reasonably equivalent POS systems that
perform the same functions; however, the use of any other POS system must be approved in advance by
Franchisor. The POS System and network must be secure and PCI compliant to protect customer credit
card information. Optional equipment and/or software upgrades are also available for additional fees. Units
with a drive-thru must have two POS systems. Franchisor will have unlimited independent access to
Franchisee’s POS system data, including receipts, reports, and sales information. (Franchise Agreement-
Article 11.3). Franchisee will be provided with specifications and initial training in Franchisee’s POS
system, but Franchisor is under no obligation to assist Franchisee in obtaining the above items. If the POS
system must be upgraded or updated, Franchisee agrees to pay all reasonable and necessary expenses, fees,
and costs. (Franchise Agreement-Article 18.4). The estimated cost for upgrades or updates to the POS
system is $1,000 - $2,000. Franchisee must purchase or lease all equipment necessary to accept designated
credit or debit cards. The estimated cost for a full-service register system is $1,000 - $2,000. This price may
decrease or increase depending on the model chosen. POS system training is mandatory and is included in
the system price. Franchisee may be required to purchase a back-office computer system including a
network switch and laser printer. The estimate for the back-office computer system is $500 - $1000.
Franchisee may elect to purchase a video monitoring system. The estimated cost of the video monitoring
system is $1,000 - $2,500.

Insurance.

Franchisee must procure comprehensive liability, property and other types of insurance coverage as
provided in Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement, Franchisee’s lease and as may be required by law. The
estimate given in the chart is for the first year’s premium for a customary comprehensive general liability
policy in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, business interruption
insurance, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) aggregate with full replacement value of business
contents coverage. Franchisee also must list New Orleans Brew, LLC as an additional named insured.

Approval of Alternative Suppliers/Compliance with Specifications.
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If Franchisee desires to purchase any items from an unapproved supplier that Franchisee believes meets the
specifications of Franchisor, Franchisee and the supplier must submit to Franchisor a written request for
approval. Franchisor must advise Franchisee within 90 days whether these items meet its specifications.
The time for approval may vary depending upon the amount of research, testing, cooperation from suppliers
and other factors involved in approving the items. Franchisor’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Franchisor may require that its representatives be permitted to inspect the supplier’s facilities and that
samples from the supplier be delivered to Franchisor or its designee for inspection. Franchisor reserves the
right to re-inspect the facilities and products of any previously approved supplier and to revoke its approval
upon the supplier’s failure to continue to meet any of Franchisor’s standards and specifications.

If Franchisee obtains services from third-party providers, Franchisor will have the right to review the terms
and conditions of Franchisee’s arrangements and require additional information about the business
background and qualifications of the providers, including personal interviews with individuals providing
the services. If any third party obtains access to confidential information, Franchisor may require, as a
condition of approval of the provider, the signing of confidentiality and non-competition agreements in a
form satisfactory to Franchisor. Franchisor may disapprove any provider, upon written notice to Franchisee,
which does not demonstrate an ability to comply with the standards established for the System and to meet
our needs promptly and reliably. Franchisor considers the following general criteria in determining whether
a supplier will be approved: ability to produce or deliver the products, services, supplies or equipment in
accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications for quality and uniformity; production and
delivery capabilities and ability to meet supply commitments; integrity of ownership (to ensure that the
supplier’s association with Franchisor would not be inconsistent with Franchisor’s image or damage
Franchisor’s goodwill); financial stability; meets minimum standards of licensing, insurance and regulatory
requirements; and the negotiation of a mutually satisfactory agreement to protect Franchisor’s intellectual
property. Franchisor’s criteria for specific types of suppliers are either made available to Franchisee in the
Manuals or will be made available to Franchisee upon written request.

Franchisor maintains a written list of approved supplies (generally identified by brand name) and suppliers,
which is updated and issued to Franchisee on a regular basis. Franchisor does not provide confidential
specifications to Franchisee or suppliers, except on a limited basis; however, if a product, equipment, or
other item does not meet Franchisor’s specifications, Franchisor will provide a written explanation within
90 days, depending upon the testing involved as described above, as to why the product or equipment does
not meet Franchisor’s specifications. Franchisor formulates and modifies specifications and standards by
periodically performing tests on its products and equipment in relation to new products and equipment.

Revenues from Franchisee Purchases.

Franchisor expects to receive either directly or indirectly, revenue from suppliers based on purchases by
Franchisees to cover Franchisor’s expenses, overhead and profit. The revenue may be based on volume or
per unit sales for purchases of coffee beans, teas, coffee products, syrups, paper products, or other products
(“Rebate Products”). During Franchisor’s last fiscal year that ended on December 279, 20492020,
Franchisor’s revenue from suppliers based on purchases of Rebate Products by PJ’s Units was
approximately $4467314.516 or +60.5% of Franchisor’s total revenue of approximately
$2,654,5783,031,510, based on Franchisor’s audited financial statements of Franchisor’s last fiscal year.

Cooperatives.

Franchisor does not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives.
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ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and other agreements. It

will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other
items of this Disclosure Document.

Oblization Section in Franchise Agreement or Disclosure Document
gatio Addendum Item
a. Site selection and Articles 1.2, 1.3 and 1.4 Ttem 11
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Articles 6.4, 8.2, and 8.4 Items 6, 7 and 8
c. Site development and other pre- | i 100 35 161 and 16.2 Ttems 6,7, 8 and 11
opening requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training Articles 3 and 13.2 Items 6, 7 and 11
e. Opening Articles 1.2, 2, and 6.4 Items 7, 8 and 11
f. Fees Articles 6 and 9.1 Items 5, 6, and 7
g. Compliance with standards and Articles 4 and 5.2 Ttems 8, 9, 16 and 17
policies/Operating Manual
h. Traderparks anc} proprictary Article 7 Items 13 and 14
information
I Restrictions on Atticles 4.5, 4.6, 5.1 and 5.2 Items § and 16
products/services offered
). Warranty anfi customer service Articles 4.5 and 5.2 Not Applicable
requirements
k. Territorial development and Article 1 Ttem 12
sales quotas
1. Ongoing product/service Article 8 Ttems 8 and 16
purchases
m. Mamtengnce, appearance and Articles 4.4 and 5.4 Items 6, 8 and 11
remodeling requirements
n. Insurance Article 16 Items 6 and 7
0. Advertising Article 6 Items 6 and 11
p- Indemnification Articles 7.4 and 19.1 Items 6 and 13
q. Owner’s .
participation/management/staffing Article 3.2 ftem 15
r. Records and reports Article 9.2 Items 8 and 17
s. Inspections and audits Articles 4.7, 5.6, 9.2 and 18 Items 6 and 11
t. Transfer Article 13 Item 17
u. Renewal Article 14 Item 17
v. Post-termination obligations Article 15 Item 17
w. Non-competition covenants Articles 1.1 and 10 Item 17
x. Dispute resolution Article 20 Item 17
Y P;rsqnal Guaranty of all Articles 1.1, 14.1 and Attachment A Item 15
obligations of agreement
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ITEM 10
FINANCING

Franchisor does not offer direct or indirect financing. Franchisor does not guarantee Franchisee’s note,
lease, or obligation.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING
Except as listed below, Franchisor is not required to provide Franchisee with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations.

Before Franchisee opens Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, Franchisor will provide:

Financial Assistance. The Franchisor does not provide its Franchisees with any direct lending. However,
the Franchisor will provide the Franchisee with a business plan template along with a proforma template to
aid the Franchisee with planning for the opening of a PJ’s Unit and provide to financial institutions, as
required, in the effort of securing lending for the initial investment. The Franchisor may also suggest
financial institutions that the Franchisee may utilize as a potential lending source.

Site Leeation-Identification and Evaluation Assistance and Approval. Franchisor will provide Franchisee
with general site selection criteria and guidance in the seleetien-identification of an acceptable site. The
Franchisor will also provide assistance with the evaluation of the site to ensure it meets the criteria
acceptable to the Franchisor. Franchisor does not own any of the location premises currently leased and
has no present intention to do so.

The franchise is granted for a location to be approved by Franchisor. Franchisee, along with the assistance
of the Franchisor and in most cases a real estate broker, -alene-mustloeatemust locate a site for Franchisee’s
PJ’s Unit which site must be accepted by Franchisor. Franchisor will evaluate and accept the location of
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit if it meets Franchisor’s minimum site and lease requirements. (Franchise
Agreement-Article 1.4). Franchisor’s acceptance will not be unreasonably withheld. Franchisor does not
warrant or guarantee the success of a particular location. Franchisor will evaluate Franchisee’s proposed
locations as soon as reasonably possible in accordance with the procedures in the PJ’s Manual or as may
be provided in other writings by Franchisor. Factors considered by Franchisor in reviewing and accepting
proposed sites include population density, demographics, size of the premises, rent, available parking,
traffic count and patterns, ease of access, economic and population growth trends, PJ’s market penetration
and proximity to other businesses, including other PJ’s Units. Franchisor also considers whether the lessor
will agree to the Franchisor’s permitted use language and other required lease provisions.

Franchisor must approve or disapprove the proposed site within 30 days after Franchisee submits a written
summary of the lease terms and other information available for the proposed site. If Franchisor determines
that the location is not acceptable at that time or is too close to another PJ’s Unit, the site will not be
accepted, and Franchisee must locate a new site for Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Failure to acquire a site
acceptable to Franchisor for Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit and open the PJ’s Unit within one year of the Effective
Date of Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement will be considered a default of Franchisee’s Franchise
Agreement and is grounds for termination. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 1.3, 1.4).
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Review of Lease. Franchisor will review the lease for the proposed location of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit to
ensure that provisions required by Franchisor are included in the lease and that the terms of the lease are
generally acceptable to Franchisor. Franchisee, along with the assistance of the Franchisor and in many
cases a real estate broker, alene-must negotiate the business and financial terms of Franchisee’s lease.
(Franchise Agreement-Article 1.4). Franchisor recommends that Franchisee have Franchisee’s own legal
counsel review Franchisee’s lease prior to its execution.

Approved Plans and Specifications. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with the specifications and layouts
for the structures, equipment, furnishings, decor, and signs identified with PJ’s Units and approved
suppliers and specifications for products and supplies. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 8, 18.1). Franchisor
may provide or deliver some of these items directly to Franchisee. Franchisee must hire an architect
approved by Franchisor for the preparation of Franchisee’s construction plans and specifications.

Review of Final Site and Construction Plans. Franchisor will review Franchisee’s final site plans and
approve the decor and layout for conformity to the construction standards and specifications of the System.
(Franchise Agreement-Articles 1.4, 17.1).

Manuals. Franchisor will loan Franchisee one copy of the PJ’s Confidential Operations Manual and other
manuals that Franchisor makes available to all franchisees. (Franchise Agreement-Article 17.1).

Training. Franchisor will train Franchisee’s personnel to operate Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise
Agreement-Articles 3, 18.1). This training is described in detail later in this Item.

Post-Opening Obligations.

During the operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, Franchisor will provide:

On-Site Assistance. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with on-site assistance upon the opening of
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. During the opening of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit Franchisor, at Franchisor’s expense,
will provide at least one Franchisor representative to Franchisee at Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit to facilitate the
opening of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. The number of days of this on-site visit may vary, but a Franchisor
representative will normally be on-site five to ten days. (Franchise Agreement-Article 17.1).

Marketing and Advertising Guidance and Approval. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with materials and
advice to support Franchisee’s marketing and advertising efforts. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 5.3, 6).
Franchisor will also approve or disapprove all advertising and promotional materials Franchisee proposes
to use. Franchisor shall respond to any request for approval or disapproval of advertising and promotional
materials within 30 days of its receipt. Marketing and advertising are explained in more detail below.

Guidance. Franchisee may contact Franchisor’s representatives on a periodic or as-needed basis to receive
guidance concerning the operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise Agreement-Article 18.1).
Franchisor will also provide information to Franchisee about changes and modifications to the System and
Manuals, advertising & marketing activities and provide Franchisee with forms for required reports
Franchisee must submit to Franchisor. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 4.2, 18.1). Franchisor will
periodically, as it considers necessary, inspect Franchisee’s supplies, merchandise, methods of service and
merchandising and speak with Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees to ensure Franchisee is complying
with Franchisee’s agreements, Manuals and the standards established for the System. (Franchise
Agreement-Article 4.7). Franchisor will not provide any legal or accounting services or advice at any time.
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Additional Training. Franchisor will periodically, as it considers necessary, provide Franchisee with
advanced training in operating Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise Agreement-Article 3).

New Products and Services. Franchisor will evaluate and consider for approval the products or services
Franchisee submits for approval for use in Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 8.2, 8.3).

Marketing.

System Funds. Franchisee must pay 2% percent of Franchisee’s weekly gress—net sales to Franchisor’s
system fund (“System Fund”). (Franchise Agreement-Article 6.1). If Franchisee becomes part of a
Franchisor approved regional marketing cooperative (“Cooperative”), Franchisee must pay additional 1%
to 3% percent of Franchisee’s weekly gress-net sales to the Cooperative. (Franchise Agreement-Article
6.2). If Franchisee are not part of a Cooperative, Franchisee must dedicate and spend 1% to 3% of
Franchisee’s weekly gressnet sales on local advertising. (Franchise Agreement-Article 6.3). Franchisee
must contribute the required amount to the System Fund and the Cooperative. Because of market conditions
and location, certain franchise and license agreements with major beverage & food service organizations
or atypical locations may or may not require a contribution or the same amount of contribution to the System
Fund. Outside vendors and suppliers may contribute to the System Fund or a Cooperative in exchange for
promoting their products or using their services. These agreements are negotiated on an individual basis as
the opportunity arises by Franchisor or a representative of the System Fund or Cooperative.

1) The System Fund. The System Fund will be maintained and administered by Franchisor or a third
party designated by Franchisor. Franchisor will direct all advertising, promotional and marketing programs
with sole discretion over the concepts, materials and media used in the related programs and their placement
allocation media purchases. PJ’s may create a Franchise Advisory Board (“Board”) made up of franchisees
elected by the franchisee community. The Board will serve in an advisory capacity role only to provide
input on advertising programs and policies and other new and existing programs of Franchisor. Franchisor
will have the authority to change or dissolve the Board at any time without reason. The funds collected are
intended to maximize general public recognition and acceptance of the Proprietary Marks and the overall
PJ’s Brand Awareness for the benefit of all Franchisees, and Franchisor is not obligated in administering the
funds to make expenditures for Franchisee which is equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee’s contribution
or to ensure that Franchisee or any particular franchisee or Cooperative benefits directly or is prorated from
expenditures by the System Fund. Franchisor does not have to spend any amount on advertising in
Franchisee’s area.

The System Fund will be used to meet costs of administering and preparing sales, advertising, promotional
and marketing activities. These costs may include creating, producing, placing, and conducting television,
radio, and print advertising campaigns; creating, producing, and distributing promotional materials for use
in the PJ’s Unit, like signs and posters, direct mail, promotional brochures, and outdoor billboard advertising;
marketing surveys and research; public relations activities; and employing advertising agencies and
consultants. The coverage of the media is local, regional, and national in scope. Franchisor will engage
outside marketing, advertising, and graphic design companies to perform and coordinate most of the
marketing and advertising activities listed above for PJ’s. All funds not spent will be kept for use the
following year.

All sums paid by Franchisee into the System Fund shall be kept in accounts separate from the other monies
of Franchisor and shall be used to defray reasonable general cost, administrative costs and overhead as
Franchisor may incur in activities reasonably included in the administration and direction of the System
Fund and advertising programs for Franchisee and the System. Franchisor or its designees shall maintain
separate bookkeeping accounts for the System Fund.
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A statement of the operations of the System Fund as shown on its books will be prepared annually and will
be made available to Franchisee upon written request. An audited statement will not be prepared.

Although the System Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, Franchisor maintains the right to
terminate the System Fund. The System Fund will not be terminated until all monies in the System Fund
have been expended for the purpose described above or returned to contributors on a prorated basis of their
contributions. Currently, there are no Franchisor-owned PJ’s Units. An affiliate of Franchisor owns 10 PJ’s
Units. All affiliate-owned PJ’s Units contribute to the System Fund on the same basis as other Franchisees.
If Franchisor owns PJ’s Units in the future, all Franchisor-owned PJ’s Units will contribute to the System
Fund on the same basis as other Franchisees.

In the 2649-2020 fiscal year, the actual expenditures broke down as follows:

Expenditure Percentage of Total Expenditures
Product Marketing 43%
Social Media 28%
Mass Media 3%
Sponsorships 3%
Menu Boards 2%
Public Relations 11%
Miscellaneous 2%
Website 1%
Administrative 7%
—— Produet Marketing——31%
ace Media 1009,
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Zero percent (0%) of System Fund expenditures was dedicated to soliciting new franchise sales.

(i1) Local Advertising Cooperatives. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, establish local marketing
cooperatives for the common benefit of all PJ’s franchisees. Franchisor has the right, in its sole discretion,
to designate any geographical area for purposes of establishing a regional marketing and promotional
cooperative (“Cooperative”), and to determine whether Franchisee must participate in a Cooperative. If a
Cooperative has been established applicable to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit at the time Franchisee begins
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operating, Franchisee must immediately become a member of that Cooperative. If a Cooperative applicable
to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit is established at any time during the term of Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement,
Franchisee must become a member of that Cooperative no later than 30 days after the date on which the
Cooperative begins operation. If the PJ’s Unit is within 50 miles of more than one Cooperative, Franchisee
is required to be a member of only one such Cooperative. The following provisions will apply to each
Cooperative:

a) Each member of the Cooperative must contribute 1% up to 3% percent of its weekly gress-net sales
for each and every week of its operations to the Cooperative (“Cooperative Fee”);

b) Each Cooperative will be organized and governed in a form and manner, and will commence
operation on a date, approved in advance by Franchisor;

c) Each Cooperative will be organized for the exclusive purpose of administering regional marketing
and advertising programs and developing, subject to Franchisor’s approval, standardized marketing
materials for use by the members in the local markingmarket;

d) All activities and contributions to the Cooperative shall be determined by a majority vote of the
members in the Cooperatives; and

e) No promotional or advertising plans or materials may be used by a Cooperative or furnished to its
members without PJ’s prior written approval. All such plans and materials shall be submitted to PJ’s
Marketlng Departrnent Attentlon Chlef Marketmg Ofﬁcer 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana

Franchisor may elect to payLrecelve all or a portlon of th%System—Fm&d—te—a Cooperatlve s fund If
Franchisor elects to do so an W - ativ
then Franchisor shall deposit these funds into the Svstern Fund and reserves the rlght to exercise sole

decmon rnakmg power over the System funds—@)—éa—@eeperaﬂv&ee&ses—f&ne&eﬂﬂ}g—er—m}—aﬂ—tmp&sse

Affiliates of Franchisor that operate PJ’s Units must contribute to the Cooperative on the same basis as
other members. Because of market conditions and location, certain franchise and license agreements with
franchisees or licensees with major food service organizations or atypical locations may or may not require
a contribution or the same amount of contribution to the Cooperative.

It is anticipated that all contributions to and earnings of the System Fund and Cooperatives will be
expending during the taxable year in which the contributions and earnings are received. If excess amounts
remain in the System Fund or any Cooperative at the end of the taxable year, all expenditures in the
following taxable year shall be made first out of accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of
earnings in the current year, and finally from contributions. (Franchise Agreement-Article 6.3).

Local Advertising. For the grand opening of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, Franchisee must spend a minimum of
$7,500-10,000 in local advertising, marketing, and brand building depending on the geographical location
of the PJ’s Unit. (Franchise Agreement-Article 6.5). If the PJ’s Unit is within a 75-mile radius of an existing
PJ’s Unit, Franchisee is required to spend $7,500.00 to promote the grand opening. If the PJ’s Unit is more
than 75 miles from an existing PJ’s Unit (“Pioneer Market”), Franchisee is required to spend $10,000.00
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on the grand opening advertisement. If the PJ’s Unit is in a Pioneer Market, Franchisor will spend an
additional $5,000.00 to promote the grand opening. Franchisor’s Pioneer Market advertising spend will not
be deducted from any national advertising fund.

All advertising, promotional and marketing activities conducted by Franchisee in Franchisee’s local market
area will be subject to the prior approval of Franchisor. Franchisee must submit to Franchisor (by personal
delivery or certified mail, return receipt requested) all local advertising, promotional and marketing plans
and samples of all local advertising materials not prepared or previously approved by Franchisor. If
Franchisee does not receive written disapproval within 15 business days after the date of receipt by
Franchisor, Franchisee’s plans and materials will be deemed approved. If any plans or materials previously
approved by Franchisor are later disapproved, Franchisee must discontinue their use promptly upon notice
from Franchisor.

Gift Cards and Promotional Programs.

Franchisee must participate in Franchisor program for gift cards and gift certificates (“Gift Cards”).
Franchisee must offer Gift Cards to Franchisee’s customers and honor all Gift Cards presented to Franchisee
as payment for products, regardless of whether the Gift Card was issued by Franchisee’s or another PJ’s
Unit. Franchisee must sell, issue, and redeem Gift Cards in the manner described in the Manual or otherwise
in writing by a third-party service provider.

Unless otherwise provided by state law, upon the expiration of any Gift Card all unused funds shall become
the property of Franchisor and at the Franchisors discretion, unused funds may be distributed to
participating Franchisees.

Franchisee must pay the monthly fees that may be required by the vendor of the Gift Card system. The
current fees are described in Item 6 and may be periodically revised. Franchisee may not sell, issue, or

redeem gift certificates other than gift cards approved by Franchisor in writing.

Customer Loyalty Program(s).

Franchisee must participate in Franchisor customer loyalty program(s) designated by the Franchisor.
Franchisee must pay fees associated with the loyalty program(s).

Labor Management and Inventory Management Program(s).

Franchisee must utilize the labor management and inventory management program(s) designated by the
Franchisor. Franchisee must pay fees associated with the labor management and inventory management
programs separately.

Mobile Application Platform.

Franchisee must participate in Franchisor’s mobile application designated by the Franchisor. Franchisee
must pay fees associated with the mobile application.

Computer Systems.

Computer Hardware & Software. Franchisee must purchase the POS system currently approved by PJ’s, or
other POS system that Franchisor may require in the future. (Franchise Agreement-Article 18.4). The POS
system must be purchased from a Franchisor’s approved supplier. Various manufacturers provide
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reasonably equivalent POS systems that perform the same functions; however, the use of any other POS
system must be approved in advance by Franchisor. The POS System and network must be secure and PCI
compliant to protect customer credit card information. Optional equipment and/or software upgrades are
also available for additional fees. Units with a drive-thru must have two POS systems. Franchisor will have
unlimited independent access to Franchisee’s POS system data, including receipts, reports, and sales
information. (Franchise Agreement-Article 11.3). Franchisee will be provided with specifications and
initial training in Franchisee’s POS system, but Franchisor is under no obligation to assist Franchisee in
obtaining the above items. If the POS system must be upgraded or updated, Franchisee agrees to pay all
reasonable and necessary expenses, fees, and costs. (Franchise Agreement-Article 18.4). The estimated cost
for upgrades or updates to the POS system is $1,000 - $2,000. Franchisee must purchase or lease all
equipment necessary to accept designated credit or debit cards. The estimated cost for a full-service register
system is $1,000 - $2,000. This price may decrease or increase depending on the model chosen. POS system
training is mandatory and is included in the system price. Franchisee may be required to purchase a back-
office computer system including a network switch and laser printer. The estimate for the back-office
computer system is $500 - $1000. Franchisee may elect to purchase a video monitoring system. The
estimated cost of the video monitoring system is $1,000 - $2,500.

Electronic Funds Transfer. Franchisees are required to pay all fees due under the Franchise Agreement by
automated bank draft. Franchisee must sign the Direct Debit Authorization form (Exhibit D) before opening
for PJ’s Unit. This form allows Franchisor to draft royalty payments, System Fees, training fees or other
fees due under Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement directly from Franchisee’s bank account.

Manuals.

Franchisor will loan Franchisee a copy of our Operating Manual and any other publications (“Manuals’)
that contain mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, and procedures. These Manuals are
confidential and remain our property. Franchisor will modify the Manuals, but the modifications will not
alter Franchisee’s status and rights under the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement-Article 4.2). The
tables of contents of all Franchisor’s Manuals are attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit G.

Training Program.

TRAINING PROGRAM
Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom On-the-job Location
Training Training
Management Training 1520 - 30 25-30-50 Greater Metrq New
Orleans, Louisiana
Field Training 5-20 - 830 3530 - 7250 | Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit
. - Franchisee’s State or
Additional Tralnlgg (Management 10 - 20 10 - 20 Greater Metro New
and Field) .
Orleans, Louisiana

Our training programs are under the direction of Mr. Patrick Shaheen. Mr. Shaheen has over 20 years of
operations training experience. Mr. Shaheen’s employment background is described in Item 2 of this
Disclosure Document.
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The instructional materials for our training programs include videos, handouts, the Operations Manual, on-
line computer training, and test that Franchisor may require Franchisee and Franchisee’s managers and
employees to take.

Initial Management Training. Franchisee must attend and complete, to Franchisor exclusive satisfaction,
PJ’s initial management-training program in Greater Metro New Orleans, Louisiana, before Franchisee
opens Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise Agreement-Articles 3.1, 3.2). Franchisor initial management
training program is mandatory and conducted monthly or bi-monthly, depending upon the number of
attendees, at Franchisor headquarters in Greater Metro New Orleans, Louisiana. Franchisee will be
scheduled to attend the program after Franchisee complete site selection and within a reasonable time before
Franchisee’s scheduled opening date. The initial management training is approximately five to eleven days,
depending on the size of the class and rate of material covered, consisting of hands-on training and classes
averaging eight hours per day plus additional homework assignments. Instructional materials include
written training modules, the PJ’s Confidential Operations Manual and actual products, books, and
equipment.

Field Training. Franchisor will send one Franchisor’s representative to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, at no cost to
Franchisee, for on-site training and assistance when Franchisee opens Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. (Franchise
Agreement-Articles 3.5, 17.1). The length of time the representative is on-site may vary, but it is expected
to be five to ten days. On-site training and assistance include additional food preparation training,
consultation and training on hiring of personnel, training of personnel, purchasing, and inventory
management, product promotion and merchandising, bookkeeping and report management, analysis of
sales and products, and other matters necessary to the opening and operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

Franchisor may require any of Franchisee’s principals or employees who become actively involved in the
management of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit to attend and satisfactorily complete the required training programs.
(Franchise Agreement-Article 3.2).

Franchisor also offers additional optional management and field training programs, including both
advanced and refresher training, for Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees. Franchisor may designate
certain additional management and field training courses for Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees as
mandatory either in franchisee’s state or in Greater Metro New Orleans, Louisiana. Franchisor may not
mandate more than two additional training sessions in a 12-month period. Additional training sessions shall
not extend beyond five days. (Franchise Agreement-Article 3.5).

As discussed in Item 6, Franchisee must pay all personal expenses incurred by Franchisee or Franchisee’s
employees attending training programs, including costs and expenses of transportation, lodging, meals,
wages and employee benefits and any training materials (other than those materials provided by
Franchisor). (Franchise Agreement- Article 3). This applies for both mandatory and optional training
programs. At the present time, PJ’s provides the materials and there is no fee for any mandatory or optional
training program, except as described in the Franchise Agreement. However, PJ’s reserves the right to
charge a reasonable fee in the future for training courses offered after Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit opens.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets
that we own, from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, we will
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not generally establish another Traditional PJ’s Unit, neither franchisee nor company owned, within two
(2) driving miles of your Traditional PJ’s Unit.

Franchisor retains the right, in our sole discretion, and without compensating Franchisee or seeking
Franchisee’s approval, to: (i) own, acquire, establish and/or operate, and license others to establish and
operate, businesses using the Proprietary Marks, the System or any variation of the Proprietary Marks and
the System, at any location other than Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit on any terms and conditions that Franchisor
deems appropriate; (ii) sell or distribute, at retail or wholesale, directly or indirectly, or license others to
sell or distribute, at any location, any products which bear any proprietary marks, through any distribution
channel or venue Franchisor deems appropriate; and (iii) to take any other action that Franchisor is not
expressly prohibited from taking under the Franchise Agreement.

Neither Franchisor nor an affiliate either operates or plans to operate or franchise businesses under a
different trademark that will sell goods or services that are the same or similar to those the Franchisee will
sell.

Franchisee shall operate Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit only from a specified location approved by Franchisor.
Franchisor will designate a general geographic area, such as a city or sector of a city (“General Area”)
solely for the purpose of limiting the area within which Franchisee may seek a site location for Franchisee’s
PJ’s Unit. Under the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee may sell proprietary products and services to retail
customers who live anywhere but who choose to use Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Without prior approval by
Franchisor, Franchisee may not engage in any promotional activities or sell proprietary products or similar
products or services, whether directly or indirectly, through or on the Internet, the World Wide Web, or any
other similar proprietary or common carrier electronic delivery system; through catalogs or other mail order
devices sent or directed to customers or prospective customers located anywhere; or by telecopy or other
telephonic or electronic communications, directed to or received from customers or prospective customers
located anywhere. Franchisee must obtain the prior approval of Franchisor for all advertising, promotional
and marketing activities conducted by Franchisee in Franchisee’s local market area.

Franchisor also reserves the right to negotiate options, rights of first refusal, and other similar rights to
acquire additional franchises upon request by a franchisee. If Franchisee desires to obtain expansion rights
to an area, Franchisee should consider applying to Franchisor for the rights to that area. Franchisor will
consider a Franchisee’s request for the establishment of additional franchised outlets as long as franchisee
is not in default of its current Franchise Agreement and Franchisor determines that it is in Franchisor’s best
interest to do so.

Relocation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit requires the prior written approval of Franchisor. Franchisor will
approve the relocation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit only if Franchisee lose the right to do business at
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit through no fault of Franchisee’s own or Franchisor determines that it is in its best
interest to allow the PJ’s Unit to be relocated. Franchisee must enter into a new franchise agreement to
establish additional PJ’s Units.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS
Franchisor identifies its System by means of certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, and logos
(“Proprietary Marks”). The Franchise Agreement grants Franchisee the non-exclusive right to use the

Proprietary Marks and any other Proprietary Marks that we may use during the term of the Franchise
Agreement in operation of the System. Franchisee’s use of the Proprietary Marks is limited solely to the
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operation of the PJ’s Unit at its approved location and only in accordance with the System. The following
principal Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO”):

Mark RegSi:i'lig:il(\)II(l).No. Class of Mark Re]g)izziaotgon
Pr' 76696505 US 100 101 04, | 2232000
Santa’s Blend 73 6664 913673657 [IJCS (())3106 6/23/2009
PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans 738393257036560 Us II()CO 01%51 102, 11/13/2007
PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans 85;‘1250805361 USI CIOO(;‘ ?{01 3/6/2018
PJ’s Coffee and Wine ;893275143396,2 Us II()CO 01%51 102, 2/8/2005
PI's Coffee 7%%275123921 Us 110C0 01%51' 102. 2/8/2005
PJ’s Coffee and Wine Bar ;8932751433986 Us II()CO 01%51 102, 2/8/2005
The Coffee New Orleans Loves 72 6742460928 15 5 USI C10004 ?1’01 6/17/2003
Southern Wedding Cake 74 6077027249349 [IJCS %1% 12/20/2011
New Orleans Roast 74 607902725317 [IJCS (())3106 1/31/2012
PJ’s Coffgerlcgeca"rll"sea of New 857102570699595 U511Co(3)01'()1. 1/24/2017
PJ’s Velvet Ice 8571()2571;)(}5 [}g 34(1)6 1/24/2017
PJ's Carnival Blend it oS o 9/23/2014

All required affidavits have been filed for the Proprietary Marks.

The following Proprietary Marks have been renewed: “PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans” (Reg. No. 3335066);
“PJ’s Coffee and Wine” (Reg. No. 29254360); “PJ’s Coffee and Wine Bar” (Reg. No. 2925438); “PJ’s
Coffee” (Reg. No. 2925437); and “The Coffee New Orleans Loves” (Reg. No. 2726985).
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Franchisor also claims common law rights to all of its Proprietary Marks on the basis that these marks have
been used in interstate commerce.

There are currently no effective material determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office,
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, or the Trademark Administrator of any state or any court. There is no
pending cancellation proceeding at the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board (. However, there is no pending
material litigation involving the Proprietary Marks listed in this Item which are relevant to their use in
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

There are currently no agreements in effect, which significantly limit the rights of Franchisor to use or
license the use of its Proprietary Marks in any manner material to Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

Franchisor will defend and hold Franchisee harmless from any claims of trademark infringement for the
use of the Proprietary Marks if Franchisee promptly gives written notice to Franchisor and tenders the full
defense of the claims against Franchisee to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have complete control of the legal
action and may settle the claims at any time without providing notice to Franchisee. Franchisor has taken
and will take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect the ownership and validity of the
Proprietary Marks. Franchisee must sign any documents deemed necessary by Franchisor or its counsel to
obtain protection for the Proprietary Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability.
Franchisee may not contest the validity or ownership of the Proprietary Marks. If litigation involving the
Proprietary Marks is instituted or threatened against Franchisee, Franchisee must promptly notify
Franchisor and must cooperate fully with Franchisor in defending or settling the litigation.

Franchisor does not warrant or guarantee that it has the exclusive right to use the mark Franchisor or any
other of its Proprietary Marks. If for any reason it becomes necessary or desirable for Franchisor to quit
using the Proprietary Marks, Franchisor may substitute different proprietary marks. Franchisor and
Franchisee may then operate under these other Proprietary Marks. Franchisor is not obligated to provide
Franchisee with any other remedy.

Franchisor does not actually know of any superior prior rights or of any infringing uses that could materially
affect Franchisee’s use of the Proprietary Marks.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
No patents or copyrights are material to the franchise.

Franchisee does not receive the right to use an item covered by a patent or copyright, but Franchisee can
use the proprietary information in PJ’s Manuals. The table of contents of all PJ’s Manuals are attached to
this Disclosure Document as Exhibit G. Although Franchisor has not filed an application for a copyright
registration for the Manuals, Franchisor claims a copyright and the information is proprietary.

Franchisee must not, during or after the term of the Franchise Agreement, communicate, divulge, or use for
the benefit of anyone else any confidential information, knowledge or know-how concerning our method
of operation of a PJ’s Unit or the System that may be communicated to Franchisee or of which Franchisee
may have knowledge through performance of the System. All confidential information, information,
matters, knowledge, know-how and techniques which Franchisor designates as confidential will be deemed
confidential for the purposes of the franchise, unless and until Franchisee demonstrates that the information
has become public knowledge.
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Franchisee and any employee having access to confidential information must sign a confidentiality
agreement, that will maintain the confidentially of information received during the term of the Franchise
Agreement and/or the term of employment. A copy of the Confidentiality Agreement is attached to this
Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit B.

ITEM 15

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Participation in Business. As an owner of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, Franchisee does not have to conduct on-
premises supervision or to personally participate in the direct operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. However,
Franchisor strongly recommends that Franchisee is actively involved in the operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit. Franchisee or Franchisee’s designated manager must devote full-time to the development of
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, unless otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor. Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit must at
all times be under the direct, full-time, on-location supervision of Franchisee or a trained and competent
employee acting as a full-time manager who has satisfactorily completed Franchisor initial management
training program. Franchisee’s manager must sign a confidentiality agreement to maintain the
confidentiality of the information described in Item 14 and may have to sign an agreement that conforms
to the covenants not to compete described in Item 17.

Other Written Agreement. If Franchisee is a business entity, each individual holding in excess of 15% of
the total voting power of Franchisee’s ownership interests (including each individual holding in excess of
20% of the total voting power of any business entity having a controlling interest in Franchisee) must
personally guarantee Franchisee’s obligations under Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement. If Franchisee has
personally signed the Franchise Agreement and wishes to transfer Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement to a
business entity, Franchisee must enter into a personal guaranty agreement regardless of Franchisee’s
ownership interest in the business entity. The Guaranty Agreement is attached to this disclosure document
as Exhibit C. Any person holding an ownership interest in Franchisee’s business entity will have to sign a
confidentiality agreement and non-compete as described in Items 14 and 17. The Confidentiality Agreement
is attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit B.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL
Franchisee must offer and sell only those products and services that Franchisor has approved.

Franchisee must offer all product and services at retail that Franchisor designates as required for all PJ’s
Units, including new products or services that Franchisor develops in the future. There are no limits on
Franchisor’s right to change the types of products and services or add new products and services. Franchisee
may not offer or sell any other products or services without the prior written consent of Franchisor.
Franchisee must discontinue offering any products or services, whether or not previously authorized by
Franchisor, promptly upon written notice from Franchisor. Franchisee must provide for equipment or other
items reasonably necessary to support new products or services introduced to enhance the value of the
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All PJ’s Units must offer Franchisor-approved products and services as designated in the Manuals or in
other writings.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. Franchisee
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Section in
Franchise or
Provision Other Summary
Agreement
a. Length of the
term of the Article 14.1 Ten years from date the PJ’s Unit opens.
Franchise
Franchisee’s renewal rights permit Franchisee to
remain as a franchise after the initial term of
Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement expires. If
Franchisee wishes to renew and Franchisee
satisfies the required pre-conditions to renew,
Franchisor will offer Franchisee the option to
b. Renewal or renew the Franchise Agreement for twe-three
extension of the Article 14.1 additional terms of ten years each. Franchisee
term must sign our then-current Franchise Agreement

for the renewal term and this new agreement may
have different terms and conditions (ineluding
excluding higherroyalty and/eradvertisingfees-
said fees will remain the same) from the
agreement that covered Franchisee’s original
term.

Franchisee must have a good record of
compliance with the Manuals and be in
compliance with the Franchise Agreement;
satisfy all monetary obligations to Franchisor;
give written notice; remodel PJ’s Unit; attend
training; sign release; and sign new Franchise
Agreement. Franchisee will be required to sign a
new Franchise Agreement that may have
materially different terms and conditions from
the original contract.

c. Requirements
for Franchisee to Article 14.1
renew or extend

New Orleans Brew, LLC 42
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/26262021 - Amended 4/21/2021




Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other
Agreement

Summary

d. Termination
by Franchisee

None

Not Applicable.

e. Termination
by Franchisor
without cause

None

Not Applicable.

f. Termination
by Franchisor
with cause

Article 14

Franchisor can terminate for cause only if
Franchisee defaults.

g. “Cause”
defined- curable
defaults

Article 14.3

Curable defaults: failure, refusal or neglect to
promptly pay any monies owed to Franchisor;
failure to submit financial or other information as
required to Franchisor; failure to maintain
standards specified by Franchisor or manuals;
failure, refusal or neglect to obtain required prior
written approval or consent; misuse or
unauthorized use of Proprietary Marks or other
impairment of the goodwill associated therewith,
or Franchisor’s rights therein; commencement or
conducting of any business operation, or
marketing of any product, under a name or mark
which, in Franchisor’s reasonable opinion, is
confusingly similar to Franchisor’s Marks;
default, without cure after the applicable grace
period, under any lease, sublease, sub-sublease,
mortgage or deed of trust covering the location;
failure to procure or maintain insurance required
under the Franchise Agreement; default in the
performance of any term, condition or obligation
in payment of indebtedness to landlord or
sublandlord, distributors or suppliers, or others,
arising out of the purchase of inventory, supplies
or purchase of lease of equipment, and if any
default is not cured within 30 days after written
notice from Franchisor.

h. “Cause”
defined- non-
curable defaults

Article 14.2

Non-curable defaults: Franchisee knowingly or
intentionally maintains false books or records, or
submits any false report or payment to
Franchisor; Franchisee’s conduct is so contrary
to the agreement and the Manuals as to constitute
an imminent danger to the public health; selling
unauthorized products to the public after notice
of default and continuing to sell these products,
whether or not Franchisee has cured the default
after one or more notices; the conviction of a
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other
Agreement

Summary

felony, or a crime involving moral turpitude, or
any other crime or offense that is reasonably
likely, in the sole reasonable opinion of
Franchisor, to have an adverse effect on the
System, Proprietary Marks, or the goodwill
associated with Franchisor’s interest in each of
them by Franchisee, or Franchisee’s controlling
or operating shareholders or members, if
Franchisee is a limited liability company;
intentional disclosure or use of the contents of
the Manuals, trade secrets or confidential or
proprietary information, excluding acts of
independent employees or others not under
Franchisee’s control; repeatedly committing
defaults under any provisions of this Agreement
three or more occasions in any 12-month period,
or Six Or more occasions in any consecutive 24-
month period, even if Franchisee cured each
prior default, and even if Franchisee would
otherwise be given an opportunity to cure the
current default; ceasing to operate or otherwise
abandoning Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit without
consent or, upon destruction of Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit, failure to rebuild and resume operation
within a reasonable time, unless excused in
Agreement.

1. Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination/non-
renewal

Article 15

Obligations include: immediately ceasing to
operate as a Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit; discontinue
use of Proprietary Marks; return Manuals, other

materials, and confidential information; assign
telephone numbers, if requested; payment of
amounts due Franchisor; assign lease if
requested; de-identify PJ’s Unit; maintain
confidentiality of information.

j. Assignment of
contract by
Franchisor

Article 13.1

No restriction on Franchisor’s right to assign.

k. “Transfer” by
Franchisee-
defined

Article 13.1

Includes transfer of contract, assets, or ownership
interest.

l. Franchisor
approval of
transfer by
Franchisee

Article 13.1

Franchisor has the right to approve all transfers,
except a transfer to an heir or beneficiary after
Franchisee’s death or mental incapacity, but will
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or

Agreement

Other

Summary

not unreasonably withhold approval, as long as
certain conditions are satisfied.

m. Conditions
for Franchisor

Articles 13.1

Franchisee may transfer Franchisee’s interest to a
corporation or other legal entity as long as
Franchisee retains ownership of a majority of the
total voting power. Franchisee may transfer to a
third party if: Franchisor does not exercise its
right of first refusal fifteen days before each
direct or indirect transfer of an interest in this
Agreement; or if Franchisee, upon Franchisor’s
request, furnishes Franchisor with an estoppel
agreement indicating all causes of action, if any,
that Franchisee may have against Franchisor, or
if none exist, a list of all shareholders or partners
having an interest in this Agreement or in
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, the percentage interest of
each shareholder or partner, and a list of all
officers and directors; Franchisee is not in
default; all of Franchisee’s then-due monetary

a%?;ﬁ:?;r()f and 13.2 ob.liga-tions have been paid in full and cher
obligations met; Franchisee and Franchisee’s
shareholders or members have executed a
general release under seal of all claims against
Franchisor; Franchisee satisfies all of
Franchisor’s then-current requirements for new
Franchisees or holders of an interest in a
Franchise; Franchisee has assumed the
Agreement in a written assumption agreement
approved by Franchisor, or has agreed to at
closing; Franchisee, Franchisee’s manager or
other employees responsible for the operation of
the Franchise have satisfactorily completed
Franchisor’s training program; Franchisee
executes other documents as Franchisor may
require, including Franchise Agreement.
n. Franchisor’s
right of ﬁrst. . Franchisor can match any offer for Franchisee’s
refusal to acquire Article 13.2 , .
., R PJ’s Unit.
Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit
o. Franchisor’s Not
option to . Not Applicable.
Applicable.
purchase
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Section in
Franchise or

Provision Other Summary
Agreement
Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit
p. Death or Franchisee’s estate may transfer Franchisee’s
disability of Article 10 interest to Franchisee’s heirs or beneficiaries, or
Franchisee a third party approved by Franchisor.
No involvement in similar business anywhere;
cannot divert business to a competitor;
q. Non- isee shall 1 K to empl
" Franchisee shall not employ or seek to employ,
competition . . . .
. Articles 10 directly or indirectly, any person serving in an
covenants during . . . .\
and 11 executive, managerial or operational position
the term of the . . ; .
. who is at the time or was at any time during the
Franchise S .
prior six months employed by Franchisor,
without Franchisor’s prior written consent.
. Non No involvement in similar business for 24
cofn etition months at a site within a radius of 50 miles of
covengn s after any of Franchisee’s former PJ’s Units or within
. Article 10 20 miles of any other PJ’s Units or Distribution
the Franchise is . 7 . R
. Points then existing, unless Franchisor gives its
terminated or . . i . .
expires prior written consent; no competing with or
soliciting customers of PJ’s or other PJ’s Units.
No modifications generally but standards,
s. Modification . specifications, Manuals, products and services,
Article 22 . . . .
of the agreement Proprietary Marks and other items specified in
the Franchise Agreement are subject to change.
Only the terms of Franchisee’s Franchise
t. Agreement are binding (subject to state law).
Integration/merg Article 22 Any representations or promises outside of the
er clause disclosure document and Franchise Agreement
may not be enforceable.
- D1§p ute Franchisee and Franchisor resolve disputes or
resolution by . . . PO .
o Article 20 disagreements in a non-judicial alternative
arbitration or . . o
- dispute resolution format through arbitration.
mediation
v. Choice of . Arbitration must be in Louisiana, unless
Article 20 o . .
forum individual state law directs otherwise.
. . Louisiana law applies, unless individual state law
w. Choice of law Article 20 pp

directs otherwise.

ITEM 18

PUBLIC FIGURES

Franchisor does not use any public figures to promote our franchise.
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ITEM 19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet Franchisee is considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

New Orleans Brew, LLC does not have any company-owned Units as of January 1, 20202021. An affiliate
of New Orleans Brew, LLC owns ten (10) PJ’s Units as of January 1, 26262021.

Historical Financial Performance Representation about PJ’s Existing Units.

PJ’s Unit Criteria — Average Gross-Net RevenugeSales.

The PJ’s Unit must have: (1) opened on or before January 1, 20492020; and must have (2) reported gress
net revente-sales for the entire one-year period ending December 31, 20492020. The Financial Performance
Representation includes domestic locations only.

“Annual Gress-Net ReventesSales” is defined as the amount of sales of all products and services sold in,
on, about, from, or from such other place for PJ’s Unit, whether for cash or on a charge, credit or time basis,
including the reasonable market value of any goods or services sold or traded in any barter or trade
transaction, without reserve or deduction for inability or failure to collect. “Annual Gress—Net
RewvenuesSales” is intended to include income of every kind and nature related to the Franchisees PJ’s Unit.
“Annual Gress-Net RevenuesSales” shall not include the amount of any excise or sales tax levied on retail
sales and payable over to the appropriate governmental authority, nor shall “Annual Gress—Net
RevenuesSales” include amounts deducted for over-rings, refunds, allowances, er-discounts to customers
(including coupon sales)_or tips received from customers.

“Gress-Net Sales” is defined as the grand total of all sales transactions reported in the specified period
minus discounts, refunds,-and applicable sales taxes and tips received from customers.

“Average Gress-Net Sales” is defined as the total Gress-Net Sales for the category divided by the number
of PJ’s Units featured in the category.

“Median Gress-Net Sales” is defined as the Gress-Net Sales of the unit that is halfway or middlemost in the
category.

A “Traditional Model” or “Special Contracts Traditional Model” PJ’s Unit may be located in either a
freestanding building or an in-line retail plaza space generally between 550 to 1,800 square feet, with ample
parking, drive-thra-faeilities;-good visibility, and visible signage. A Traditional Model or Special Contracts
Traditional Model may or may not feature a drive-thru. —A Traditional Model or Special Contracts
Traditional Model will employ approximately 10 to 16 people.

A “Non-traditional Model” or a “Special Contracts Non-traditional Model” generally occupies 250 to 1,000
square feet of space possibly with a common eating area and/or common kitchen (i.e. airports, shopping
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malls, sports arenas, hotels, university campuses, health care facilities, government & military facilities).
The space may be either owned by Franchisee or leased from a third party.

PJ’s Unit Results.

As of January 1, 20202021, PJ’s Coffee had a total of 95-110 PJ’s Units in the United States, three (3) PJ’s
Units in Vietnam, and one (1) PJ’s Unit in Kuwait. Of the total 95-110 domestic PJ’s Units, 76-56 were
open for a full 12 months or greater and reported gressrevenuenet sales for the entire 12-month period. The
remaining PJ’s Units consist of $9-54 PJ’s Units that were either not open for 12 months or did not report
gross—reventenet sales for the entire 12-month period. Specifically, fewrfive (45) PJ’s Units closed in
20492020: and eight-forty-nine (849) PJ’s Units were not open for a full 12-month period in 20492020:-and

PP Uni od 2019,
We comprled the annual gress—net reveﬁues—sales for 56 th%tep—l—@%—represe&tmg—&ef—th#é—l’—]—s—@mts—

th&beﬁern%@%&eprese&tmg—&e#&r#é—%—s—@mﬁ%ﬂ#é—wer&ﬁanchrsed PJ ’s Unrts for the calendar year
20492020. The #6-56 franchised PJ’s Units reflect three of the four types of franchised units (e.g.,

Traditional Models, Non-traditional Models, Special Contracts Traditional Models, and Special Contracts
Non-traditional Models). The 76-56 PJ’s Units represented does not include a Special Contracts Traditional

Model as there are none operatrng Ih%thfeee&remﬁpe&eﬁfrmrehrsed—ur&m—arﬁepreserﬁed—r&eaeh—eﬁthe

P> Vs

menu—eﬁfermg—The Tradrtronal Models have been separated 1nto two sub models Tradrtlonal PJ s Unrts

featuring a drive-thru and Traditional PJ’s Units not featuring a drive-thru.

the-Average Sales 0%
Bottom10% $94.047 3-138% $93,565 $55,253--$141,758
Fotal PJs NumberofNen- Number-of Number-of Traditional
Category YnitsPer traditional PFs Fraditional P¥s PFsUnits-with-aDrive-
Category Units Units thru
Fep1H0% 3 3-138% 5462% 5-/100%
Fep25% 19 6132% 13-168% 10--77%
Fep-56% 38 9/ 24% 29/ 76% 19-/66%
Bottom-50% 38 18447% 20-/53% 8-140%
Bottom25% 19 H4-174% 5/26% +120%
Bottom10% 3 8/100% 0-+-0% 0-+-0%
2020 Average Net Sales by Category - Traditional PJ’s Units with a Drive-thru
Number Number and
of Units in | Average Net | Percentage that Median Net | Lowest and Highest in
Category Category Sales Attained or Sales the Category
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Exceeded the

Average
Top 10% 3 $909.114 2/67% $913,387 $842,505 / $971.449
Top 25% 7 $839.513 3/43% $831,622 $758,811 /$971.449
Top 50% 14 $737.159 7 /50% $730.380 $557.492 / $971.499
Bottom 50% 14 $420,360 7/50% $419.899 $262.375 / $557.492
Bottom 25% 7 $343.167 4/57% $346.162 $262.375 / $409.568
Bottom 10% 3 $294.721 2/67% $305,708 $262.375 / $316.079

2020 Average Net Sales by Category - Traditional PJ’s Units without a Drive-thru

Number and
Percentage that
Number Attained or
of Units in | Average Net Exceeded the Median Net | Lowest and Highest in
Category Category Sales Average Sales the Category
Top 10% 2 $528.846 1/50% $528.846 $505,654 / $552.,037
Top 25% 4 $500,543 2 /50% $502,164 $445,807 / $552,037
Top 50% 7 $471,170 3/43% $445.806 $416,791 / $552,037
Bottom 50% 7 $284.,067 4/57% $300,110 $109,681 / $395.977
Bottom 25% 4 $217,235 2/50% $229,576 $109,681 /$300,110
Bottom 10% 2 $155,497 1/50% $155,497 $109,681 /$201,313

2020 Average Net Sales by Category - Non-traditional PJ’s Units without a Drive-thru

Number and
Percentage that
Number Attained or
of Units in | Average Net Exceeded the Median Net | Lowest and Highest in
Category Category Sales Average Sales the Category
Top 10% 2 $728.860 1/50% $728.860 $690,130 / $767.590
Top 25% 4 $542,149 2/50% $525,766 $349,473 / $767,590
Top 50% 8 $385,784 2/25% $340,999 $131.,455/$767.590
Bottom 50% 8 $82.634 4/50% $77.406 $42,755 / $131.455
Bottom 25% 4 $57.341 2/50% $57.519 $42,755 / $71,572
Bottom 10% 2 $46.758 1/50% $46,758 $42.755 /850,761

The average gress—net revenue-sales for all 76-56 franchised PJ’s Units was $434,273438,399 for the
calendar year 20492020. The median for all 76-56 franchised PJ’s Units was $423,463423,511 for the
calendar year 20492020.

PJ’s Unit Criteria — Historical Average Unit Volume.

New Orleans Brew, LLC 49
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021




For each Period of analysis below, the PJ’s Unit must have reported net sales for the entire year period
ending December 31, 2018, December 31, 2019, and December 31, 2020 respectively. The Financial
Performance Representation includes domestic PJ’s Units only.

The figures below provide the average net sales generated by PJ’s Units, by model over the course of a
calendar year for the three previous calendar years: 2018, 2019 and 2020. The figures below were calculated
using the information from sales reports submitted by the Franchisee and/or information obtained from PJ’s

franchisees’ point of sale software, which gathers PJ’s Units net sales and other data.

There are no Non-traditional PJ’s Units featuring a drive-thru.

Average Net Sales by Year- Traditional PJ's Units with a Drive-thru
Number Number and Percentage
of Units in | Average Net that Attained or Median Net | Lowest and Highest
Year Category Sales Exceeded the Average Sales in the Category
2020 27 $579.547 13 /48% $557.493 $262.375 / $971,449
2019 26 $534,181 11/42% $467.036 $242.218 / $946,741
2018 20 $520,179 11/55% $538.924 $217.054 / $901,929
Average Net Sales by Year - Traditional PJ's Units without a Drive-thru
Number Number and Percentage
of Units in | Average Net that Attained or Median Net | Lowest and Highest
Year Category Sales Exceeded the Average Sales in the Category
2020 14 $377.619 9/64% $406,384 $109.681 / $552037
2019 23 $409.,953 11/48% $409,004 $162,139/$647,541
2018 23 $398.997 13/57% $410.163 $154,109 / $614,860
Average Net Sales by Year - Non-traditional PJ's Units without a Drive-thru
Number Number and Percentage
of Units in | Average Net that Attained or Median Net | Lowest and Highest
Year Category Sales Exceeded the Average Sales in the Category
2020 15 $241,059 6/40% $131.455 $42,755 / $767,590
2019 27 $358.783 10/ 37% $207.322 $55,253 / $1,399,677
2018 23 $392.621 9/39% $312.161 $70.533 / $1,370,341

PJ’s Unit Criteria — Historical Same Store Sales Growth/Decline.

The same store sales growth/decline figures below compare the gress-net revenue-sales generated by PJ’s

Units over the course of a calendar year with the gress-net revenue-sales generated by the same PJ’s Units
during the prior calendar year. The figures below were calculated using the information from sales reports
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submitted by the Franchisee and/or information obtained from PJ’s franchisees’ point of sale software,
which gathers PJ’s Units gross-net revenuaes-sales and other data.

2019 — 2020 Same Store Sales Analysis by PJ’s Unit Model
PJ’s Unit Model Sales Stores Sales Total Number of Units Number of Units that
Growth/Decline over Measured in SSS Attained or Exceed
Previous Year Analysis Average SSS
Increase/Decrease
Traditional PJ's Unit 12.1% 24 9/38%
with a Drive-thru
Traditional PJ’s Units -11.6% 12 7/58%
without a Drive-thru
Non-traditional PJ’s -31.9% 11 5/45%
Units without a Drive-
thru

For each Period of Analysis below, the PJ’s Unit must have reported net sales for the entire two-year period
ending December 31, 2015, December 31, 2016, December 31, 2017, December 31, 2018, December 31,
2019 and December 31, 2020 respectively. The Financial Performance Representation includes domestic

locations only.

Same Store Sales Analysis for All PJ’s Unit Models
Same Store Sales Total Number of Units N:g:igi?gﬁ;:?
Period of Analysis Growth/Decline over Measured in SSS
. . Average SSS
Prior Year Analysis
Increase/Decrease
2014 - 2015 9.4% 54 19/35%
2015 -2016 8.8% 55 9/16%
2016 - 2017 6.6% 60 28 /47%
2017 - 2018 4.9% 63 27/ 43%
2018 - 2019 8.4% 60 29/ 48%
2019 — 2020 -2.5% 47 23 /49%

All the PJ’s Units whose data were used in the table above were open for at least 24 months during the
measured period.

General Comments.
The PJ’s Units represented herein operate in the following states: Arkansas, Colorado, Georgia, Louisiana,
Mississippi, South Carolina, Tennessee, and Texas.

The financial data was compiled prior to and during the time of the COVID-19 pandemic and the temporary
local and state governmental restrictions on operations.

Franchisor urges Franchisee to contact our existing Franchisees to make Franchisee’s own evaluation of
Franchisee’s potential PJ’s Unit’s success. Exhibit J to this franchise disclosure document contains the
names of all of our Franchisees and the address and telephone numbers of all Franchisees.

Some franchises sold these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance that
you will sell as much.
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Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to the prospective
franchisee upon reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial representation, New Orleans Brew, LLC does not make any financial
performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such
representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide
you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting David
Mesa, Jr., Chief Development Officer, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-Camellia
Beulevafd—Sw{HGQ—Ge*ﬁH}gfeeﬂ—ImH%% (985) 792-5776, the Federal Trade Commission, and the

appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
TABLE NO. 1

SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 206172018 TO 261492020

Outlets Outlets at
at the the End Net
Outlet Type Year Start of of the Change
the Year Year
20172018 6867 8168 +13+1
Franchised 20182019 8168 8981 +8+13
20192020 8189 89104 +815
20172018 10 10 10
Affiliate 20182019 10 10 10
Owned
20192020 10 10 10
20172018 7877 9178 +13+1
Total 20182019 9178 9991 +8+13
Outlets
20192020 9199 99114 +815
Explanatory Notes.

Note 1. The numbers in this table are as of December 31, 20492020.
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TABLE NO. 2

TRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR YEARS 20172018 TO 261492020

Number
State Year of
Transfers
20472018 14
Louisiana 20482019 45
20192020 52
20472018 14
Totals 20182019 45
20192020 52
Explanatory Notes.
Note 1. The numbers in this table are as of December 31, 20492020.
TABLE NO. 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 201472018 TO 26192020
DOMESTIC PJ’s UNITS
Ceased
Outlets | Termina- Non- 1 I
State ¥Year | atStart . R I ed-by tiens
Year k Franchisor | Other
Reasons
2017 1 0 0 0 0 0
Arkansas 2018 1 0 0 0 0 0
2019 1 0 0 0 0 0
Colorade 2017 0 0 0 0 0 0
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TR &

2048 0 1 0

2049 1 0 0

2047 56 4 0

FEouisiana 2018 58 9 0
2049 66 9 0

2047 0 0 0

Maryland | 2048 0 1 0
2049 1 0 0

2047 5 0 0

Mississippi | 2048 5 1 0
2049 5 2 0

2047 0 0 0

Tennessee 2018 9 9 0
2049 0 1 0

2047 3 0 0

Fexas 2048 2 2 0
2049 3 0 0

2047 65 4 0

TFotals 2048 66 4 0
2049 7—7 2 0
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Ceased
OQutlet Reacquir- | O Outlets
—utlets Outlets | Termina- Non- facquir- Pera- at End
State Year | at Start - ed by tions
E— Opened tions Renewals . of the
Year Franchisor Other
xear Year
Reasons

2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Alabama 2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2018 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Arkansas 2019 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2020 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

2018 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Colorado 2019 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Georgia 2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

2018 58 9 0 0 0 1 66

Louisiana | 2019 66 9 0 0 0 4 71
2020 71 4 0 0 0 4 71

2018 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Maryland | 2019 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2020 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
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2018 S 1 0 1 0 0 S
Mississippi | 2019 5 2 0 0 0 0 7
2020 7 3 0 0 0 0 10
2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
New York | 2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sad 019 | o 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tennessee | 2019 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2018 2 2 0 0 0 1 3
Texas 2019 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2020 3 5 0 0 0 0 8
2018 66 14 0 1 0 2 77
Totals 2019 71 12 0 0 0 4 85
2020 85 19 0 0 0 4 100
INTERNATIONAL PJ’s UNITS
Karwait 207 0 0 0 0 0 0
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2018 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2019 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2017 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Vietnam 2018 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2019 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2017 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Totals 2018 2 2 0 0 0 0 4

2019 4 0 0 0 0 0 4

2018 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Kuwait 2019 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2018 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

Vietnam 2019 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2020 3 1 0 0 0 1 3

2018 2 2 0 0 0 0 4

Totals 2019 4 0 0 0 0 0 4

2020 4 1 0 0 0 1 4

Explanatory Notes.

Note 1. The numbers in this table are as of December 31, 20492020.

Note 2. The name, business address, and business telephone number of each current Franchisee as of
December 31, 28492020, and the name, last known address, and telephone number of every Franchisee
who had a PJ’s Unit terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to
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do business under the Franchise Agreement during the most recent completed fiscal year or has not
communicated with Franchisor within ten weeks of December 31, 2649-2020 is attached is Exhibit J.

If Franchisee buys this Franchise, Franchisee’s contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
Franchisee leaves the franchise system.

Note 3. In some instances, current and former Franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak
openly about their experience with Franchisor. Franchisee may wish to speak with current and former
Franchisees but beware that not all Franchisees will be able to communicate with Franchisee.

TABLE NO. 4

STATUS OF COMPANY AFFILIATE OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 206172018 TO 261492020

Outlets Outlets
at Start QOutlets | Reacquired | Outlets Outlets Outlets
State Year Sold to at End of
of the Opened from Closed .
. Franchisee | the Year
Year Franchisee
20472018 10 0 0 0 0 10
20482019 10 0 0 0 0 10
LA
20192020 10 0 0 0 0 10
Explanatory Notes.

Note 1. The numbers in this table are as of December 31, 20492020. The company-owned outlets are

located in Louisiana.

Our fiscal year end is December 279, 26492020.

TABLE NO. 5

PROJECT OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 201492020

DOMESTIC PJ’s UNITS
Franchise Agreements Projected New Cl:;gje:;e(_l(l)\l;;ve d
State Signed but Outlet Franchised Outlets in pany
. Outlets in the Next
Not Opened the Next Fiscal Year .
Fiscal Year
Alabama 53 43 0
Arizona 0 0 0
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TABLE NO. 5

PROJECT OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 201492020

DOMESTIC PJ’s UNITS
Franchise Agreements Projected New Cl:;z]e:ltle(_l(l)\l;;ve d
State Signed but Outlet Franchised Outlets in pany
. Outlets in the Next
Not Opened the Next Fiscal Year .
Fiscal Year

Arkansas 10 10 0
California 1 1 0
Colorado 02 02 0
Florida 14 13 0
Georgia 25 3 0

Louisiana 1025 1011 o1
Maryland 14 1 0
Missouri 1 1 0
Mississippi 411 43 0
North Carolina 1 1 0
New Jersey 2 2 0
South Carolina 2 21 0
Tennessee 12 1 0
Texas 1042 713 0
Virginia 17 1 0
TOTALS 42111 3947 o1

INTERNATIONAL PJ’s UNITS
Franchise Agreements Projected New Cl::;;)lje:;e(_lg;;ve d
Country Signed but Outlet Not | Franchised Outlets in pany
. Outlets in the Next
Opened the Next Fiscal Year .
Fiscal Year
Kuwait 1 1 0
Explanatory Note.
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The number of Outlets Not Opened includes both Franchise Agreements and Multi-unit Option
Agreements that have been signed.

TRADITIONAL
STATE FRANCHISEE ADDRESS TELEPHONE NON-
TRADITIONAL
Attn:Peter Dunn Elderado; AR71730 8708751409 TFraditional
96472848 Fraditional
Attn:-ReneePruteh Pueblo-West-CO-81007
21 Brew LEC? 70456 HWWY-21-Ste—+ :
. 985-875-7394 Fraditional
Attt Paul Ballard Covington; LA-70433
BED-Café LLC 5300-Fehoupitoulas St
Attn:Thomas Boudreatx New Otleans, LA 70115 304-895-2007 | Fraditional
Ballard Pearson, LLC? 13015 Hwy 25, SteE
Hard v LA 70435 985-892-1202 Traditional
Bean Town, LLC? 14282 W University-Aver-Ste-A
. 985-542-5515 Fraditional
AttarDonna-Miller Hammend, EA-7040+
Bean Town, LLC? 224 W _Themas
Attr:-Denna-Miler Hammend; EA—7040+ 985-345-1533 Fraditional
Brew Boys LLC? 1665 Dove Park Rd:
. 985-898-5282 Fraditional
Atta:Paul Ballard Mandevile; EA-70471
Campus-Brew LLC? Tulane University
707
Campus Brew LLC? Tulane University
EA70H7
Bellinaloo-Coffee LEC 1545 LapaleoBlvd BldgE1A
Adtn-Cherie- White Harvey; LA70058 504-368-6600 |  Traditional
FAM Coffee, LEC? 3070-Heliday Drive
504-392-4280 Fraditional
Attn-AndrewJones New-Orleans; EA-70131+
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Frish Brew, EEC Clearview-Mall
Attn: Brett Pearson 4436 Veterans Blvd., Ste. 8. Metairie, 504-883-5516 | Nen-Traditional
EA-70006
East- Gause-Coffee, LLC? 2040-E-Gause Blvd-Ste—1+
. 985-649-6270
Atta-Barry Prendergast Shdel, EA—70461
ClearviewReyalLessee; Reval St-Charles Hotel
761430
MAPartnership; LEC 5359 MeunesSt
. . 504-731-2905
Attt Michael Pierece Harahan, FA-70123
Maple Brew LLC? F624-Maple-St.
AttnPaul Ballard New-Orleans; FA-70H8 504-861-5333
. 985-845-841+
Attt Paul Ballard Covington; LA-70433
GumbeMiller, LLC? 5432 Magazine St.
Attr—AubryMiller New-Orleans; FA70HS 504-895-2202
NelaBrewLEC 2200-David-De:
Attn-BrentJouandot Metairie; LA 504-883-3883
Plan 22 LEC 4480-Hwy22
Attn:-Eleanor Fisher Mandewville, EA—70471 985-624-901
R-&N-RedStick-Coffee 100-Lafayette St
Company 2253810055
985-549-1620
Attn—AmandaBennett Hammend, EA-70430
JFIK Coffee LLC? 1600 NHwy190,Ste7
Attr:Barry Prendergast Covington; EA—70433 985-871-0236
Robins ELC 150-Ormond-CenterCt:
. 985-764-7573
Attn-Tom Lewis Destrahan LA-70047
S-&S-Wingery, HEC 2045-EJudgePerez
504-279-53067
Attt KellyrSengy Chalmette; FA-70043
Saterlee Development; 10458 effersonHwey
B 504-738-7797
Sedexo-America; LLC? TFulane University Eibrary
2] BF%“Z, I I GQ St :Fﬁﬁiﬁialﬁ]fl PEH.S]Q }{Eslﬂital 98 S 8;2 82 |2 ]I ¥ 1 . ]
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RDT Coffee LLC? T4 Hwy 23 Suite E
b ~ Belle-Chase 1-A-70037 504-393-0858
Attn-Roxanne Tillotson g
TAM Poydras; LLC? 1515 PoydrasSt-Ste—400
EA Attr AndrewJ New-O#l LA 70112 5048752443
BeanTown; LLC? Northoaks Hospital
70360
Compass-Group, LEC? Ochsner Baptist Hospital
F0H5
LA e 304-210-0392 | Non-Traditional
Fauberge Dutae-Casine EbE-Casine
A Attn-S Mal BateaR LA70820 225-490-7358 | NenTraditional
Jeremy Griffen® 131-St-Charles-St.
EA . 9858734
AttmJeremy-Griffen Houma; EFA-70360
Claiborne Fresh- Market® Reoberts Fresh-Market
FA 708
HarrisonFresh- Market® Reoberts Fresh-Market
70424
M-Rebert-Enterprises® Roberts-Fresh-Market
FA70124
ML Rebert 1, LLC? Reoberts Eresh-Market
70006
Compass-Group; LEC? Ochsner-Medical-Center
70056
JacksenSquare Coffee; 630-Chartres St
LA LLC? 504-267-4545
AttarReyBrane New-Orleans; FA70H6
Compass-Group; LLC? Ochsner-Medical-Center
70421
% = > Wost Hiel 30-Sui
EA . 225-644-5955
Atta-Mateusz Dabrowsks Genzales; FA-70737
LA FunDa ELC 5555-Canal-Blvd- S4-309-3308
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Compass-Group; LEC? LSUHS Shreveport
7H03
SSF — I T Recional Al b
. ¥ 225-354-3448 | Nen-Traditional
EA-70807
2 Diarc - ;
70006
SSF — ; R Recional Al b
. ¥ 225-354-3448 | Nen-Traditional
EA-70807
Heathbrou, LEC 3625 NelsonRd-;Suite E
Attn:—Aaron Broussard Eake Charles; EA-70605
Compass-Group; LEC? Ochsner-Medical-Center
70065
e Univorsitv Modical €
Attn: Philip Martin 2000 Canal St New-Orleans, LA 504-201-9349 | Nen-Traditional
7042
Aramark’ Touro-Medical-Center
7045
Decatur Brews LLC? 501 Deeatur St
AttarReyBrane New-Orleans; FA- 70130 504-207-4106
T &C Coffee; LLC? 820-West-OalkSt
. . 504-392-42860
Atta-Charlie-Sampey Avntter EA70422
INAR, LLC? 6H03 Airpert Rd-Suite 7
Attr—Barry Prendergast Shidel EA—70460 985-847-0470
Eavigne Plazas EEC Blae Harber
Atta—ChipLavigne 2963 Hw+190, Mandevile; EA-70474
Stene-Creel Club-&Spa; Stone-Creek Club-& Spa; LHEC
70433
Where's The Watermelon; 2140-Magazine-Street
e 504-355-2934
Griffin Hospitality; LLC? 200-E-BayouRead
. . 985-492-1267
Atta—Jeremy-Griffin ThibedawsLA-70304
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PFsCoffee-ofLaplace; 1308 WestAirline Hwy B
EEC
Bruno Brew; LLC? 800-Metairie Rd-—Ste—V
: : Metairie. LA 70005
Brune Brew, LLC? 509 Veterans Blvd:
KL-& AM Heldings; LLC? 20103-Old-Secenic Hwy-
Marketfare-St—Claude; Roberts Eresh- Market
LLC?
EA 707
Ripple BayouBeans; LEC 15089 LAT3
Atta-Shely Johnston Prairieville; EA-70769
Eagniappe-Coffee; HEC 2119 Airline Drive,Suite 100
Atta-Brandy Craft Besster Citp, FA-HHHH
840-CoffeeCo, LLC New-Orleans-Advocate
AttaJohn-Georges 840-St—Charles AvesNew Orleans; EA
70436
Sedexe-Ameriea; LLC? Tolane University—Freeman-Schoolof
Business
AttaJeffery Burnham I MeAlister Drive; New-Orleans; FA
7048
Capeern; EEC FheRiverwalk
. 1 E %’ I g Li k
70436
Aramark’ WestJefferson Medical- Center
Attn:—Philip Martin HOol Medical-Center Blvd; Marreor;
EA-70006
Ballard Brew, LEC? Ochsner Health-Center—Covington
AttaPaul Ballard 1000-Ochsner Blvd-Covington, LA
70433
JunDa LLC? Kenner
Attt N7 SFahnke Ave—Covingtoms EA
70433
FAGIrvestment-Group; East Houma
LLC?
AttnAndrew-Jones H28 Grand-Cailou Rd-Houma, LA
70363
Creseent-CityCoffee; LLEC New-OrleansHast
70427
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Compass-Group; LEC? OchsnerBatonRouge
EA70836
70433
Compass-Group; LLC? University of NewOrleans
7048
TAM Carondalet LLC? Drip-AffogatoBar
F0H3
ArmstrongAdrport New-OrleansAirport—Conecourse-€
’ Non-Traditional
Kenner, EA-70062
Waltker High-Sehool 12646 Burgess-Avenue
Attn:Jason St Pierre 335-664-4825 | Nen-Traditional
: - ’
Venus; ELC? 8621-GeorgiaAvesSte- A2
Attn: Shag-Quershi Silver Spring, MD-20910 240-8633810
LLe? 601-799-490+
6012492735
Attn:Pat Brumfield MeComb; MS39648
GuliportFood-Systems; Gulfpert Qutlet Mall
H:? 108 2716626 Non-Traditional
GulfpertMS39053
PMSEnterprises; HEC Stennis-Space-Center
Adttn: Fanya-Surla Building 1100, Room N180B 328688197 | Nentradstional
: 2047 Main-Street
James-& Catherine
Coast-Coffee, LLC? +4166-CookRoad
Atta: David LeBron Bilexi; MS39532
Central Avenue-Coffee; 10439 D'Tbervile Blvd-
be 2282074509
) 843792 0393 .
Atta: +H-AshleyAvenue, MUSE Nen-Fraditional
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DRIVE-

R & J Coffee, LLC
Attn: Renee Prutch

922 E. Hailey Lane
Pueblo West, CO 81007

719-647-2848

TRADITIONAL | THRU /
STATE FRANCHISEE ADDRESS TELEPHONE / NON- NO
TRADITIONAL | DRIVE-
THRU
Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC 6510 Spanish Fort Blvd. . Drive-
AL Attn: Harry Dodich Spanish Fort, AL 36527 251-648-3855 Traditional thru
EAB Coffee, LLC 106 East Main St., Ste. 103 No
AR Attn: Peter Dunn Eldorado, AR 71730 870-875-1409 Traditional Drive-
thru
Eric Seyller & 210 W. 22nd Street No
AR Rebecca Seyller Stuttgart, AR 72160 870-674-8622 Traditional Drive-
thru

Traditional

Drive-
thru

GA T & C Coffee, LLC

New Orleans Brew, LLC
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Traditional
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Attn: Charlie Sampey Greensboro, GA 30642 Drive-
thru
The Social Gaming 3460 Old Milton Parkway Dri
GA Experience, LLC 334-324-8791 Traditional %
Attn: Kenya Harris Alpharetta, GA 30005 tru
21 Brew LLC 70456 HWY 21, Ste. 1 N Drive-
LA Attn: Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70433 985-875-7894 Traditional thru
B.E.D. Café, LLC 5300 Tchoupitoulas St. No
LA Attn: Thomas Boudreaux New Orleans, LA 70115 504-895-2007 Traditional Déllve'
thru
Ballard Pearson LLC 73015 Hwy 25, Ste. F N Drive-
LA Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70435 985-892-1202 Traditional thru
Bean Town, LLC 14282 W. University Ave., Ste. A N Drive-
LA Attn: Donna Miller Hammond, LA 70401 285-542-5515 Traditional thru
Bean Town, LLC 224 W. Thomas No
LA Attn: Donna Miller Hammond, LA 70401 985-345-1533 Traditional Déllve'
thru
Brew Boys LLC 1665 Dove Park Rd. N Drive-
LA Attn: Paul Ballard Mandeville, LA 70471 285-898-5282 Traditional thru
Campus Brew LLC Tulane University No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard 6501 Willow St., New Orleans, LA 504-862-8063 Non-Traditional Drive-
70117 thru
Campus Brew LLC Tulane University No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard 6823 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, 504-865-5705 Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70117 thru
Bellinaloo Coffee, LLC 1545 Lapalco Blvd, Bldg. E-1A No
LA Attn: Cherie White Harvey, LA 70058 204-368-6600 Traditional Dtﬂve'
thru
TAM Coffee, LLC 3070 Holiday Drive N Drive-
LA Attn: Andrew Jones New Orleans, LA 70131 304-392-4280 Traditional thru
Gimme Coffee LLC 6600 Franklin Ave., Ste. B-1 No
LA Attn: Harry Johnson New Orleans, LA 70122 504-715-4965 Traditional Déllve'
thru
East Gause Coffee, LLC 2040 E Gause Blvd, Ste. 1 N Drive-
LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Slidell, LA 70461 985-649-6270 Traditional thru
Clearview Royal Lessee, Royal St. Charles Hotel
LLC | e
LA Attn: John Kline 135 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, LA 204-207-8909 Non-Traditional Drive-
- thru
70130
MA Partnership, LLC 5359 Mounes St. N Drive-
LA Attn: Michael Pierce Harahan, LA 70123 204-731-2905 Traditional thru
Maple Brew LLC 7624 Maple St. No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard New Orleans, LA 70118 504-861-5335 Traditional Déllve'
thru
LA Marketplace Brew LLC 70325 Hwy 1077 Ste. A-1 085-845-8411 Traditional




Attn: Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70433 Drive-
thru
Gumbo Miller, LLC 5432 Magazine St. No

LA Attn: Aubry Miller New Orleans, LA 70115 504-895-2202 Traditional Déllve'
thru
Nola Brew LLC 2200 David Dr. No

LA Attn: Brent Jouandot Metairie, LA 204-883-3883 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Plan22 L1C 4480 Hwy 22 No

LA Attn: Eleanor Fisher Mandeville, LA 70471 985-624-9015 Traditional Déllve'
hru
R & N Red Stick Coffee 100 Lafayette St. No

LA Company 225-381-0055 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Stephanie Redmann Baton Rouge, LA 70801 thru

Caffeinated, LLC 1913 SW Railroad Ave. N Drive-
LA Attn: Amanda Bennett Hammond, LA 70430 985-549-1620 Traditional thru
JTJK Coffee, LLC 1600 N Hwy 190, Ste. 7 No

LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Covington, LA 70433 985-871-9236 Traditional Déllve'
hru

Robins LLC 150 Ormond Center Ct. N Drive-
LA Attn: Tom Lewis Destrehan, LA 70047 985-764-7573 Traditional thru

S & S Wingery, LLC 2015 E. Judge Perez N Drive-
LA Attn: Kelly Songy Chalmette, LA 70043 204-279-5307 Traditional thru
Saterlee Development, 10158 Jefferson Hwy No

LA LLC 504-738-7797 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Anthony Saterlee River Ridge, LA 70123 thru
Sodexo America, LLC Tulane University Library No

LA Attn: Phoebe Cook 7001 Freret St. New Orleans, LA 504-862-3086 | Non-Traditional Drive-
70117 thru
St. Tammany Parish St. Tammany Parish Hospital No

LA Hospital 985-892-8242 | Non-Traditional | Drive-
Attn: Lori Foret 1202 S. Tyler St., Covington, LA thru
RDT Coffee, LLC 7614 Hwy 23 Suite F No

LA 504-393-0858 Traditional Drive-
— Attn: Roxanne Tillotson Belle Chase, LA 70037 thru
TAM Poydras 1515 Poydras St., Ste. 400 No

LA Attn: Andrew Jones New Orleans, LA 70112 504-875-2443 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Bean Town, LLC Northoaks Hospital No

LA Attn: Donna Miller 15790 Paul Vega MD, Hammond, LA 985-230-6061 Non-Traditional Drive-
70360 thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Baptist Hospital No

LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 4429 Clara St., New Orleans, LA 504-894-2701 Non-Traditional Drive-
70115 thru
Magnolia Hospitality, LLC 300 Canal St., Ste. R No

LA Attn: Corrado Giacona New Orleans, LA 70130 504-210-0392 | Non-Traditional Déllve_
hru

LA L’auberge Du Lac Casino LDL Casino 225-490-7358 | Non-Traditional
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Attn: Sean Malone Baton Rouge, LA 70820 No
Drive-
thru
Jeremy Griffin 1311 St. Charles St. N Drive-
LA Attn: Jeremy Griffin Houma, LA 70360 285-873-414] Traditional thru
Claiborne Fresh Market Roberts Fresh Market No
LA Attn: Marc Robert I 8115 S. Claiborne Ave., New Orleans, | 504-488-0536 | Non-Traditional [ Drive-
LA 70118 thru
Harrison Fresh Market Roberts Fresh Market No
LA Attn: Marc Robert III 801 Harrison Ave., New Orleans, LA 504-293-1201 Non-Traditional Drive-
70124 thru
M. Robert Enterprises Roberts Fresh Market No
LA Attn: Marc Robert 111 153 Robert E. Lee Blvd., New Orleans, | 304-282-3428 | Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70124 thru
ML Robert II, LLC Roberts Fresh Market No
LA Attn: Marc Robert III 5016 W. Esplanade Ave., Metairie, LA 504-885-7005 Non-Traditional Drive-
70006 thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 2500 Belle Chase Hwy., Gretna, LA 504-392-3131 Non-Traditional Drive-
70056 thru
Jackson Square Coffee, 630 Chartres St. No
LA LLC 504-267-4545 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Roy Bruno New Orleans, LA 70116 thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 1514 Jefferson Hwy., New Orleans, LA 504-842-3000 Non-Traditional Drive-
70121 thru
MMAD Coffee, LLC 402 West Highway 30, Suite A N Drive-
LA Attn: Mateusz Dabrowski Gonzales, LA 70737 225-644-5955 Traditional thru
Jun Da, LLC 5555 Canal Blvd. No
LA Attn: Shuai Wang New Orleans, LA 70124 504-309-3398 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Compass Group, LLC LSUHS Shreveport No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 1501 Kings Hwy., Shreveport, LA 318-675-4560 Non-Traditional Drive-
71103 thru
SSP America Baton Rouge Regional Airport (Pre- No
Security) .. —
LA Attn: Robert Cotton 9430 Jackie Cochran Dr., Baton Rouge, 225-354-3448 Non-Traditional Dtﬂ;f_
LA 70807 -
RDT Coffee II, LLC Diaz Convenience Store Dri
.. rive-
LA ) . 4400 Clearview Pkwy., Metairie, LA 504-779-2976 Non-Traditional th
Attn: Roxanne Tillotson thru
70006
SSP America Baton Rouge Regional Airport (Post- No
Security) .. —
LA Attn: Robert Cotton 9430 Jackie Cochran Dr., Baton Rouge, 225-354-3448 Non-Traditional Dtﬂ;f_
LA 70807 -
Heathbrou, LLC 3625 Nelson Rd., Suite E - Drive-
LA Attn: Aaron Broussard Lake Charles, LA 70605 337-429-2561 Traditional thru
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Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 180 W. Esplanade Ave., Kenner LA 985-875-2828 | Non-Traditional Drive-
70065 thru
Aramark University Medical Center No
LA Attn: Philip Martin 2000 Canal St., New Orleans, LA, 504-201-9349 Non-Traditional Drive-
70112 thru
Aramark Touro Medical Center No
LA Attn: Corie Gardener 1401 Foucher St., New Orleans, LA 504-897-7011 Non-Traditional Drive-
70115 thru
Decatur Brew, LLC 501 Decatur St. No
LA Attn: Roy Bruno New Orleans, LA 70130 504-207-4100 Traditional Déllve_
hru
T &C Coffee, LLC 820 West Oak St N Drive-
LA Attn: Charlie Sampey Amite, LA 70422 204-392-4280 Traditional thru
Lavigne Plaza, LLC Blue Harbor N Drive-
LA Attn: Chip Lavigne 2963 Hwy 190, Mandeville, LA 70471 | 252-074-1565 Traditional thru
Stone Creek Club & Spa, Stone Creek Club & Spa, LLC
LLC .. &
LA Attn: Scott Gutterman 1201 Ochsner Blvd., Covington, LA 285-801-7135 Non-Traditional Drive-
thru
70433
Where's The Watermelon, 2140 Magazine Street No
LA LLC 504-355-2934 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Aubry Miller New Orleans, LA 70817 thru
Griffin Hospitality, LLC 200 E. Bayou Road N Drive-
LA Attn: Jeremy Griffin Thibodaux, LA 70301 985-492-1207 Traditional thru
PJ's Coffee of Laplace, 1808 West Airline Hwy B No
LA LLC 985-359-7575 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Wayne Vicknair LaPlace, LA 70068 thru
Bruno Brew, LLC 800 Metairie Rd. Ste. V No
LA Attn: Roy Bruno Metairie, LA 70005 204-828-1460 Traditional Déllve_
hru
Bruno Brew, LLC 509 Veterans Blvd. N Drive-
LA Attn: Roy Bruno Metairie, LA 70005 304-841-0990 Traditional thru
KL & AM Holdings, LL.C 20103 Old Scenic Hwy. N Drive-
LA Attn: Aubry Miller Zachary, LA 70791 225-570-2268 Traditional thru
Marketfare St. Claude, Roberts Fresh Market
LLC .. &
LA Attn: Marc Robert 2222 St. Claude Ave., New Orleans, 204-262-888 Non-Traditional D,{E;f_
LA 70117 -
Ripple Bayou Beans, LLC 15089 LA-73 No
LA Attn: Shelly Johnston Prairieville, LA 70769 225-744-1713 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Lagniappe Coffee, LLC 2119 Airline Drive, Suite 100 N Drive-
LA Attn: Brandy Craft Bossier City, LA 71111 318-588-5188 Traditional thru
840 Coffee Co, LLC New Orleans Advocate No
LA Attn: John Georges 840 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, LA | 504-266-2145 Non-Traditional Drive-
70130 thru
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Sodexo America, LLC

Tulane University - Freeman School of

; No
Business .. ——
LA Attn: Jeffery Burnham 7 McAlister Drive, New Orleans, LA 503-862-8152 | Non-Traditional Drive-
thru
70118
Aramark West Jefferson Medical Center No
LA Attn: Philip Martin 1101 Medical Center Blvd., Marrero, 504-349-1156 Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70006 thru
Ballard Brew, LLC Ochsner Health Center - Covington No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard 1000 Ochsner Blvd., Covington, LA 985-302-5470 Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
St. Pauls School St. Pauls School No
LA Attn: 917 S Jahnke Ave. Covington, LA 985-892-3200 Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
JAG Investment Group, East Houma
LLC .. Drive-
LA Attn: Andrew Jones 1128 Grand Cailou Rd. Houma, LA 285-262-0622 Traditional thru
70363
Crescent City Coffee, LLC New Orleans East Dri
.. rive-
LA Attn: Stephanie Chamblis 5733 Read Blvd. New Orleans, LA 504-354-8622 Traditional thru
70127 e
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Baton Rouge No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 10310 The Grove Blvd Baton Rouge, 225-761-5200 | Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70836 thru
St. Scholastica Academy St. Scholastica Academy No
LA Attn: 122 S Massachusetts St, Covington, LA | 285-892-2540 Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
Compass Group, LLC University of New Orleans No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 2000 Lakeshore Dr. New Orleans, LA N/A Non-Traditional Drive-
70148 thru
TAM Carrondalett, LLC Drip Affogato Bar No
LA Attn: Andrew Jones 703 Carondelet St, New Orleans, LA 504-313-1611 | Non-Traditional Drive-
70113 thru
Armstrong Airport New Orleans Airport - Concourse C
Concessions, LLC .. &
LA Attn: Delaware North 1 Terminal Dr.- Main Terminal NA Non-Traditional ])tl;;/lf_
Kenner, LA 70062 —
Walker High School 12646 Burgess Avenue No
LA . 335-664-4825 Non-Traditional Drive-
= Attn: J. St. P
HSASON SLETE Walker, LA 70785 thru
Walker High School 12646 Burgess Avenue No
LA . 335-664-4825 Non-Traditional Drive-
= Attn: J. St. P
HSASON SLETE Walker, LA 70785 thru
ABM Ochsner Medical Center - Elmwood No
LA Attn: Eric Lyons 2121 S. Clearview Parkway, Metairie, N/A Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70121 thru
FND Coffee, LLC 653 US Highway 190 Drive-
LA . 504-858-6869 Traditional “thru
Attn: Barry Prendergast Covington, LA 70433 thru
LA Allen Cummins & 18-1 Camellia Blvd. 985-778-3313 Traditional
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Julie Cummins Drive-
Lafayette, LA 70508 thru

A Kristy Mounts & 1736 Farmerville Hwy. 18512 A Traditional Drive-
LA Robert Mounts Ruston. LA 71270 318-512-638 raditiona thru
Venus, LLC 8621 Georgia Ave., Ste A-2 No

MD Attn: Shaq Quershi Silver Spring, MD 20910 240-863-3810 Traditional Déllve'
hru
TMT Holdings Co. 12530 Fairwood Parkway No

MD Attn: Michael Harris Bowie, MD 20720 240-423-2328 Traditional Déllve'
nru
Three Cups of Coffee 117 North Main St., Ste. A No

MS Attn: Barry Prendergast Picayune, MS 39466 601-799-4901 Traditional Déllve'
hru

Praise Properties LLC 1213 Delaware Ave. N Drive-
M3 Attn: Pat Brumfield McComb, MS 39648 601-249-2735 |  Iraditional thru

Gulfport Food Systems, Gulfport Outlet Mall

MS LLC 228-8716020 Non-Traditional Dlr%e-
- Attn: Maria Mena 10000 Factory Shops Blvd., Ste. FC- thru
10, Gulfport, MS 39053 —
TMS Enterprises, LLC Stennis Space Center No

MS Attn: Tanya Surla Building 1100, Room N180B 228-688-1197 | Non-Traditional Déllve'
hru

. 2017 Main Street :

James & Catherine e .. Drive-
MS MacPhaille Bay St. Louis, MS 39520 228-231-1942 | Traditional thru

MS Coast Coffee, LLC 100 Cook Road 228-215-1510 Traditional Drive-
- Attn: David LeBron Biloxi, MS 39532 = B thru

MS Paul Sandves & 0100 US98 985-630-7162 Traditional Drive-
- Booke Stampley Hattiesburg, MS - - racitiona th_ru

John "Jack" Stanton & 3100 Old Canton Road, Suite 100 N Drive-
MS Anede Stanfon Jackson. MS 39216 602-686-2635 Traditional thru

MS Farheen Lala 5145 MS-39 602-686.2635 Traditional Drive-
2 ] Meridian, MS 39305 e faditiona thru
West Point Military West Point Military Academy No

NY Academy N/A Non-Traditional Drive-
Attn: 606 Thayer Rd., West Point, NY 10996 thru
Sodexo America, LL.C Medical University South Carolina No

SC Attn: 171 Ashley Avenue, MUSC 843-792-0393 | Non-Traditional Déllve-
hru

Lucky 8 Coffee, LLC 8026 E. Mail Street N Drive-
5C Attn: Linda Johnson Ridgeland, SC 29936 §43-619-1911 |  Traditional thru
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IGWT Coffee, LLC

Attn: JC Chavarria

One Price Triton, LLC

Philips Plaza Building

414 Union St., #105, Nashville, TN
37219

11930 Barker Cypress Rd., Ste 800

615-953-7997

Traditional

No
Drive-

thru

Attn: Ridham Bhatt

KU Hesham Abdulla Alroumi

McKinney, TX 75071

Block 10 Plot 288 Abu Al Hassaniya
Kuwait, Abu Al Hassaniya

65-9-987-0622

Traditional

X Attn: Mike Price Cypress, TX 77433 832:633-6235 | Iraditional Dtﬂf
JKSAM & Sons, LLC 12640 Broadway St., Ste 102 . Drive-
X Attn: Kyra Sam Pearland, TX 77584 832-406-7350 Traditional E
Ever Saenz & 1259 E1-20 - Drive-
D, Marielena Saenz Monahans. TX 79756 432-260-9737 Traditional E
Martin Bomba & 3800 E. Palm Calley Blvd., Suite 100 N Drive-
D, Deborah Bomba Round Rock. TX 78665 210-287-9694 Traditional E
P & M Coffee, LLC 9703 Bandera Road N Drive-
X Attn: Philip Sebastian San Antonio, TX 78250 210-912-5996 Traditional E
RREAL IIL LLC 1314 W. Palma Vista Drive, Suite 10 )
X Attn: Aracely & Marcus Palmview, TX 78572 956-432-4228 Traditional Dtﬂ—;f-
Villarreal -
HRK Management PJs1, 6091 W. University Drive .
X LLC 201-572:3365 | Traditional | DI

No
Drive-

thru

2, Ho Chi Minh City

TR Group International 145-147 Neuyen Co Thach, No
VN Pte. Ltd. 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional | Drive-
Attn: Rick Yvanovich An Loi Dong Ward, District 2, Vietnam thru
TR Group International British International School - I
Pte. Ltd. .. &
VN Attn: Rick Yvanovich 101 Thao Dien Street, District 2, Ho 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional Déll;f_
Chi Minh City S
TR Group International British International School - 11
Pte. Ltd. .. &
VN Attn: Rick Yvanovich 246 Neuyen Van Huong Street, District 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional Déll;f_

STATE LOCATION/CITY NAME OF FRANCHISEE PHONE NUMBER
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Carmichael, CA

Pueblo, CO

Danny Phung

Prutch Coffee of Pueblo, LLC - Joe & Renne Prutch

AL Mobile, AL Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC - Harry Dodich? 251-648-3855
AL Mobile, AL Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC - Harry Dodich? 251-648-3855
AL Tuscaloosa, AL Armellino Italian Ices Co. - Bill Getchel 631-848-6737

916-505-6575

719-251-2673

Colorado Springs, CO

SV Enterprises, LLC - Vijay Hurkute

719-337-3802

FL Orlando, FL Whitetail26, LLC - Susan Wright 630-688-4240
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684

GA Lawrenceville, GA Muneeb Arif 770-826-2713
GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808
GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808
GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808
GA Atlanta, GA Michael Adams 404-304-2013

LA Ponchatoula, LA Beantown, LLC - Donna Miller 985-969-0104
LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
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LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
LA Houma, LA JAG Investments, LLC - Andrew Jones® 404-427-0369
LA Walker, LA Walker Needs Coffee, LLC - Aubry Miller 504-234-0282
LA Lafayette, LA Allen & Julie Cummings® 985-778-3313
LA Lafayette, LA Allen & Julie Cummings® 985-778-3313
LA New Orleans, LA Ash Salem 504-655-8719
LA Baton Rouge, LA Al & Dina Perkins® 225-907-4370
LA Baton Rouge, LA Al & Dina Perkins® 225-907-4370
LA Lafayette, LA Hogfagfzvgif;ﬁi‘géiizc = 985-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA HOEfaﬁf‘éfvﬁiﬁfﬁgﬁgﬁléc = 985-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA HOEfaﬁf‘éfvﬁiﬁfﬁgﬁgﬁléc = 985-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA Hogfagfzvgif;ﬁi‘géiizc = 985-778-5494
LA Baton Rouge, LA Quincee B. Roccaforte 504-915-1538
LA Slidell, LA Lakeshore Coffee, LL.C - Shane & Kelly Songy 504-628-7721
LA New Orleans, LA Crescent City Coffee, LLC - Stephanie Chamblis 504-354-8622
LA Monroe, LA Rookard Investment Group, LLC - Austin Rookard 318-282-1632
LA Lafayette, LA JK Bold Brew, LLC - Jolene Credeur? 337-258-1327
LA Lafayette, LA JK Bold Brew, LLC - Jolene Credeur? 337-258-1327
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LA Lutcher, LA

BBB Neighbors, LLC - Aaron Tregre

504-382-9993

LA Lake Charles, LA

FAST Brew, LLC - Frank & Tiffany Wilson

225-773-0798

MO Platte City, MO

Dundee's Brew - Jill & Josh Nelson

MD Bowie, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
MD Annapolis, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
MD College Park, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris> 240-423-2328
MD Hyattsville, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328

816-383-4798
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MS Hattiesburg, MS Paul Sanders and Brooke Stampley? 985-630-7162
MS Hattiesburg, MS Paul Sanders and Brooke Stampley? 985-630-7162
MS Ocean Springs, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Biloxi, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Gulfport, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Brookhaven, MS John & Angela Lambert 601-695-2039
MS Meridian, MS Farheen Lala® 602-686-2635
MS Meridian, MS Farheen Lala® 602-686-2635
MS Jackson, MS John "Jack" Stanton? 504-858-5799
MS Jackson, MS John "Jack" Stanton? 504-858-5799
MS Ocean Springs, MS Ronnie Ali & Brianne Whitney 707-319-5068




Charlotte, NC

Raheel & Asil Quershi

917-992-6611

NJ Watchung, NJ The Family Bean, LLC - Islam Badr 201-744-7962
NJ Montville, NJ Goran & Divna Popovski 973-342-5014

Nashville, TN

SC Rock Hill, SC Jeff Hateley 949-899-3835
SC Columbia, SC Lonnie Williams 804-381-5063

IGWT Coffee, LLC - JC Chavarria®

615-953-7997

Nashville, TN

IGWT Coffee, LLC - JC Chavarria®

615-953-7997

Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021

19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 San Antonio, TX Martin & Deborah Bomba? 210-287-9694
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X Austin, TX Martin & Deborah Bomba? 210-287-9694
X Spring, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
19,4 Houston, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
19,4 Houston, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
X Dallas, TX Mark & Barbara Null 817-773-8310
™ Amarillo, TX Cathy & Joel Meyers 806-445-4139
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX Eight28 Enterprises, LLC - Brittany Willis 504-812-5642
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
X Dallas, TX Suliman Mukatren 469-371-0383
19,4 Grand Prairie, TX Kevyn's Joe, LLC - Mark Sheets 214-802-7061
X Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
X Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
X Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
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X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX A Little Bit of Lagniappe, LLC - Donna Bush 504-915-5979
19,4 Houston, TX Space City Brew, LLC - Nate Brown’ 317-384-6460
™ Houston, TX Space City Brew, LLC - Nate Brown’ 317-384-6460
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
™ Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344
19,4 San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344
19,4 San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344

VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shag Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Fairfax, VA The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas® 760-473-8291
VA Fairfax, VA The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas? 760-473-8291

New Orleans Brew, LLC

79

Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021




VA ‘ Fairfax, VA

The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas?

760-473-8291

AE Spanish-Fert-ALE Eastern-Shore-Coffee, LEC*—Harry Dodich 2516433855
AE Mebile; AL Eastern-Shore-Coffee, LLC*—Harry Dodich 2516433855
AE Mebile; AL Eastern-Shore-Coffee, LEC*—Harry Dodich 2516433855

GA Greensboro-GA F-& C-Coffee, LELC—Terri-& Charlie Sampey 762-555-H87
. . . , 2
Adpharetta; GA . )
GA gHi 334-324-8791
GA Lawrenceville; GA Muneeb-Axnif 7708262713

FA Ponchatoula; EA Beantown;, LC>—DennaMiller 985-969-6104

LA BatenReuge; FA LA-Reasters; LLC>—Andrew Jones 404-427-0366

LA BatenReuge; FA LA-Reasters; LLC* —Andrew Jones 404-427-0367
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BatenReuge; LA EAReasters; EEC*—AndrewJones 4044270368
Heuma; LA FAG Investments; ELC*—Andrew Jones 4044270369
Walker; EA Walker Needs-Coffee; LEC* —Aubry-Miller 5042340282
Lafayette; FA Alen-&Julie Cummings’ 9857733313
Lafayette; FA Aden-&Julie Cummings’ 9857733313
Lafayette; FA Alen-&Julie- Cummings’ 9857783313

Rusten; EA Kristy-&Robert Mounts 385126384

New-Orleans; LA Ash-Salem 504-655-819

BatenReuge; LA A& Dina-Perkins® 225-907-4379

BatenReuge; LA A& Dina-Perkins® 225-907-4379

Bewie; MD TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 2404232328
Bewie; MD TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 2404232329
Annapolis; MD TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 2404232328
CollegeParls MD TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 2404232328
: e, . g .
.|
Hattiesburg; MS Paul Sanders-and Brooke-Stampley’ 985-630-7162
Hattiesburg;, MS Paul Sanders-and Brooke Stampley’ 985-630-7162
Hattiesburg; MS Paul Sanders-and Brooke Stampley’ 985-630-7164
Ocean-Springs; MS Coast Colfee. LEC? - David LeBron 228-229-0689
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MS Bilexi; MS Coast-Coffee, LLC*—David LeBron 228-229-0699
MS GulfpertMS Coast-Coffee; LLC*—David LeBron 2282290691
MS Broekhaven; MS John-&Angelaambert 601-695-2039
MS Meridian; MS FarheenLala® 602-686-2636
MS Meridian; MS FarheenLala® 602-686-2637
MS Meridian; MS FarheenLala® 602-686-2637
MS Jaekson; MS John-Stanton® 504-853-5800
MS Jaekson; MS John-Stanton® 504-853-58090
MS Jaekson; MS John-Stanton® 5048535804
MS . Spings.MS I o AL & B Whi

TX Heuston X OnePrice Friton, LEC?—Mike Price 281-468-6004
= Heuston, X OnePrice Friton, LEC?—Mike Price 281-468-6005
TX Heuston X OnePrice Friton, LEC?—Mike Price 281-468-6006
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Heusten; X OnePrice Friton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6007

Heusten; X OnePrice TFriton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6008

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6009

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6010

Heusten; X OnePrice TFriton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6012

San-Anterter X Martin-& Deborah-Bomba® 210-287-9694

RoundReelgTX Martin-& Deborah-Bomba® 210-287-9695

Austi X Martin-& Deborah-Bomba® 210-287-9696

Menahans; X Ever-&-Marielena-Saenz 432-260-9737

Spring- X Paul Picard® 713-302-5251

Heuston; 12X Paul Picard” H3-302-5252

Heuston; 12X Paul Picard” H3-302-5253

Fort-Werth; X Matk-&BarbaraNull 817-773-8310

Amarittor X Cathy-&Joel Meyers 806-445-4139
...

Richmend; VA Venus; LEC*—Shag-Qureshi 703-868-6031

Richmend; VA Venus; LEC*—Shag-Qureshi 703-868-6032

Richmend; VA Venus; LEC*—Shag-Qureshi 703-868-6033

New Orleans Brew, LLC 83

Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021




VA Richmond; VA Venus; LLC*—Shaq-Qureshi 703-868-6034
EAST KNOWN
STATE FRANCHISEE LAST KNOWN-ADDRESS TELEPHONE
Bruno Brews LLC 622 Canal-St:
LA ) 504-561-8552
Attn-ReyBrune New-Orleans; FA
- New Orl - : -
LA Coneessions; HLC 504-463-5550
- New Orl - - I
LA Ceneessions; LEC 504-466-2154
- New Orl - - I
LA Ceneessions 504-463-5500
T-&C Coffee LLC 4100-General Degaulle Dr:
EA Attn: CharkieS New-Osl LA 70131 504-392-4280
T-& C Coffee LLC F614-Hwy23-Suite F
EA At Charlie S Belle Chase_ LA_70037 504-393-0858
LA 1 Euseli New-Osl LA 70112 504-875-2443
Diaz Il LLC DianC - 2
LA . Giselle Eastiac] ho-C o Pl Metairie LA_70006 504-779-2976
Natural Brew, LEC 1600 NHwy190,Ste7
AttirTeresaRiceobone Covington; FA—70433
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LAST KNOWN
STATE FRANCHISEE LAST KNOWN ADDRESS “TELEPHONE
Jun Da, LLC Kenner
LA Attn: Shuai (Sean) Wang 2240 Veterans Blvd. Kenner, LA 70062 04-305-0305
Irish Brew, LLC Clearview Mall
LA Attn: Brett Pearson 4436 Veterans Blvd., Ste. 8, Metairie, LA 70006 504-883-5516
INAR, LLC 61103 Airport Rd Suite 7
LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Slidell, LA 70460 285-847-9470
TR Group International Pte. 72 70, Le Thanh Ton (Vincom Mall B1)
VN Ltd. 84-8-382-6900
Attn: Rick Yvanovich Ho Chi Min City, District 1, Vietnam




Capcorn, LLC The Riverwalk
LA

= Attn: Richard Capdeboscq 500 Port of New Orleans Place, NOLA 70130 04-218-5698

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
In some instances, former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with
New Orleans Brew, LLC. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees but be aware that not all such
franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

(D There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered in
this Franchise Disclosure Document.
2) These franchisees have executed a Multi-Unit Option Agreement.
ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lrhe audited financial statements for the periods ending Peeember34+,2047-December 30, 2018, and-December 29, 2019,
nd December 27, 2020 are attached to the disclosure document as Exhibit F, together with the auditor’s consent and reports.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS
The following agreements are attached as exhibits to this disclosure document:

Exhibit A — Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B — Confidentiality Agreement

Exhibit C — Guaranty Agreement

Exhibit D — Direct Deposit Authorization Form
Exhibit E — Agents for Process of Services
Exhibit F — Financial Statements

Exhibit G — Operations Manual Table of Contents
Exhibit H — State Administrators

Exhibit I — Franchise Disclosure Acknowledgement Statement
Exhibit J — List of Franchisees

Exhibit K — General Release Agreement

Exhibit L — Contingent Assignment of Lease
Exhibit M — State Specific Addenda

Exhibit N — Multi-Unit Option Agreement
Exhibit O — Receipt

ITEM 23
RECEIPT
THE LAST PAGE OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS A DETACHABLE DOCUMENT

ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT BY YOU.
EXHIBIT A
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

PJ’S COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DATA SHEET

1. Name of Franchisee:
2. Guarantor Name:
SSN: Driver’s License State/Number:
3. Guarantor Name:
SSN: Driver’s License State/Number:
4. Franchisee’s Address:
5. Franchisee’s Telephone Number:
6. Franchisee’s Email Address:
7. Franchisee’s Initial Franchise Fee:
8. Franchisee’s Royalty Fee:
9. Franchisee’s System Fund Fee:

10. Agreement Effective Date:

11. Franchise Licensing Representative:

12. Exceptions to the Agreement:

The information contained in the Data Sheet is incorporated by reference into the PJ’s Coffee Franchise
Agreement.

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
Print Name: Print Name:

Title Title

Date Date

PJ’S COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.

PJ’S COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this _ day of ,20__, by and between New Orleans Brew,
L.L.C., a Louisiana limited 11ab111ty company d/b/a PJ s Coffee of New Orleans Iocated at: 4480 LA-22
Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-CameHliaBouleva t aton uisiana
70433 (the “Franchisor”), and (the
“Franchisee”):

DEFINITIONS:

In this Agreement the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the
context otherwise requires:

1) A PJ’s Branded Product is any product now existing or developed in the future that bears
Franchisor’s Marks and is sold by some or all PJ’s franchisees or Franchisor or other entities such as
supermarkets, grocery stores or convenience stores.

(i1) A PJ’s Distribution Point or Distribution Point is any location other than a PJ’s Unit, where
Authorized PJ’s Branded Products using Franchisor’s Marks are sold, such as carts, kiosks, vending
machines or other product distribution units developed now or in the future and authorized by Franchisor.

(iii) A PJ’s Coffee Unit or PJ’s Unit is a cafe or other outlet that specializes in the sale of Authorized
PJ’s Products, as defined below, is operated under Franchisor’s Marks, as defined below, and is
authorized by a Franchise or License Agreement made or approved by Franchisor.
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(iv) Authorized Products or PJ’s Authorized Products are products approved or authorized by
Franchisor in accordance with Article 5 or 8 of this Agreement.

v) Location shall mean a location accepted by Franchisor in accordance with Section 1.4 of this
Agreement.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Franchisor is the owner of certain marks and other intellectual property, which have been
filed and or registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office of the United States of
America, and may, in the future become the owner, licensee and or authorized distributor for other
trademarks, including logos and designs, related or unrelated to Franchisor’s Marks (referred to in this
Agreement as “Franchisor’s Marks”); and

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed and continues to develop a system for merchandising PJ’s
Authorized Products, and which system includes distinctive signs, coffee beans, beverages, proprietary
packaging, uniforms, various trade secrets & other confidential information, and in some cases also
includes architectural designs, equipment specifications, layout plans, inventory, record-keeping and
marketing techniques (the “System”) which are materially reflected in Franchisor’s Operations Manual
and any other future manuals developed by Franchisor (collectively, the “Manuals”). Franchisor
identifies the System by Franchisor’s Marks, and such other Trademarks, service marks, trade names,
logos and designs as may be designated by Franchisor in writing as being authorized for use in the
System. Franchisor’s Marks identify for the public the source of the services rendered in accordance with
the standards and specifications established by Franchisor; and

WHEREAS, the System as used in existing PJ’s Units and PJ’s Distribution Points have established or
will establish a reputation for quality, cleanliness, appearance and service, and through such operations
and continued marketing and advertising efforts, have created demand and goodwill for the authorized
PJ’s coffee products sold as a result of which the System has acquired valuable goodwill and a favorable
reputation; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to enjoy the benefits of: (i) operating under the PJ’s System and using
Franchisor’s Marks; and (ii) being authorized and licensed to operate one PJ’s Unit as set forth below

within the System in strict accordance with the standards and specifications established by Franchisor;
and

WHEREAS, Franchisor is willing to grant Franchisee a license under Franchisor’s Marks and the System,
subject to Franchisee’s strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. FRANCHISE RIGHT GRANTED, LOCATION.
1.1.  GRANT.
In consideration of the issuance of the franchise granted herein, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor the
non-refundable sum of the appropriate amount as stated on the Data Sheet of the Franchise Agreement
(the “Initial Fee”). In exchange, Franchisor hereby awards Franchisee the right to open and operate, under

the terms of this Agreement, one PJ’s Unit specializing in selling high quality proprietary coffee beans,
beverages, mixes, syrups and food products and/or (ii) branded, trademarked, produced and/or packaged
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exclusively for Franchisor and/or its affiliates (the “PJ’s Products”) items as specified by Franchisor in
Franchisor’s Operations Manual, or subsequently added in accordance with Operations Manual
amendments. The Initial Fee shall be deemed fully earned by Franchisor upon the execution of this
Agreement by Franchisor and Franchisee and shall not be refunded, in whole or in part, upon any
termination of this Agreement, or at any other time or under any other circumstances. If Franchisee is a
business entity, each individual holding in excess of 15% of the total voting power of Franchisee’s
ownership interest (including each individual holding in excess of 20% of the total voting power of any
business entity having a controlling interest in Franchisee) must execute the Guaranty Agreement and
Confidentiality Agreement attached as Attachment A and Attachment B respectively.

1.2. LICENSE.

Franchisor hereby grants and awards to Franchisee, for the term set forth in this Agreement, and any
renewal term, beginning on the date of this Agreement, the right and license, and Franchisee hereby
undertakes the obligation, to operate the PJ’s Unit described in this Agreement under Franchisor’s Marks
and such other of Franchisor's Marks as may be designated by Franchisor, to operate such PJ’s Unit solely
in accordance with the System and this Agreement, and only at the specific location to be agreed upon by
Franchisor and Franchisee in writing (the “Location”).

1.3.  LOCATION.

With Franchisor’s acceptance, Franchisee will locate, lease and open, within a 12-month period, a PJ’s
Unit in (the “General Area”). The General Area is described solely for
the purpose of limiting the area within which Franchisee may seek a site location for the PJ’s Unit. If
Franchisee is unable to secure an approved site and open a PJ’s Unit in the General Area within this 12-
month period, Franchisee must notify Franchisor in writing within 60 days prior to the expiration of the
aforementioned period. Upon receipt of any such notice, Franchisor shall extend the 12-month period
mentioned in this Section 1.3 for an additional 90 days. Upon Franchisor granting and extending the
initial 12-month period, Franchisee shall secure and open a PJ’s Unit within said 90-day extension. If
Franchisee ceases to actively secure and open a PJ’s Unit during the initial 12-month period or the 90-day
extended period, Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement without any further action on the
part of Franchisor. In the event Franchisor elects to terminate this Agreement, it shall be entitled to the fee
paid in accordance with Section 1.1 hereof.

Franchisor may establish, operate, or grant a franchise or license to others to operate a PJ’s Coffee or any
other business using the Marks, the System or any variation of the Marks and the System, in any location
other than Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit on any terms and conditions that Franchisor deems appropriate.
Additionally, Franchisor may license or sell, at both wholesale and retail, produce or service lines that are
being sold in PJ’s Units, including Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, under the same or similar Proprietary Marks or
any other proprietary marks, at any location or distribution point without providing any rights to
Franchisee.

1.4. LOCATION SELECTION AND ACCEPTANCE.

In order to obtain Franchisor’s acceptance of a Location from which Franchisee is authorized to operate
its PJ’s Unit, he/she/they must first:

1) Submit for Franchisor’s evaluation a summary of the lease terms available for each site.
Franchisee must also give any proposed landlord a copy of the then current Contingent Assignment of
Lease or any other Lease Rider then being used by Franchisor in connection with its site approval for a
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PJ’s Unit and obtain written verification that each landlord is willing to include the provisions of the
Contingent Assignment or any other Rider’s provisions in its Lease. After Franchisee provides the
required documentation, Franchisor will evaluate and critique the information on each site and lease
summary in consultation with Franchisee. Franchisor may, but will not be required to, visit, and inspect
the sites that Franchisee proposes at the Franchisor’s expense.

(i1) If and when Franchisor is satisfied with any one of the sites and the lease summaries are
reasonably acceptable, Franchisor will give Franchisee verbal authorization to proceed with preliminary
lease negotiations. Franchisor’s authorization to negotiate a lease will not be unreasonably withheld.
Franchisor reserves the right to reject any site or lease proposal Franchisee submits and to require that
Franchisee obtain information on alternative sites.

(iii) After receiving Franchisor’s authorization to negotiate, Franchisee must negotiate the lease to
Franchisor’s satisfaction and submit a final, unsigned copy of the lease to Franchisor for its verification
that the Contingent Assignment (or other then used Lease Rider) is included. Franchisor may withhold
authorization for Franchisee to sign a lease that omits Franchisor’s Contingent Assignment (or other then
used Lease Rider) in substantially the same form in use by Franchisor at the time the lease is executed or
contains provisions Franchisor considers excessively onerous or restrictive.

(iv) FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR WILL HAVE NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR EVALUATING OR ADVISING FRANCHISEE WITH RESPECT TO ANY
BUSINESS OR LEGAL ASPECTS OF THE LEASE, AND THAT FRANCHISOR EXPRESSLY
ADVISES FRANCHISEE TO OBTAIN INDEPENDENT ADVICE OF COUNSEL WITH REGARD
TO ANY LEASE TERMS. FRANCHISEE FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR’S
ACCEPTANCE OF A LOCATION IS IN NO WAY A WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION BY
FRANCHISOR THAT FRANCHISEE’S PJ’S UNIT WILL BE PROFITABLE OR SUCCESSFUL
FROM THAT LOCATION.

FRANCHISEE’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT: INITIALS

v) When Franchisor is satisfied with the lease, Franchisor will give Franchisee written authorization
to sign it. After receiving Franchisor’s authorization to sign the lease, Franchisee must sign and furnish
Franchisor a photocopy of the executed lease, including all exhibits, attachments, and addenda. When
Franchisor verifies that the executed lease contains no variances from the form Franchisor accepted, it
will notify Franchisee that the location is finally accepted pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2. INSTALLATION AND COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS.

Franchisee, at its own expense, shall: (i) renovate the Location into a PJ’s Unit; (ii) obtain all necessary
governmental permits and licenses prior to beginning the renovation of its Location into a PJ’s Unit and
Franchisee shall fully complete the renovation, construction and equipping within a reasonable time
thereafter. Franchisee shall commence operation of each PJ’s Unit no later than 30 days following the
completion of the renovation, installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment, the franchisees receipt of a
certificate of occupancy from the local municipality and -upon completing all Franchisor’s pre-opening
requirements. Franchisee must employ an architect approved by the Franchisor, in Franchisor’s sole
discretion, for the preparation of all construction plans and specifications. Franchisee must use a licensed
and insured general contractor for all construction and remodeling on the interior or exterior of the
franchised location. In no event shall Franchisee construct or remodel the interior or exterior of any PJ’s
Unit or make any improvements which vary from the then-current standards, plans, and specifications
approved by Franchisor, without first obtaining Franchisor's prior written approval. Franchisee, at its own
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expense, shall obtain all municipal and state licenses necessary to operate Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit prior to
commencing business at its PJ’s Unit and shall maintain all licenses in full force and effect during the
term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3. TRAINING.

3.1. Franchisee will designate individuals (up to three persons) as trainee(s) to attend Franchisor’s
training school in Greater Metro New Orleans, Louisiana (the “Training School”) or at another training
location selected by Franchisor. Franchisor will offer initial training programs for Franchisee and its
management employees at times selected by Franchisor. Franchisor will bear the costs of providing
training programs, including the overhead costs of training, staff salaries, materials, and all technical
training tools. Franchisee shall pay all traveling, living, compensation, and other expenses incurred by
Franchisee and/or Franchisee’s employees in connection with attendance at training programs. The
training program and manner of conducting such program shall be at Franchisor’s sole discretion and
control.

3.2. Franchisee will not allow any PJ’s Unit to be opened or managed by any person who has not
attended and successfully completed the management training course designated by Franchisor. If
Franchisee is an individual and does not manage its PJ’s Unit on a day-to-day basis, and in the event its
designated unit manager resigns or is terminated, Franchisee must arrange to have the successor unit
manager: (i) begin the required training course within 45 days of first assuming the duties of a unit
manager; and (ii) successfully complete the course. Provided Franchisee successfully completes the
training program, the required training course conducted at Franchisor’s facilities will not extend beyond
two weeks.

3.3. If at any time the trainee voluntarily withdraws from, or is unable to complete its training, or fails
to demonstrate an aptitude, spirit or ability to comprehend and carry out the course of study to the
reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor, then Franchisor shall have the right to require Franchisee’s trainee
to attend other training class(es) or to perform additional operational training until Franchisor is
reasonably satisfied that Franchisee’s trainee has satisfactorily completed the training course. Franchisee
may not open its PJ’s Unit until training is completed to Franchisor’s reasonable satisfaction.

34. In the event of a sale to a third party of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit after opening, the transferee must
be trained in the Training School as a condition of Franchisor’s consent to such transfer. All tuition costs
for such training shall be deemed paid upon receipt by Franchisor of the $15,000.00 fee due in accordance
with Article 13 herein. In the event of an approved non-sale management transfer to a third party of
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, the transferee shall attend the Training School and pay to Franchisor the training
fee, which fee shall not exceed $8,000.00. No PJ’s Unit shall open or re-open until the Training School
certifies that the transferee is approved to operate the respective PJ’s Unit.

3.5. Franchisor will facilitate initial training at Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit at the time of its opening.
Franchisee’s attendance and participation at initial training is mandatory. Additional training sessions are
available at Franchisee’s request and expense, and at Franchisor’s request, at Franchisee’s expense,
except for the initial training course itself. Franchisee’s attendance at additional training sessions is
mandatory if requested by the Franchisor or if they are scheduled in Franchisee’s state. Franchisor may
not mandate more than two additional training sessions in a twelve-month period. For this additional
training, Franchisor will provide the instructors and instructional materials, but Franchisee must arrange
for transportation, lodging and food for itself and or its manager. Additional training sessions shall not
extend beyond five days. Additionally, Franchisee must attend regional meetings when and if established
by Franchisor.
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3.6 Franchisee must attend all PJ’s Annual Conventions unless exigent circumstances exist, and
Franchisee receives Franchisor’s prior approval not to attend. All costs related to the Annual Convention,
including but not limited to, registration fee(s), travel expenses, lodging, food, and entertainment shall be
Franchisee’s sole responsibility. Franchisee’s failure to register for the Annual Convention a minimum of
four weeks prior to the start date of the Annual Convention will result in a $500.00 penalty payable to the
Franchisor by Franchisee.

ARTICLE 4. MANUALS AND STANDARDS OF FRANCHISEE QUALITY,
CLEANLINESS, AND SERVICE.

4.1. STANDARDS.

In order to promote the value and goodwill of Franchisor’s Marks and the PJ’s System and to protect
Franchisor’s Marks and the other PJ’s Franchisees who comprise the franchise System, Franchisee agrees
to conduct its business in accordance with the standards promulgated by Franchisor as follows:

4.2. MANUALS.

1) In the Manuals and other publications, Franchisor will list authorized products to be sold
by Franchisee, and promulgate standards of operation for a PJ’s Unit, including standards of quality,
cleanliness, and service for all food, beverages, furnishings, interior and exterior decor, supplies, fixtures,
and equipment used in connection with each PJ’s Unit. Franchisee agrees to operate its PJ’s Unit in
accordance with the standards, specifications and procedures set forth in the Manuals, this Agreement,
and the lease for the Location. Franchisee further agrees that changes in the menu, or the standards,
specifications and procedures may become necessary from time to time and agrees to accept as reasonable
all modifications, revisions and additions to the Manuals as authorized by Franchisor. The sale of any
product or service at the Franchisee’s Location, without Franchisor’s prior written approval shall
constitute a material violation of this Agreement.

(i1) The Manuals and all amendments to the Manuals (and copies thereof) are copyrighted
and remain Franchisor’s property. They are loaned to Franchisee for the term of the Agreement and must
be returned to Franchisor upon the Agreement’s termination, expiration or nonrenewal. The Manuals are
highly confidential documents which contain certain trade secrets of Franchisor, and Franchisee shall
never reveal, and shall take all reasonable precautions, both during and after the term of this Agreement,
to assure that its employees or any other party under Franchisee’s control, shall never reveal any of the
contents of the Manuals or any other publication, recipe or secret provided by Franchisor, except as is
necessary for the operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. If Franchisee is not involved in the management of
Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, the manager must execute a Confidentiality Agreement, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Attachment B.

43. HOURS.

Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the hours of operation of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit are at a minimum,
6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on weekdays and 67:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on weekends. Franchisee agrees to
operate its PJ’s Unit during such hours. If the Location is in a mall or shopping center, the hours of the
mall or shopping center shall control. Franchisee shall diligently and efficiently exercise its best efforts to

achieve the maximum gress-net sales possible from its location and-wil-be-open-for-businessnotless-than
12 hoursper-dayduring its operating hours, seven (7) days per weeks;unless-additional-openinghours-are
reasonably required-to-maximize-operationsand-sales. If such hours are ineerreet-cither excessive or
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insufficient to maximizein-relationte- the sales potential of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, then Franchisor and
Franchisee shall reasonably adjust such hours by jointly establishing new hours of operation. It is
acknowledged that the hours of other Franchisees will vary in relation to each respective location, and
local legal restrictions, if any.

4.4.  APPEARANCE.

From time to time, Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit may need a cosmetic improvement or equipment change or
addition in order to comply with the Manuals and or to maintain proper operations and an aesthetic
appearance and professional image. Accordingly, Franchisor may require remodeling and renovation, and
modifications to existing equipment and improvements as is reasonably necessary. Franchisor shall not
require any such work at a particular Unit less than five years after the opening of the Unit except: (i) for
additional equipment if new food and beverage preparation methods or products are developed and
authorized by Franchisor; (i) if repairs or repainting are necessary to maintain the appearance of the
interior and exterior of the Location in a clean and orderly condition satisfactory to Franchisor; or (iii)
upon the sale of the Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. Within 30 days after receipt of written notice, Franchisee
shall commence such changes to its Unit operating under this Agreement. Franchisee shall have 90 days
after commencement to fully complete such changes. However, If the commencement of improvements
or equipment changes or additions require the Franchisee to obtain a permit from the local municipality,
the Franchisee shall have 90 days to fully complete such changes to its Unit following the issuance of the
permit from the local municipality.

4.5. PRODUCT LINE AND SERVICE.

Franchisee agrees to only serve the specified proprietary coffee items and other approved food and
beverage products specified by Franchisor in this Agreement or in the Manuals and to follow all
specifications and formulas of Franchisor as to specifications, contents, portion size and quality of
products served to its customers from Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit.

4.6. CONTAINERS, FIXTURES AND OTHER GOODS.

1) Franchisee agrees that all beverage and food items will be served in containers bearing
accurate reproductions of Franchisor’s Marks. All cups, containers, napkins, menus and other packaging
and like articles used in connection with Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit shall conform to Franchisor’s
specifications, shall be imprinted with Franchisor’s Marks, and shall be purchased by Franchisee from a
distributor or manufacturer approved in writing by Franchisor, as provided in Article 7, which approval
will not be unreasonably withheld.

(i1) No item of merchandise, furnishings, interior and exterior decor items, supplies, fixtures,
equipment, or utensils bearing any of Franchisor’s Marks shall be used in or upon any Unit unless the
same shall have been first submitted to and approved in writing by Franchisor.

4.7 INSPECTION.

Franchisee agrees to be subject to inspections conducted by Franchisor to ensure Franchisee is conducting
business in accordance with the standards promulgated by Franchisor.

ARTICLE 5. MENU, UNIFORMS, INSPECTIONS, SIGNS.

5.1.  MENU.
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) Franchisee shall not manufacture, advertise for sale, sell, or give away any product unless
such product has been approved in the Manuals as an authorized product for sale in Franchisee’s PJ’s
Unit and not thereafter disapproved in writing by Franchisor. All approved products shall be distributed
under the specific name designated by Franchisor. Franchisee shall establish all menu prices in its sole
discretion. Franchisee shall offer for sale in its Unit only the proprietary coffee products and other food &
beverage products that Franchisor designates as “approved and authorized” or which Franchisor has made
available as a “regionalized” menu or has otherwise specifically approved in writing (each, “Authorized
Product”). No standard product will be removed from the menu unless Franchisee is so instructed by
Franchisor.

(i1) Such “Authorized Products” shall be marketed by approved menu formats to be utilized
in Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit. The approved and authorized menu and menu format(s) may include, in
Franchisor’s discretion, requirements concerning organization, graphics, product descriptions,
illustrations, and any other matters (except prices) related to the menu, whether or not similar to those
listed. In Franchisor’s discretion, the menu and or menu format(s) may vary depending upon region,
market size, and other factors. Franchisor may change the menu and or menu format(s) from time to time
or region to region or authorize tests from region to region or authorize non-uniform regions or non-
uniform PJ’s Unit(s) within regions, in which case Franchisee will be given a reasonable time (not longer
than 30 days) to discontinue use of any old menu format(s) and implement use of the new menu
format(s).

(iii) Franchisee shall, upon receipt of notice from Franchisor, add any Authorized Product to
its menu according to the instructions contained in the notice. Franchisee shall have a minimum of 30
days after receipt of written notice in which to fully implement any such change. Franchisee shall cease
selling any previously approved product within 30 days after receipt of notice that the product is no
longer approved.

(iv) The Authorized Products sold by Franchisee shall be of the highest quality, and the
ingredients, composition, specifications, and preparation of such food products shall comply with the
instructions and recipes provided by Franchisor or contained in Franchisor’s Operations Manual, and with
the further requirements of Franchisor as they are communicated to Franchisee from time to time.

5.2. COMPLIANCE.

Franchisee shall operate its PJ’s Unit as a clean, orderly, legal, and respectable place of business in
accordance with Franchisor’s business standards and merchandising policies, and shall comply with all
applicable ordinances, laws, statutes, and regulations governing the operation of such premises, including
all disability, food and drug laws and regulations. Franchisee shall not allow any Location or part of a
Location to be used for any immoral or illegal purpose.

5.3. SIGNS, DESIGNS AND FORMS OF PUBLICITY.

1) Franchisee shall maintain suitable signs or awnings at, on, or near the front of the
Location, identifying the Location as a “PJ’s Coffee”. Such signs and awnings shall conform in all
respects to Franchisor’s requirements and in accordance with the layout and design plan approved for the
Location, except to the extent prohibited by local legal restrictions, and shall be purchased from an
approved supplier.

(i1) No exterior or interior sign or any design, advertisement, internet address, “web page”
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(including, but not limited to, social network mediums) or world wide web home page, sign, or form of
publicity, including form, color, number, location, and size, shall be used by Franchisee or any
Association (as defined below) unless first submitted to Franchisor and approved in writing (except with
respect to prices). Any request by Franchisee for such approval shall be properly submitted in-duplicate
to(-Franehisor’sto Franchisor’s LeeationDevelopmentDepartmentFranchising Division, Attention:
Chief Development Ofﬁcer—Leeaﬁeﬂ—Develepmem—Mraﬁagef 4480 LA- 22 Sulte 2, Mandevﬂle Lou1s1ana
70471180 New-Camellia Ana :

Franchlsor shall respond to such request w1th1n 30 days of 1ts recelpt 0therw1se such request shall be
deemed not approved. Whenever Franchisee elects to utilize, in the form supplied, advertising supplied by
Franchisor or any promotional item specifically approved by Franchisor, no further approval for use of
such material is required. Upon written notice from Franchisor, Franchisee shall discontinue and or
remove any objectionable advertising materials or any other materials not suitable for display, in
Franchisor's sole discretion.

54. UNIFORMS AND EMPLOYEE APPEARANCE.

Franchisee shall cause all employees, while working in the PJ’s Unit, to: (i) wear uniforms of such color,
design, and other specifications as Franchisor may designate from time to time; and (ii) present a neat and
clean appearance. If the type of uniform utilized by Franchisee is removed from the list of approved
uniforms, Franchisee shall have 60 days from receipt of written notice of such removal to discontinue use
of its existing inventory of uniforms and implement the approved type of uniform.

5.5. VENDING OR OTHER MACHINES.

Franchisee shall not permit vending, video gaming devices or game machines or any other mechanical
device to be installed or maintained in its Location without Franchisor’s prior written approval.
Franchisee agrees to purchase, install, and maintain a continuous music unit, approved by Franchisor, in
its Location. The music selections may be controlled by Franchisor.

5.6.  INSPECTION.

1) Franchisor’s authorized representatives shall have the right to enter upon the entire main
floor and basement of Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit during business hours, without disrupting Franchisee’s
business operations, for the purposes of examining same, conferring with Franchisee’s employees,
inspecting and checking operations, food, beverages, furnishings, interior and exterior decor, supplies,
fixtures, and equipment, and determining whether the business is being conducted in accordance with this
Agreement and the PJ’s Unit and the Manuals.

(i1) In the event any such inspection indicates any deficiency or unsatisfactory condition with
respect to any matter required under this Agreement or the Manuals, including but not limited to quality,
cleanliness, service, health and authorized product line, Franchisor will notify Franchisee in writing of
Franchisee’s non-compliance with the Manuals, the PJ’s Unit, or this Agreement. Franchisee shall have
24 hours after receipt of such notice, or such other greater time period as Franchisor in its sole discretion
may provide, to correct or repair such deficiency or unsatisfactory condition, if it can be corrected or
repaired within such period of time. If not, Franchisee shall within such time period commence such
correction or repair and thereafter diligently pursue it to completion.

ARTICLE 6. ADVERTISING, FRANCHISEE CO-OPERATIVES, AND OTHER FEES.
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6.1. Franchisee and Franchisor acknowledge the value of advertising and marketing. Franchisor
agrees to provide Franchisee with materials and advice to support Franchisee’s marketing efforts.
Franchisee agrees to pay appropriate percentage as stated on the Data Sheet of the Franchise Agreement
of its gress-net sales for each and every week of its operations to Franchisor (the “System Fee” or
“System Fund”). These funds will be deposited, at Franchisor’s sole discretion, into a segregated System
account (with other advertising collections) controlled by Franchisor. System payments will then be spent
for advertising and marketing to benefit Franchisee and/or all regional Franchisees of PJ’s Units. The
System Fee shall be paid in accordance with the procedure described in Article 9.

6.2. Franchisor, in its sole discretion, may spend the collected fees directly, or may authorize payment
of the advertising collections for media time, production of media materials, whether for radio, television,
newspapers, social, web or store level materials such as flyers, or posters, or for any other type of
advertising or marketing use. Franchisor is not, under any circumstances, obligated to contribute to any
national or local advertising fund, program, cooperative, or other organization any advertising fees or
contributions.

6.3. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, establish local marketing cooperatives for the common benefit
of all PJ’s franchisees. Franchisor has the right, in its sole discretion, to designate any geographical area
for purposes of establishing a regional marketing and promotions cooperative (“Cooperative”), and to
determine whether Franchisee must participate in a Cooperative. If a Cooperative has been established
applicable to the PJ’s Unit at the time Franchisee begins operating under this Agreement, Franchisee must
immediately become a member of such Cooperative. If a Cooperative applicable to the PJ’s Unit is
established at any time during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee must become a member of such
Cooperative no later than 30 days after the date on which the Cooperative begins operation. Franchisor
has the right to change, combine or dissolve cooperatives. If the PJ’s Unit is within 50 miles of more than
one Cooperative, Franchisee is required to be a member of only one such Cooperative. The following
provisions will apply to each Cooperative:

(1) Each member of the Cooperative must contribute 1% up to 3% of its weekly gress-net sales for
each and every week of its operations to the Cooperative (“Cooperative Fee”);

(i1) Each Cooperative will be organized and governed in a form and manner, and will commence
operation on a date, approved in advance by Franchisor;

(i) Each Cooperative will be organized for the exclusive purpose of administering regional marketing
and advertising programs and developing, subject to Franchisor’s approval, standardized marketing
materials for use by the members in the local markingmarket;

(iv) All activities and contributions to the Cooperative shall be determined by a majority vote of the
members in the Cooperatives; and

(v) No promotional or advertising plans or materials may be used by a Cooperative or furnished to its
members without Franchisor’s prior written approval. All such plans and materials shall be submitted to:

Franchisor’s Marketing—DepartmentFranchising Division, Attention: Director—ofMarketingChief
Development Officer, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-CamelliaBoulevard;

6.4.  HFranchisor may elects to payreceive all or a portion of the-SystemFund-te-a Cooperative’s

fund. If the Franchisor elects to do so, then the Franchisor shall deposit the funds into the System Fund
and reserves the right to exercise sole decision-making power over the System Funds. andifene-ofthe
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6.5.  Inaddition to the System Fee and Cooperative Fee, Franchisee agrees to spend a minimum of
$7,500 to 10,000 for its “Grand Opening” promotion as designated by Franchisor. If the PJ’s Unit is
within a 75-mile radius of an existing PJ’s Unit, Franchisee is required to spend $7,500.00 to promote the
grand opening. If the PJ’s Unit is more than 75 miles from an existing PJ’s Unit (“Pioneer Market”),
Franchisee is required to spend $10,000.00 on the grand opening advertisement. If the PJ’s Unit is in a
Pioneer Market, Franchisor will spend an additional $5,000.00 to promote the grand opening.
Franchisor’s Pioneer Market advertising spend will not be deducted from any national advertising fund.
The “Grand Opening” event is required for all Franchisees and functions to introduce Franchisee’s Unit to
the public. The application and use of the “Grand Opening” funds shall be controlled by Franchisor’s
marketing department.

6.6.  Franchisee shall sell or otherwise issue gift cards or certificates (together “Gift Cards”) that have
been prepared utilizing the standard form of Gift Card provided or designated by Franchisor, and only in
the manner specified by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisee shall fully honor all
Gift Cards that are in the form provided or approved by Franchisor regardless of whether a Gift Card was
issued by Franchisee or another PJ’s franchisee. Franchisee shall sell, issue, and redeem Gift Cards in
accordance with procedures and policies specified by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing by
a third-party service provider.

Franchisee shall pay the monthly fees that may be required by the vendor of the Gift Card system.
Franchisee shall not sell, issue, or redeem gift certificates other than gift cards approved by Franchisor in
writing.

Unless otherwise directed by certain state law, Franchisee acknowledges and understands that upon
the expiration of any Gift Card all unused funds shall become the property of Franchisor and at the
Franchisors discretion, unused funds may be distributed to participating Franchisees.

6.7. Franchisee shall participate in PJ’s customer loyalty program(s) designated by the
Franchisor. Franchise shall pay fees associated with the loyalty program(s).

6.8 Franchisee shall utilize the labor management and inventory management program(s)
designated by the Franchisor. Franchisee must pay fees associated with the labor management and inventory
management programs separately.

6.9 Franchisee shall utilize the mobile application platform designated by the Franchisor.
Franchisee must pay fees associated with the mobile application platform.

ARTICLE 7. COMPANY MARKS AND ADDITIONAL MARKS.

7.1. The license and related rights to use the System, the Manuals, Franchisor’s Marks, and any other
proprietary products granted by this Agreement are applicable only with respect to Franchisee’s Unit at
the Location, and not elsewhere, except in the event of a relocation approved in writing by Franchisor.
This Agreement does not authorize the use of mobile vending vehicles, carts, kiosks or any other non-
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traditional delivery units.

7.2. Franchisee shall not interfere in any manner with, or attempt to prohibit, the use of Franchisor’s
Marks by any other Franchisee of Franchisor or in connection with other PJ’s Units, distribution points or
any other Unit used to distribute PJ’s authorized or branded products.

7.3. Franchisor may, from time to time, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, obtain additional trademark
and or service mark rights in words and or designs. In the event of any of these occurrences, Franchisor
may license Franchisee to use those trademarks or service marks by giving written notification to
Franchisee that such marks now form part of Franchisor’s Marks. The term of such license will be
coextensive with the term of this Agreement or as otherwise established by Franchisor and will be subject
to all restrictions with respect to the use of those rights as set forth in this Agreement and in the notice
granting Franchisee the license.

7.4 In the event that litigation involving the Franchisor’s Marks is instituted or threatened against
Franchisee, who is still in good standing with Franchisor and is still authorized to use the Franchisor’s
Marks, Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and shall cooperate fully with Franchisor in
defending or settling such litigation. Franchisor shall defend and hold Franchisee harmless from any
claims of trademark infringement for the use of the Franchisor’s Marks, provided that Franchisee
promptly gives written notice to Franchisor and tenders the full defense of such claim to Franchisor.
Franchisor shall have the complete control and direction of any such legal action, including the settlement
thereof, without providing notice to Franchisee and shall bear all cost of defense of any such claim or suit.

ARTICLE 8. DISTRIBUTION AND PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES,
AND OTHER PRODUCTS.

Franchisee agrees to use and sell only the PJ’s proprietary and approved products that are (i) prepared
according to specified recipes, standards and procedures, including Franchisor’s and/or its affiliates’
proprietary coffee beans, beverages, mixes, syrups and food products and/or (ii) branded, trademarked,
produced and/or packaged exclusively for Franchisor and/or its affiliates (the “PJ’s Products”):

8.1. DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this Agreement, “distributor” is defined as any entity, except a manufacturer, that
directly or indirectly delivers raw materials to the Franchisee. A “manufacturer” is defined as the entity
that manufactures and or sells the Raw Materials to a distributor. Raw Materials mean all of the products
purchased from distributors, and or manufactured or sold by manufacturers or production entities which
are used in the creation of Authorized Products. Raw Materials include, but are not limited to beans,
printed paper goods, bakery products, dairy products, produce, and clothing (collectively, the “Raw
Materials™). “Authorized” means approved by Franchisor in accordance with the procedures established
in this Agreement.

8.2. DISTRIBUTORS.

1) Franchisee acknowledges that it is generally unrealistic from a cost and service basis to
have more than one distributor in the market area of Franchisee’s Unit, and that to obtain the lowest
distribution costs, all regional Franchisees should only purchase from one authorized PJ’s distributor.
Franchisee agrees to only purchase all equipment, supplies, Raw Materials and other products and
materials necessary for the operation of its Unit solely from Authorized distributors, and other authorized
sources who demonstrate, to the continuing reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor, the ability to meet
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Franchisor’s then-current standards and specifications for such items; who possess adequate quality
controls and capacity to supply Franchisee and all other Unit Franchisees needs promptly and reliably;
who demonstrate the ability and willingness to work with Franchisor to provide the assistance needed by
the those Franchisees in the region and all other Unit Franchisees; who agree to distribute all authorized
PJ’s products; who comply with Franchisor’s reasonable requirements; and who have been approved in
writing by Franchisor and not thereafter disapproved.

(i1) If Franchisee desires to purchase any items from an unapproved distributor, whom
Franchisee desires to become an Authorized distributor, Franchisee shall first submit a written request for
such approval to Franchisor’s Franchising Division, Attention: Chief Development OfficerFranehisot;

addressed-to—Vice Presidentof Operations, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471486 New
Camellia Boulevard,Suite 100,-Covington; Louisiana—70433; accompanied by a similar written request

for approval from the proposed distributor. Franchisor shall have the right to require that the proposed
distributor provide reasonable financial, operational and economic information regarding its business and
that Franchisor’s representatives be permitted to inspect the proposed distributor’s facilities and establish
economic terms, delivery, service and other requirements consistent with other distribution relationships
for other PJ’s Units. The proposed distributor shall pay to Franchisor in advance all of Franchisor’s
reasonable costs in review of the application of the distributor to service the Franchisee as well as all
current and future reasonable costs related to inspecting and reinspecting the distributor’s facilities,
equipment, Raw Materials in the distributor’s possession at any time. Franchisor may revoke its approval
upon the distributor’s failure to continue to meet any of Franchisor’s criteria. Nothing in this article shall
require Franchisor to approve any distributor. Upon the receipt by Franchisor of Franchisee and the
proposed distributor’s request for approval in full compliance of this article, Franchisor will notify
Franchisee of its decision within 90 days after completion of such application and inspection. In the event
an alternate approved distributor to the recommended distributor is used by Franchisee, as a condition
thereof Franchisee and all other Franchisees shall authorize the alternate distributor to provide to
Franchisor duplicate purchase invoices for Franchisor’s records and inspection purposes and to otherwise
comply with Franchisor’s reasonable requests.

83. MANUFACTURERS.

1) The parties agree that Franchisor’s product specifications and portion control system are
highly confidential information and are trade secrets of Franchisor. In order to, (i) achieve appropriate
pricing; (ii) obtain the specially formulated PJ’s authorized materials for Franchisee and all of
Franchisor’s system units; and (iii) establish consistent uniformity of PJ’s products, Franchisee
acknowledges that purchasing by all Unit or regional Franchisees from approved manufacturers is a
necessity. Because of the importance of quality and uniformity of product and the significance of product
specifications and portion control in the preparation of Authorized Products to achieve and maintain such
quality and uniformity, it is to the mutual benefit of the parties that Franchisor closely control the
production and distribution of the Materials used to produce authorized products sold by Franchisee.
Similar considerations may also apply to other products which Franchisor may develop in the future.
Franchisee therefore agrees to purchase only Raw Materials manufactured in accordance with
Franchisor’s specifications and quality standards by approved manufacturers who demonstrate, to the
continuing reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor, the ability to meet Franchisor’s then-current standards
and specifications for such items; who possess adequate quality controls and capacity to meet the needs of
Franchisee and all other PJ’s franchisees in a given region promptly and reliably; who demonstrate the
ability and willingness to work with Franchisor and to provide the assistance needed by the PJ’s Unit and
who have been approved in writing by Franchisor and not thereafter disapproved.
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(i1) If Franchisee desires to purchase any items from an unapproved manufacturer, who
Franchisee desires to become an Authorized manufacturer, Franchisee shall first submit a written request
for such approval to Franchisor’s Franchising Division, Attention: Chief Development OfficerEranchisor;

addressed-to—Vice Presidentof Operations, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471486 New
Camellia Boulevard,Suite 100,-Covington; Louisiana—70433; accompanied by a similar written request

for approval from the proposed manufacturer. Franchisor shall have the right to require that the proposed
manufacturer provide reasonable financial, operational and economic information regarding its business
and that Franchisor’s representatives be permitted to inspect the proposed distributor’s facilities and
establish economic terms, delivery, service and other requirements consistent with other with other
manufacturing relationships for other system units. The proposed manufacturer shall pay to Franchisor in
advance all of Franchisor’s reasonable costs in review of the application of the manufacturer to service
the Franchisee as well as all current and future reasonable costs related to inspecting and reinspecting the
manufacturer’s facilities, equipment and Raw Materials at any time. Franchisor may revoke its approval
upon the manufacturer’s failure to continue to meet any of Franchisor’s criteria. Nothing in this article
shall require Franchisor to approve any manufacturer. Upon the receipt by Franchisor of Franchisee and
the proposed manufacturer’s request for approval in full compliance of this article and the completion of
all of the inspections needed by Franchisor to evaluate the manufacturer, Franchisor will notify
Franchisee of its decision within 90 days after completion of such application and inspections. If an
alternate approved manufacturer to the recommended manufacturer is used by Franchisee, as a condition
thereof Franchisee and all other Franchisees shall authorize the alternate manufacturer to provide to
Franchisor duplicate purchase invoices for Franchisor’s records and inspection purposes and to otherwise
comply with Franchisor’s reasonable requests.

8.4. PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS.

Franchisee agrees to purchase the following items from the Franchisor, or an approved distributor and
manufacturer designated by Franchisor:

) All Branded PJ’s Products that bear Franchisor’s Mark; Franchisor has a long-term
strategic plan to create another profit center for Franchisee and itself by the sale of PJ’s branded products
in Units, supermarkets, grocery stores, etc. To accomplish this goal, Franchisor intends to develop such
products. To effectuate this long-term strategy, Franchisee agrees to cooperate with Franchisor with
respect to the purchase, display and sale of any Branded Products authorized for sale by Franchisor.
Franchisee consents to the receipt by Franchisor of licensing fees from manufacturers who manufacture
Branded Products which will compensate Franchisor for such use of Franchisor’s Marks.

(i1) Certain PJ’s standard exterior and interior signs; these signs require the prior fabrication
of sign molds or advance production in quantity to be either affordable or promptly available. If
Franchisor has entered into an agreement with approved sign manufacturer(s), granting rights to use
Franchisor’s Marks in connection with the signs and to sell such signs to PJ’s franchisees, Franchisee
agrees to purchase its signs from the authorized sign manufacturer(s).

(i)  Franchisee agrees that at such times that Franchisor establishes a regional or national
purchasing program for any of the Raw Materials, which may benefit Franchisee by reduced price, lower
labor costs, production of improved Authorized Product(s), increased reliability in supply, improved
distribution, Raw Material cost control (establishment of consistent pricing for reasonable periods to
avoid market fluctuations), improved operations by Franchisee or other tangible benefits to Franchisee,
Franchisee will participate in such purchasing program in accordance with the terms of such program.

(iv) PJ’s may elect to prepare pre-construction drawings which are designed to aid an
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architectural/engineering firm in the preparation of the complete construction drawing set for the PJ’s
Unit. The pre-construction drawings may include the following: existing and proposed floor plan,
reflected ceiling plan, equipment and furniture plan, finishes and details, and typical elevations plan.
Should Franchisor elect to offer this service, Franchisee agrees to purchase pre-construction drawings
from Franchisor. The fee for the pre-construction drawings will vary depending on the project scope and
size of the PJ’s Unit. Said fee can range from $500 to $2,500 per PJ’s Unit.

ARTICLE 9. CONTINUING FRANCHISE FEES, REPORTS, BOOKS AND RECORDS.
9.1. CONTINUING ROYALTY FEES.

1) Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor weekly during the term of this Agreement and any
renewals or extensions thereof, appropriate percentage as stated on the Data Sheet of the Franchise
Agreement of the weekly gressnet sales of Franchisee’s Unit (“Royalty Fee”). For the purposes of this
Agreement, “gress-net sales,” means gress-net revenues (excluding over-rings, refunds, price discounts,
allowances -and allewaneesany tips received from customers) received by Franchisee as payment,
whether in cash or for credit (and, if for credit, whether or not payment is received therefor), for all
beverages, food, and other goods, services, and supplies including all sales from approved co-brands as
descrlbed in Article 22 sold in or from each of F ranchlsee s PJ’s Unit, aﬂd—gfess—feveﬁ&es—reeewed—by

Leea&eﬁ excludmg sales taxes

(i1) At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall promptly execute or re-execute within five days
after Franchisor’s request, and deliver to Franchisor appropriate pre-authorized check forms or such other
instruments or drafts required by Franchisor’s bank, payable against Franchisee’s bank account, to enable
Franchisor to electronically (draft on Franchisee’s account by electronic withdrawal), collect the
continuing Royalty Fee (see Article 9.1(i)) and System Fee (see Article 6) of gress-net sales payable
under the terms of this Agreement. At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall, within five days from such
request, promptly perform such acts as to enable Franchisor or its designee to connect its computers to
Franchisee’s computer(s) or Franchisee’s POS System so that Franchisor or its designee may
electronically obtain statistical information regarding Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit activities that Franchisor
may in its sole discretion request. Franchisee agrees to not disconnect Franchisor or its designee from
such connection or phone line at any time, for any reason, without Franchisor’s prior written approval.
Franchisee specifically authorizes Franchisor to either “upload” or “download” information in and from
or to its computers, cash registers or other such devices as allowed by law, as it relates to the Unit
Operation by internet, intranet, and other networks or other means as they become available.

(iii)  Franchisee shall report its gress-net sales by the designated computer system within two
days after the end of each business week (currently Tuesday) or at such other times as are established by
Franchisor in its sole discretion. Franchisee shall submit written weekly summaries showing results of its
operations by the following Saturday. If Franchisee fails to report its sales on a timely basis, Franchisor
may estimate the amount of Franchisee’s sales. Franchisor will then deposit or transfer the reported, or in
the absence of a report, the estimated, amounts due into its own account, using the Unit Franchisee’s pre-
authorized checks or other instruments. If any draft, electronic or otherwise, is unpaid because of
insufficient funds or otherwise, then Franchisee shall pay Franchisor interest on the unpaid sum at a rate
of prime plus 2.5% per annum or the maximum rate allowed by the applicable Federal and/or state law, in
addition to Franchisor’s expenses arising from such non-payment, including bank fees hourly staff
charges arising from such default, and any other related expenses incurred by Franchisor. By the fifth day
of each month Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor any sums unpaid for the prior month to adjust for sales
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owed for any partial week or sales that were unpaid, improperly recorded or not credited on Franchisees
books and records. Franchisee hereby agrees to pay any sales, use or other tax now or hereinafter imposed
on franchise fees, advertising fees or any additional rental collected under the sublease for the Location,
imposed by any Federal, state or local governmental authorities. Franchisor, at its sole discretion, may
collect the taxes in the same manner as franchise fees are collected herein and if Franchisor collects such
taxes, Franchisor shall promptly pay the tax collections to the appropriate governmental authority.

9.2. REPORTS AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS.

1) Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor a monthly Profit and Loss Statement no later than
fifteen (15) calendar days following the end of each month, signed and certified by Franchisee with
respect to Franchisee’s Unit. If Franchisee fails to supply Franchisor with monthly Profit and Loss
Statements within twenty (20) calendar days following the end of the month, without reasonable cause,
Franchisor may assess a $100 fine. In addition, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor an annual Profit and
Loss Statement prepared by an accountant, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
If Franchisee fails to supply Franchisor with an annual Profit and Loss Statement within thirty (30)
calendar days following the end of the fiscal year, without reasonable cause, Franchisor may assess a
$100 fine. Franchisee shall also provide Franchisor with copies of signed original sales and use tax forms
contemporaneously with their filing with the appropriate state or local authority. Franchisor reserves the
right to require such further information concerning Franchisee’s Unit as Franchisor may from time-te
timetime-to-time reasonably request.

(i1) Upon ten (10) days’ prior written notice, Franchisor, its agents or representatives may
audit Franchisee’s books and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In
connection with such audit(s) or other operational visits, Franchisee agrees to keep its reports, cash
receipts records, weekly and monthly control forms, accounts payable records including all payments to
Franchisee’s suppliers in its PJ’s Unit or at its business office for three (3) years after their due date,
which records shall be available for examination by Franchisor or its representative(s), at Franchisor’s
request. Without any prior written notice, Franchisor, its agents or representatives may inspect
Franchisee’s entire Unit and Franchisee’s daily, weekly and monthly statistical information. Franchisee
shall make such information available for such inspections in recognition that an operational inspection
cannot succeed without review of essential statistical information.

(i)  If any audit or other investigation reveals an under-reporting or under-recording error of
5% or more, then in addition to any other sums due, the expenses of the audit/inspection shall be borne
and paid by Franchisee upon billing by Franchisor, plus interest at the highest compound rate authorized
by the state in which the Unit is located.

(iv) Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor’s Operations Department regularly reviews
ongoing operations at PJ’s Units to ensure consistency of products and service and compliance with the
Manuals and this Agreement. Franchisee therefore agrees to promptly complete and submit all forms
requested by Franchisor’s Operations Department, whether on either a daty;-weekly or monthly basis.
Non-compliance with this obligation constitutes a material violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10. COVENANT REGARDING OTHER BUSINESS INTERESTS.

10.1.  For purposes of this Article only, “Franchisee” shall mean and include the individual Franchisee;
Franchisee’s spouse and minor children; Franchisee’s shareholders, officers, and directors, if Franchisee
is a corporation; and any one or more partners or participants in Franchisee, if Franchisee is a partnership
or joint venture, or members, if Franchisee is an LLC.
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10.2.  Franchisee acknowledges that the PJ’s System is unique and distinctive and has been developed
by Franchisor at great effort, time, and expense, and that Franchisee has regular and continuing access to
valuable and confidential information, training, and trade secrets regarding the PJ’s System. Franchisee
recognizes its obligations to keep confidential such information as set forth herein. Franchisee therefore

agrees as follows:

1) During the term of this Agreement, except with Franchisor’s prior written consent,
Franchisee shall not, in any capacity whatsoever, either directly or indirectly, individually or as a member
of any business organization, engage in the production or sale at retail or wholesale of any coffee beans,
coffee products, specialty coffee beverages, mixes, syrups and coffee house-type food products now or in
the future approved by Franchisor for use in Franchisee’s PJ’s Unit, or have any employment or interest
in any firm engaged in the production or sale of such products.

(i1) Upon the termination, expiration or nonrenewal of this Agreement, or if Franchisee
assigns or transfers its interest herein to any person or business entity, or if any person identified in the
first paragraph of this Article terminates its relationship with Franchisee, then for a period of 24 months
thereafter such Franchisee shall not, in any capacity whatsoever, either directly or indirectly, individually
or as a member of any business organization, engage in the production or sale at retail of any coffee
beans, coffee products, specialty coffee beverages, mixes, syrups and coffee house-type food products, or
have any employment or interest in any firm engaged in the production or sale at retail or wholesale of
any such products, at a site within a radius of 50 miles of any of Franchisee’s former Unit or within 20
miles of any other PJ’s Unit or Distribution Point then existing, unless Franchisor gives its prior written
consent. If Franchisee violates the terms of this paragraph, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor, as
liquidated damages, an amount equal to $1,500 per month for each month this covenant is violated, plus
7% of the gress-net sales achieved at the site during the continuation of such violation.

(iii) In the event any portion of the above covenants violates laws affecting Franchisee or is
held invalid or unenforceable in a final judgment to which Franchisor and Franchisee are parties, then the
maximum legally allowable restriction permitted by law shall control and bind Franchisee. Franchisor
may at any time unilaterally reduce the scope of any part of the above covenants, and Franchisee shall
comply with any such reduced covenant upon receipt of written notice.

10.3.  The provisions of this Article shall not limit, restrain or otherwise affect any right or cause of
action which may accrue to Franchisor for any infringement of, violation of, or interference with, this
Agreement, or Franchisor’s Marks, System, trade secrets, or any other proprietary aspects of Franchisor’s
business.

ARTICLE 11. INTERFERENCE WITH EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS.

Without Franchisor’s prior written consent, during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall not
employ or seek to employ, directly or indirectly, any person serving in an executive, managerial or
operational position who is at the time or was at any time during the prior six months employed by
Franchisor. Request for Franchisor’s consent shall be sent in-duplieate-and addressed in writing to
Franchisor’s Franchising Division, Attention: Chief Development OfficerEranchiser’s-Chief Operating
Offieer, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471180 New-Camellia Boulevard,Suite 100;

Ceovington;Louistana70433.

ARTICLE 12. SUBFRANCHISORS, SALESMEN.

Inasmuch as this Agreement has not been executed by the Franchisee at the office of Franchisor,
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Franchisor requires certain assurances that this Agreement has been sold in accordance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. Accordingly, in order to induce Franchisor to execute this Agreement,
Franchisee agrees to execute a Franchise Disclosure Acknowledgement Statement to this Agreement that
acknowledges that Franchisor is relying upon the acknowledgments, representations and commitments of
Franchisee that no other salesman, staff member, entity, or associate of Franchisor has met Franchisee
regarding this franchise sale or the offer and acceptance thereof other than those set forth therein. The
statement shall identify all salespersons involved in the sales, negotiation and execution of this
Agreement and shall identify any subfranchisor. Franchisor shall be entitled to rely on the Franchise
Disclosure Acknowledgement Statement, and Franchisee shall be bound by its contents.

ARTICLE 13. NATURE OF INTEREST, AND TRANSFER.

13.1. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

1) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of Franchisor.
Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign this Agreement to any person or legal entity who
assumes its terms and agrees to comply with Franchisor’s obligations contained herein. Franchisor shall
have no liability for the performance of any obligations contained in this Agreement after the effective
date of such transfer or assignment.

(i1) The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to Franchisee. Accordingly,
except as otherwise permitted herein, neither Franchisee nor any person with an interest in Franchisee
shall, without Franchisor’s prior written consent, directly or indirectly sell, assign, transfer, convey, give
away, pledge, mortgage, or otherwise encumber any direct or indirect interest in this Agreement or, if
Franchisee is a partnership, joint venture, LLC or corporation, any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee.
Any such purported assignment occurring by operation of law or otherwise without Franchisor’s prior
written consent shall constitute a default of this Agreement by Franchisee and shall be null and void.
Except in the instance of Franchisee advertising to sell its Unit pursuant to the terms hereof, Franchisee
shall not, without Franchisor’s prior written consent, offer for sale or transfer at public or private auction
or advertise publicly for sale or transfer, the furnishings, interior and exterior decor items, supplies,
fixtures, equipment, Franchisee’s sublease or the real or personal property used in connection with
Franchisee’s Unit.

(iii) Upon immediate completion of Franchisee’s sale transaction, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor an administrative/transfer fee of $15,000 to cover Franchisor’s training expenses and
additional cost associated with the transfer. This administrative transfer fee will not be due with respect to
any transfer that (together with all other related previous, simultaneous, or proposed transfers) does not
result in the transfer of control of Franchisee.

(iv) Franchisee’s rights may pass to Franchisee’s next of kin or legatee if they assume
Franchisee’s obligations and attend and complete Franchisor’s training program. Upon Franchisee’s
disability, Franchisee may sell the franchise or keep it, if operated by trained personnel.

v) Franchisor’s consent to a transfer shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have
against the transferring party arising out of this Agreement or otherwise.

(vi) If Franchisee is an individual, Franchisor hereby consents to the assignment of this
Agreement and any and all obligations referable thereto without any fee charged by Franchisor to a
corporation, or other entity, principally owned by Franchisee within 90 days from the date hereof. Upon
such assignment and assumption by the corporation, or other entity, along with delivery of executed
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originals of same to Franchisor, Franchisee/Transferee must enter into a Personal Guarantee, attached
hereto as Attachment A, regardless of Franchisee’s ownership in the business entity.

13.2. CONSENT TO TRANSFER.

For all proposed transfers or assignments of this Agreement, and transfers of more than 51% of the
outstanding and issued stock of Franchisee by one or more transfers or any transfer which, directly or
indirectly, effectively changes management control of Franchisee, Franchisor will not unreasonably
withhold its consent to any transfer or assignment which is subject to the restrictions of this Article,
provided however, Franchisor shall not be required to give its consent unless all of the following
conditions are met prior to the effective date of assignment:

1) Upon the execution of this Agreement and upon each direct or indirect transfer of
an interest in this Agreement or in Franchisee and at any other time upon Franchisor’s request, Franchisee
shall, within five days prior to such transfer or at any other time at Franchisor’s request, furnish
Franchisor with an estoppel agreement indicating any and all causes of action, if any, that Franchisee may
have against Franchisor or if none exist and a list of all shareholders or partners having an interest in this
Agreement or in Franchisee, the percentage interest of each shareholder or partner, and a list of all
officers and directors, in such form as Franchisor may require.

(i1) Franchisee’s written request for transfer of either a partial or whole interest in this
Agreement or Franchisee’s Unit must be accompanied by an offer to Franchisor of a right of first refusal
at the same price offered by any bona fide buyer. Franchisor shall have the right and option, exercisable
within 15 days after receipt of such written notification, to send written notice to Franchisee or such
person that Franchisor or its third-party designee, intends to purchase the interest, which is proposed to be
transferred, on the same terms and conditions offered by the third party. If Franchisor accepts such offer,
the transfer/administrative fee due by Franchisee shall be waived by Franchisor. Any material change in
the terms of an offer prior to closing shall cause it to be deemed a new offer, subject to the same right of
first refusal by Franchisor, or its third-party designee, as in the case of the initial offer. Franchisor’s
failure to exercise such option shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement,
including any of the requirements of this Article with respect to the proposed transfer.

(iii) The Franchisee is not in default under the terms of this Agreement or any other
agreement with Franchisor, the Manuals or any other obligations owed Franchisor, and all of its then-due
monetary obligations to Franchisor have been paid in full.

(iv) The Franchisee and its shareholders or members, if the Franchisee is a corporation or
limited liability company, have executed a general release under seal, in a form prescribed by Franchisor,
of any and all claims against Franchisor, its shareholders, directors, officers, subfranchisors, and
employees.

v) The transferee/assignee has demonstrated to Franchisor’s satisfaction that it meets all of
Franchisor’s then-current requirements for new Franchisees or for holders of an interest in a franchise,
including, without limitation, possession of good moral character and reputation, satisfactory credit
ratings, acceptable business qualifications, and the ability to fully comply with the terms of this
Agreement.

(vi) The transferee/assignee, its manager or other employees responsible for the operation of

the PJ’s Unit have satisfactorily completed Franchisor’s training program.
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(vii)  The transferee/assignee executes such other documents as Franchisor may require. This
will include a replacement franchise agreement on the then-current franchise agreement and any other
forms used by Franchisor.

ARTICLE 14. TERM, DEFAULT AND TERMINATION.
14.1. TERM.

1) Provided Franchisee is not in default of the terms and conditions contained in its Location
lease and this Agreement, this Agreement shall continue for a period of 10 years commencing upon the
Franchisee opening the PJ’s Unit.

(i1) Franchisee may renew the rights granted by this Agreement for threetwe additional terms
of 10 years each, subject to the following conditions:

(a) Franchisee gives Franchisor written notice of Franchisee’s election to renew not
less than six and not more than 24 months before the end of the then current term,;

(b) Franchisee is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or any
amendments to this Agreement, the Location lease, the Manuals or any monetary obligation owed to
Franchisor; and

(©) At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall undertake and complete the reasonable
renovation or modernization of its PJ’s Unit.

(d) Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s then-current franchise agreement and
related agreements. Notwithstanding the execution of the Franchisor’s then-current franchise agreement
upon renewal under this Section, Franchisee shall not be required to pay the initial franchise fee called for
therein_ nor shall the Franchisee be subject to any increase in royalty fees set forth in the then-current
franchise agreement.

14.2.  DEFAULTS WITHOUT OPPORTUNITY TO CURE.

Franchisee shall be in default and Franchisor may, at its option, upon 30 days’ written notice to
Franchisee, terminate this Agreement and all rights granted by it, without affording Franchisee any
opportunity to cure the default, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

1) Franchisee’s knowingly or intentionally maintaining false books or records, or submitting
any false report or payment to Franchisor;
y P pay

(i1) Franchisee’s conduct of the PJ’s Unit licensed pursuant to this Agreement is so contrary
to this Agreement, the System and the Manuals as to constitute an imminent danger to the public health
(for example, selling spoiled food knowing that the food products are spoiled or allowing a dangerous
condition arising from a lack of security for customers to continue despite Franchisee’s knowledge of
such condition), or selling regularly unauthorized products to the public after notice of default and
continuing to sell such products whether or not Franchisee has cured the default after one or more notices;

(i)  The conviction of a felony, or a crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime or
offense that is reasonably likely, in the sole reasonable opinion of Franchisor, to adversely affect the Unit,
Franchisor’s Marks; the goodwill associated with the System or Franchisor’s interest in each of them by
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Franchisee’s, or its controlling or operating shareholders or members if Franchisee is a limited liability
company;

(iv) Franchisee’s intentional disclosure or use of the contents of the Manual, trade secrets or
confidential or proprietary information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor in violation of this
Agreement, excluding acts of independent employees or others not under Franchisee’s control; or

v) If Franchisee repeatedly commits defaults under any provisions of this Agreement or any
other agreement with Franchisor on three or more occasions in any 12-month period, or six or more
occasions in any consecutive 24-month period, even if Franchisee cured each such prior default, and even
if Franchisee would otherwise be given an opportunity to cure the current default.

(vi) Franchisee, without Franchisor’s consent, ceasing to operate or otherwise abandoning its
PJ’s Unit or any other PJ’s Units or upon destruction of its PJ’s Unit, failure to rebuild and resume
operation within a reasonable time. Cessation of the business shall not constitute a default under this
Agreement if caused by condemnation, expiration of a Location lease pursuant to its terms at execution,
natural, governmental or supplier related causes out of Franchisee’s control, or when failure to rebuild
following destruction of the Unit is prohibited by law or the Location lease. In the event of termination
pursuant to this subsection, the written notice period shall commence five days from the date Franchisor
sends written notice to Franchisee. At the expiration of this time period, this Agreement shall be deemed
terminated. For purposes of this article, ceasing to operate or otherwise abandoning its Unit shall be
defined as Franchisee’s failure to open its PJ’s Unit for business for five consecutive days.

14.3. DEFAULTS WITH OPPORTUNITY TO CURE.

1) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Franchisee shall have 10 days after
Franchisor’s written notice of default within which to remedy any default under this Section 14.3, and to
provide evidence of such remedy to Franchisor. If any such default is not cured within that time period, or
such longer time period as applicable law may require, Franchisor may, at its option, terminate this
Agreement and all rights granted by it, by sending a five-day written notice of cancellation of this
Agreement to Franchisee. Upon the expiration of such five-day period, this Agreement shall end and
expire as if it were the day fixed for termination of this Agreement.

(i1) Franchisee shall be in material default under this Article for any failure to comply with
any of the requirements imposed by this Agreement. Such material defaults shall include, without
limitation, the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) Franchisee’s failure, refusal, or neglect to promptly pay any monies owed to
Franchisor when due, or to submit the financial or other information required by Franchisor under this
Agreement.

(b) Franchisee’s failure to maintain the standards specified by Franchisor in the
Manual or otherwise.

() Franchisee’s failure, refusal or neglect to obtain Franchisor’s prior written
approval or consent as required by this Agreement.

(d) Franchisee’s misuse or unauthorized use of Franchisor’s Marks or other material
impairment of the goodwill associated therewith or Franchisor’s rights therein.
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(e) Franchisee’s commencement or conducting of any business operation, or
marketing of any product, under a name or mark which, in Franchisor’s reasonable opinion, is
confusingly similar to Franchisor’s Marks.

® Franchisee’s default, without cure after the applicable grace period, under any
lease, sublease, sub-sublease, mortgage, or deed of trust covering the Location.

(2) Franchisee’s failure to procure or maintain the insurance required by this
Agreement or in the lease and sublease for the Location.

(h) Franchisee’s default in the performance of any term, condition or obligation in
payment of any indebtedness to its landlord or sublandlord, distributors or suppliers or others arising out
of the purchase of inventory, supplies or purchase or lease of equipment for operation of its Unit, and if
any such default is not cured within 30 days after written notice by Franchisor to Franchisee, unless
Franchisee is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be not in default.

14.4. In the event of a default by Franchisee, all of Franchisor’s costs and expenses arising from such
default, including reasonable legal fees and reasonable hourly charges of Franchisor’s administrative
employees shall be paid to Franchisor by Franchisee within five days after cure.

14.5. Notwithstanding the obligations of Franchisee and Franchisor to arbitrate all disputes and other
conflicts, Franchisee and Franchisor acknowledge that certain defaults require immediate action to protect
the appropriate party. Accordingly, Franchisor and Franchisee each hereby consent to and authorize the
other party to apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for judicial assistance in restraining and
enjoining violations of this Agreement. Both Franchisor and Franchisee are entitled to an injunction
restraining Franchisor or Franchisee from committing or continuing to commit any default, breach or
threatened breach of this Agreement, without showing or proving any actual damage sustained by the
party seeking such relief.

14.6. Non-enforcement by Franchisor of any violation of the terms of this Agreement by Franchisee
shall not constitute a waiver of such violation by Franchisor nor shall Franchisor be deemed to have
waived any of its rights to enforce compliance by Franchisee of such breach or any other breach of this
Agreement.

14.7.  EARLY TERMINATION.

In addition, If Franchisee ceases to operate or otherwise abandons its PJ’s Unit before this Agreement
expires without Franchisor’s prior written consent, Franchisee must pay Franchisor an early termination
fee (“Early Termination Fee”) for breaching this Agreement. However, if the Franchisee ceases to
operate its PJ’s Unit for failing to achieve at least $200,000 in gress-net sales for a Non-traditional PJ’s
Unit or $400,000 in gress-net sales for Traditional PJ’s Unit over a consecutive twelve-month period
despite the Franchisee’s best efforts, Franchisee shall not be required to pay Franchisor an Early
Termination Fee. The amount of the Early Termination Fee is calculated as follows:

1) Compute the average monthly Royalty and System Fees paid during the 12-month period
immediately preceding the date Franchisor receives notification of the closure, or, if the store has been
open for less than 12 months, the average monthly Royalty and System Fees paid since the opening of the
PJ’s Unit; and

(i1) Multiply the average monthly Royalty and System Fees calculated in (i) above by the number of
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months remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement.

For example purposes only: If the average monthly Royalty and System Fees were $1,000 and
there were five years (60 months) remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Early
Termination Fee would be $60,000, calculated as follows: $1,000 x 60 months = $60,000.

If Franchisee unilaterally terminates this Agreement prior to the end of the term of this Agreement,
Franchisee must give Franchisor 90 days prior written notice of the early termination (the “Early
Termination Notice”). Within 10 days of Franchisor’s receipt of Franchisee’s Early Termination Notice,
Franchisor will calculate the Early Termination Fee, which will be due and payable 30 days prior to the
closure of the PJ’s Unit covered by this Agreement. In the event that Franchisee does not (i) provide
Franchisor with the Early Termination Notice at least 90 days prior to the early termination of the PJ’s
Unit and this Agreement; (ii) remain open for at least 90 days after providing Franchisor with the Early
Termination Notice; and (iii) pay the Early Termination Fee in full at least 30 days prior to closing the
PJ’s Unit covered by this Agreement, the Early Termination Fee due will be increased as follows: it will
be calculated by multiplying the average monthly Royalty and System Fees by the number of months
remaining in the term of the this Agreement, and the Early Termination Fee will increase by 10%.

If Franchisee has not paid its Royalty and System Fees for any period(s) within the 12 months prior to
notifying Franchisor of its early termination, or if Franchisee has not reported its Gress-Net Sales for any
period(s) within the 12 months prior to notifying Franchisor of Franchisee’s intended early termination,
Franchisor will estimate the Royalty and System Fees based upon prior reports to calculate the average
monthly Royalty and System Fees.

ARTICLE 15. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION.

Upon the termination of Franchisee’s rights granted under this Agreement, (whether during the term of
the Agreement or at its conclusion) the following shall apply:

15.1.  Upon termination of this Agreement by lapse of time or by default, Franchisee’s right to use
Franchisor’s Marks, or any other mark distributed by Franchisor or insignia or slogan used in connection
therewith, or any confusingly similar trademark, service mark, trade name or insignia shall cease.
Franchisee shall immediately discontinue use of Franchisor’s Marks, System, and color scheme.
Franchisee shall at its own cost, make cosmetic changes to Franchisee’s Unit from Franchisor’s
proprietary designs including, but not limited to, the removal of all PJ’s identifying materials and
distinctive PJ’s cosmetic finishes, tile walls, interior wall coverings and colors, exterior finishes and
colors, signage and PJ’s eeunterequipmentpoint of sale system (which shall be deemed proprietary to
Franchisor) from the Location as Franchisor may reasonably direct.

15.2.  Franchisor may retain all fees paid pursuant to this Agreement.

15.3.  Any and all obligations of Franchisor to Franchisee under this Agreement shall immediately
cease and terminate.

15.4.  Any and all rights of Franchisee under this Agreement shall immediately cease and terminate.

15.5. Inno event shall a termination or expiration of this Agreement affect Franchisee’s obligations to
take or abstain from taking any action in accordance with this Agreement. The provisions of this
Agreement which constitute post-termination covenants and agreements including the obligation of
Franchisor and Franchisee to arbitrate any and all disputes shall survive the termination or expiration of
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this Agreement.

15.6.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that rights in and to Franchisor’s Marks and the use thereof
shall be and remain the property of Franchisor.

15.7.  If Franchisee has registered any of Franchisor’s Marks or the name “PJ’s Coffee” as part of
Franchisee’s assumed, fictitious or corporate name, Franchisee shall promptly amend such registration to
delete Franchisor’s Marks therefrom.

15.8.  In addition to the Early Termination Fee set forth in Article 14, Franchisee shall immediately pay
any and all amounts owing to Franchisor.

15.9.  Franchisor shall have the option, exercisable by written notice within 30 days after the
termination of this Agreement, to take an assignment of all telephone numbers (and associated listings)
for Franchisee’s Unit. Franchisee is not entitled to any compensation from Franchisor if Franchisor
exercises this option.

ARTICLE 16. INSURANCE.

16.1.  Franchisee shall obtain and maintain insurance coverage which shall in each instance designate
Franchisor as an additional named insured, with an insurance company approved by Franchisor, which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld as follows:

1) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including products liability and sexual
harassment coverage) with coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, and $1,000,000 aggregate with
full replacement value of business contents property coverage. New Orleans Brew, LLC must be listed as
an additional insured.

(i1) Business interruption insurance, including Location rentals and Additional Rentals for
twelve (12) months after casualty, in amounts equal to at least $100,000. The business interruption
insurance shall include an endorsement providing coverage for off-premise power failure or utility
interruption caused by any covered cause of loss as stated in the policy, if available.

(iii))  Workers’ compensation insurance as required by applicable law.

(iv) Fire, and extended coverage insurance, insuring the construction of improvements and
completed PJ’s Unit operated by Franchisee, for the full replacement value thereof.

v) If Franchisee establishes a delivery service for Authorized Products, Franchisee shall
obtain separate non-owned auto coverage insurance. Franchisee may not directly or indirectly deliver any
Authorized Products until such insurance is obtained and Franchisor named as additional insured therein.

16.2.  In the event of damage to the Unit covered by insurance, the proceeds of any such insurance shall
be used to restore the Unit to its original condition as soon as possible, unless such restoration is
prohibited by the Location lease or Franchisor has otherwise consented to in writing. Upon obtaining such
insurance, Franchisee shall promptly provide to Franchisor proof of such insurance coverage and or at
such other times upon the request of Franchisor.

16.3.  Franchisee shall, prior to opening its Unit, file with Franchisor, certificates of such insurance and
shall promptly pay all premiums on the policies as they become due. In addition, the policies shall contain
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a provision requiring 30 days’ prior written notice to Franchisor of any proposed cancellation,
modification, or termination of insurance. If Franchisee fails to obtain and maintain the required
insurance, Franchisor may, at its option, in addition to any other rights it may have, procure such
insurance for Franchisee without notice and Franchisee shall pay, upon demand, the premiums and
Franchisor’s costs in taking such action.

ARTICLE 17. SOLE OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISOR.

17.1.  As described in Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document (the “FDD”), received by
Franchisee at least fourteen (14) business days prior to the execution, unless otherwise directed by certain
state law, of this Agreement, Franchisor has obligated itself to provide specific services to Franchisee.
Franchisor also provides other voluntary services at its sole discretion. Franchisor and Franchisee agree
that the following are the only required obligations of Franchisor:

1) To reasonably assist Franchisee with any operational or financial problem encountered by
Franchisee, provide notice to Franchisor’s Franchising Division, Attention: Chief Development
OfﬁcerFr%eHser—Aﬁenﬂma—Gh&eﬁ@pem%mg—@#ﬁeef 4480 LA 22 Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana

: : Ana , by certified mail (return
receipt requested) or at any subsequent addresses estabhshed by Franchisor, of Franchisee’s problem and
the type of assistance needed. At no time shall reasonable assistance be interpreted to require Franchisor
to pay any money to Franchisee. Franchisor, in its sole discretion, may provide any assistance at
Franchisor’s designated office or where Franchisee is located, at a time to be determined by Franchisor.

(i1) To reasonably administer the advertising program. Franchisee acknowledges that
pursuant to the advice of advertising and marketing professionals, advertising collections will at times be
aggregated until sufficient revenues are accumulated to commence or complete an advertising or
marketing program. Reasonable administration shall be deemed to be good faith attempts to utilize the
advertising funds in accordance with the advice and suggestions of the advertising and marketing staff or
outside advertising and or marketing companies, consultants or other entities retained for such purpose.

(i)  To assist Franchisee in arranging for the initial financing of its Unit, if feasible and
necessary (Franchisor is not directly or indirectly responsible for the failure of Franchisee to meet the
qualifying standards of such independent financing sources).

(iv) To supply to Franchisee a set of standard decor and layout plans and to thereafter approve
the initial decor and layout of Franchisee’s Unit, upon Franchisee meeting all criteria with regard to same.

v) To loan Franchisee a copy of its Operations Manual or computer diskette thereof which
manual contains mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and procedures, as well as any other
Manuals produced by Franchisor. These Manuals are confidential and remain Franchisor’s property.

(vi) To train Franchisee in accordance with this Agreement, and to provide Franchisee with
assistance in opening the Unit.

17.2.  Franchisor shall not and cannot be held in breach of this Agreement until (i) Franchisor has
received notice of any alleged breach from Franchisee in duplicate, by registered mail, sent to the parties
set forth in sub-section (i) of this Article; and (i) Franchisor has failed to remedy the breach within a
reasonable period of time after such notice, which period shall not be less than sixty (60) days. This is a
material term of this Agreement and may not be modified or changed by any arbitrator in an arbitration
proceeding or otherwise in any court of competent jurisdiction.
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ARTICLE 18. POINT OF SALE SYSTEM, COLLECTION OF DATA.

18.1. This Agreement and the Manuals require the submission of weekly statistical control forms as
well as other financial, operational and statistical information required by Franchisee and Franchisor to:
(1) assist Franchisee in the operation of its Unit in accordance with the System; (ii) allow Franchisor to
monitor the Franchisee’s gress-net sales, purchases, costs and expenses; (iii) enable Franchisor to develop
system wide statistics which may improve bulk purchasing; (iv) assist Franchisor in the development of
new authorized products or the removal of existing unsuccessful Authorized Products; (v) enable
Franchisor to refine existing Authorized Products; (vi) generally improve system wide understanding of
the Unit; and (vii) obtain new types of information unknown at this time (collectively, the “Information”).
To achieve these results, cash collection and data processing systems are necessary.

18.2.  Franchisee agrees to purchase and use the point of sale cash collection and data processing
system (the “POS System”) and only the specified software authorized by Franchisor, as specified in the
Manuals or otherwise by Franchisor in writing. The POS System and network must be secure and PCI
compliant to protect customer credit card information. Optional equipment upgrades are also available for
additional fees. Units with a drive-thru must have two (2) POS systems. Franchisee also agrees to accept
all forms of payment as directed by Franchisor, including certain designated credit and/or debit cards and
to purchase or lease all necessary equipment to accept such payment. Franchisee may be required to
purchase a back-office computer system including a network switch and laser printer.

18.3.  Franchisee agrees to: (i) connect the POS Unit to the internet; (ii) maintain it in good working
order; and (iii) not disconnect any POS System connection from the internet at any time, for any reason,
without prior written approval. Franchisee agrees, at Franchisor’s request, to maintain membership in a
designated third-party network for the purpose of implementing, transmitting, collecting and maintaining
any Information or data exchange system. Franchisee specifically authorizes Franchisor to either
“upload” or “download” information in and from or to its computers, cash registers or other such devices
as allowed by law, as it relates to the system operation by internet, intranet, and other networks or other
means as they become available.

18.4.  Franchisee agrees to pay all reasonable and necessary expenses, fees and costs for support service
for the POS System software during the term of its franchise and any renewals. Franchisee shall identify
and deal with third party software support suppliers who will provide telephone support and annual
maintenance for any upgrades and enhancements that they make to the required POS System software.
Franchisor may revise the POS System specifications. Franchisee may be required to upgrade or update
its POS System recording system. On Franchisor’s request, Franchisee must apply for and maintain debit
card, credit card or other non-cash payment systems to enable customers to purchase products through
these procedures. There is no contractual limitation on Franchisor’s right to receive information through
the POS System.

ARTICLE 19. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES, DISCLOSURE.

19.1. Franchisor and Franchisee are not and shall not be considered joint ventures, partners, or agents of
each other, or anything other than Franchisor and Franchisee, and neither shall have the power to bind or
obligate the other except specifically as set forth in this Agreement. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that
the relationship created by this Agreement is not a fiduciary relationship. Franchisee shall not, under any
circumstances, act or hold itself out as an agent or representative of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to
defend and indemnify and hold Franchisor harmless from any claims, demands, liabilities, actions, suits
or proceedings asserted by third parties arising out of the operation of Franchisee’s Unit or Franchisee’s
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breach of any of the terms of this Agreement. Franchisor reserves the right and Franchisee recognizes the
right of Franchisor to select counsel for any such defense.

19.2.  As set forth in the Franchise Disclosure Document delivered to Franchisee as described above,
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may have entered into certain subfranchise agreements with
subfranchisors, area developers and/or master franchisees in certain areas and territories. Pursuant to these
contracts, the subfranchisors of Franchisor are obligated to provide certain sales, operational and support
services for Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges that the relationship between Franchisor and all of its
subfranchisors and or area developers is strictly contractual and that no subfranchisor and or area
developer is an agent of Franchisor. Accordingly, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any past,
current or future subfranchisor is not the actual, express or implied agent of Franchisor, and has no power
or authority to: (i) act on Franchisor’s behalf; (ii) enter into or execute any agreement on Franchisor’s
behalf; (iii) make any representation or promise on Franchisor’s behalf; or (iv) bind Franchisor in any
way. Unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing, Franchisor expressly disavows any acts by others,
including subfranchisors that purport to bind Franchisor in any way. Franchisee agrees to waive any claim
or defense in any litigation or arbitration proceeding that a subfranchisor is the express or implied agent
of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees that any attempt to raise, assert or justify such claim or defense in any
proceeding constitutes a material default of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 20. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: ARBITRATION AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

20.1.  Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that disputes or disagreements may arise during the term
of this Agreement and any renewals thereto. Franchisor and Franchisee have elected to resolve such
disputes or disagreements in a non-judicial alternative dispute resolution format (“ADR”). An ADR
format minimizes the expense of dispute resolution and generally can be accomplished in a more
expeditious and effective manner. By agreeing to an ADR format, both Franchisee and Franchisor are
also waiving a number of rights, remedies and privileges which may arise in a judicial resolution format.
In view, however, of the continuing relationship between Franchisee and Franchisor over the original and
renewal terms of this Agreement, both Franchisee and Franchisor agree that an ADR format is the most
economical, efficient and practical way to resolve disputes and disagreements.

20.2.  Accordingly, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of any dispute or
disagreement between Franchisor and Franchisee with respect to any issue arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, the negotiations or dealings leading up to it, its breach, its interpretation or any other
disagreement between Franchisee and Franchisor, such dispute or disagreement shall be resolved by
arbitration within the jurisdiction, as set forth in Exhibit I of the Franchise Disclosure Document. In the
event of any dispute or disagreement, Franchisee and Franchisor both agree to submit the dispute to
arbitration in accordance with the least expensive procedure of the American Arbitration Association
(“AAA”), and the application for such arbitration shall be filed in New Orleans, Louisiana. Franchisor
and Franchisee agree that the hearing(s) shall be held in the greater New Orleans, Louisiana, under the
rules of the American Arbitration Association. This paragraph shall not apply to any monetary defaults of
Franchisee, including Franchisee’s obligation to pay franchise and advertising fees to Franchisor, as to
which Franchisor shall be free to utilize any right or remedy it may have at law or equity.

20.3. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that this Agreement evidences a transaction involving interstate
commerce and that the enforcement of this arbitration provision and the confirmation of any award issued
to either party by reason of an arbitration conducted pursuant to this arbitration provision is governed by
the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C.A. §§ 1 ef seq.
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20.4.  Punitive or exemplary damages or attorney’s fees may not be awarded by the arbitrator(s), and
any such award shall not be enforceable or enforced by any court. Except as otherwise provided, each
party shall bear its own attorney’s fees, expert witness fees, and other court costs incurred in connection
with any legal action or arbitration between Franchisor and Franchisee. If the waiver of punitive or
exemplary damages or legal fees and related costs are in violation of the laws of the state where the
Franchisee’s Unit is located, such claims may be awarded by the arbitrator(s), and any such award shall
be enforceable or enforced in any court of appropriate jurisdiction. This agreement shall be strictly
construed in the arbitration hearing. In no event can the material provisions of this Agreement including,
but not limited to the method of operation, Authorized Product line or monetary obligations specified in
this Agreement, amendments to this Agreement or in the Manuals be modified or changed by the
arbitrator at the arbitration hearing.

20.5. This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of Louisiana,
which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflicts

20.6.  Except for injunctive relief (including temporary restraining orders, preliminary injunctions and
injunctions or similar relief which must be brought in an appropriate local forum), the parties agree that
any action brought by either party against the other in any court shall be brought in the 22" Judicial
District Court for the Parish of St. Tammany, State of Louisiana and the parties do hereby waive all
questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purpose of carrying out this provision. Franchisee
agrees that mailing to its last known address by certified mail of any process shall constitute lawful and
valid process. In all cases, Franchisee and Franchisor each waives any right to a trial by jury.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the laws of the state where Franchisee’s Unit is located requires
jurisdiction of the courts of that state or control by the laws of that state, then this Agreement shall be
deemed modified to comply with the applicable laws thereto.

20.7.  The terms of this article shall survive termination, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 21. EXECUTION, REQUESTS, CONSENTS AND WAIVERS.

21.1. This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisee and Franchisor
and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana. Franchisee
agrees that Franchisor is not required to act uniformly with respect to any request for waivers, requests
and consents by its franchisees as each request will be considered on a case by case basis, and nothing
shall be construed to require Franchisor to grant any such request. Any waiver granted by Franchisor shall
be without prejudice to any other rights Franchisor may have, will be subject to continuing review by
Franchisor, and may be revoked, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, at any time and for any reason, effective
upon ten days prior written notice to Franchisee. Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon
which Franchisee may rely and assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee by providing any waiver,
approval, consent, assistance, or suggestion to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason
of any neglect, delay, or denial of any request.

21.2.  Unless otherwise provided, whenever this Agreement requires Franchisee to obtain Franchisor’s
prior written consent, Franchisee shall timely address its written request for such to Franchisor’s
Franchising Division, Attention: Chief Developrnent Ofﬁcer—@h%f—@pem%mg—@#ﬁeer 4480 LA 22
Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471 +80-New g :
70433-or such other persons as Franchisor may demgnate in ertmg Nelther F ranchlsee nor Franchlsor
shall be deemed to have waived or impaired any right, power or option reserved by this Agreement,
including, without limitation, its right to demand strict compliance with every term, condition, and
covenant herein, or to declare any breach thereof a default and to terminate this Agreement prior to the
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expiration of its term, by virtue of any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof;
by any forbearance, delay, failure, or omission to exercise any right, power, or option, whether of the
same, similar, or different nature, against Franchisor, Franchisee, or any other Franchisee; or by the
acceptance of any payments due after any breach of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 22. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

22.1. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so
executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts together shall constitute but
one and the same instrument.

22.2. This Agreement and all exhibits, attachments, or addendums constitute the entire agreement
between the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations, understandings, representations, and
agreements. Nothing in this or in any related agreement, however, is intended to disclaim the
representations Franchisor made in the franchise disclosure document that we furnished to Franchisee.
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee is entering into this Agreement as a result of Franchisee’s own
independent investigations of our franchised business and not as a result of any representations about
Franchisor made by Franchisor’s shareholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives,
independent contractors, or franchisees that are contrary to the terms set forth in this Agreement, or in any
disclosure document, prospectus, or other similar document required or permitted to be given to
Franchisee pursuant to applicable law.

22.3.  There is no other agreement, representation or warranty made by Franchisor or any other entity or
person associated with Franchisor other than contained in this Agreement. This Agreement is not subject
to or conditioned upon the obtaining of a Location for Franchisee’s Unit. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the representations made in the Disclosure Document shall be unaffected by any statements in this
section. This section shall not be read to waive any rights Franchisee may have under any state statute or
regulation.

22.4.  Except as otherwise provided, each party shall bear its own attorney’s fees arising from the
negotiations and execution or lack of execution of this Agreement.

22.5. Each article, paragraph, subparagraph, term, and condition of this Agreement shall be considered
severable. If for any reason, any portion of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or in conflict with
any law or rule in a final ruling issued by any court, agency, or tribunal with valid jurisdiction in a
proceeding to which Franchisor is a party, that ruling shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any
other portion of this Agreement.

22.6.  All notices to Franchisor required by the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise provided,
shall be sent by certified or registered mail or by overnight delivery service, addressed to the parties set
forth in this Agreement, or at such other address as Franchisor designates. All notices to Franchisee
required by the terms of this Agreement shall be sent by certified or registered mail or by overnight
delivery service, addressed to Franchisee at the Location, or at such other or additional address as
Franchisee designates in writing. If Franchisee refuses acceptance of any certified, registered or overnight
delivery, acceptance shall be deemed to have occurred 48 hours after rejection of such notice.

22.7. Franchisee acknowledges that the evolution of the System requires the development of other PJ’s
Units, PJ’s Distribution Points and PJ’s Branded Products.

22.8.  For the purpose of this article, a co-brand shall be defined as an independent operating Unit
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owned by another entity (not Franchisor) that is incorporated as an operational part within the
Franchisee’s Unit. An example would be an independent ice cream/yogurt operation installed within
Franchisee’s Unit. Subject to Franchisor’s prior written approval, Franchisee may install approved co-
branding marketing Units to be operated in conjunction with Franchisee’s Unit. Franchisor shall not be
required to approve any co-branding marketing system unless Franchisor has recognized that co-branding
system as an approved co-brand for operation within its units, either nationally or regionally. Inasmuch as
Franchisee and its employees will be incorporating the co-brand within its Unit, all sales of the co-brand
shall be included within the definition of “gress-net sales” as defined herein and Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor franchise and advertising fees for such sales.

INWATNESS- WHEREOE-Tthe parties hercof have executed this Agreement as of the date of
execution by Franchisor.

WITNESSES:— FRANCHISEE:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title:
Date:

FRANCHISOR: New Orleans Brew, LLC

Print Name: Print Name:
Title:
Effective Date:
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EXHIBIT B

CONFIDENTIALITY AND NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

In consideration of being a Franchisee of PJ’s Coffee, and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that:

Pursuant to a Franchise Agreement dated , 20 (the “Franchise
Agreement”), (the Franchisee) has acquired the right to establish
and operate a PJ’s Unit, and Franchisor has granted the right to establish and operate a PJ’s Unit that is
defined in the Franchise Agreement (the “PJ’s Unit”) and the right to use in the operation of the PJ’s Unit,
PJ’s trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia of origin (the “Franchisor’s
Marks”), as they may be changed, improved and further developed from time to time in Franchisor’s sole
discretion, only at the authorized and approved PJ’s Unit.

Franchisor, as a result of the expenditure of time, skill, effort and resources has developed and
owns a distinctive format and system (“the System”) relating to the establishment and operation of PJ’s
Unit. Franchisor possesses certain proprietary and confidential information relating to the operation of
the System, as that term is defined in the Franchise Agreement, which includes certain proprietary trade
secrets, recipes, methods of preparation, customer and supplier lists, product and equipment
specifications, product content, and operational, sales, promotion and marketing methods, plans,
techniques and knowledge of, and experience in, the operation of the PJ’s Unit (the Confidential
Information™).

Any information, trade secrets, recipes, methods of preparation, customer and supplier lists,
product and equipment specifications, product content, and operational, sales, promotion and marketing
methods, plans, techniques and knowledge of, and experience in, the operation of the PJ’s Unit shall be
deemed to be Confidential Information for purposes of this Agreement.

The Undersigned acknowledges that all Confidential Information shall be owned and shall
continue to be owned by Franchisor.

The Undersigned acknowledges that all Confidential Information shall never ever be removed
from the PJ’s Unit without expressed written permission from Franchisor.

Pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor will disclose the Confidential Information to the
Undersigned in the form of confidential training programs, PJ’s Manuals (the “Manuals”), and other
general assistance during the term of the Franchise Agreement.

The Undersigned will not acquire any interest in the Confidential Information, other than the right
to utilize it in the operation of the PJ’s Unit during the term of the Franchise Agreement, and the use or
duplication of the Confidential Information for any use outside the PJ’s Unit and System would constitute
an unfair method of competition.

The Undersigned acknowledges that all Confidential Information shall never be duplicated nor
copied in any manner whatsoever without the expressed written permission from Franchisor.

The Undersigned acknowledges that, upon instruction by Franchisor, all Confidential Information
shall be returned and/or destroyed by Undersigned upon the termination of Undersigned’s relationship
with Franchisor.
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The Confidential Information is proprietary, involves trade secrets of Franchisor, and is disclosed
to the Undersigned solely on the condition that the Undersigned agrees, and the Undersigned does hereby
agree, that the Undersigned shall hold in strict confidence all Confidential Information and all other
information designed by Franchisor as confidential. Unless Franchisor otherwise agrees in writing, the
Undersigned will disclose and/or use the Confidential Information only in connection with the
Undersigned’s duties as the Franchisee and will continue not to disclose any such information even after
the Undersigned ceases to be in that position unless the Undersigned can demonstrate that such
information has become generally known or easily accessible other than by the breach of an obligation of
Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement.

The Undersigned acknowledges that should there be any release or disclosure of Franchisor’s
Confidential Information without permission or authority, then Undersigned clearly understands that such
release and/or disclosure (directly or indirectly) shall be deemed as irreparable harm without exception as
to Franchisor. Release or disclosure of Confidential Information by the Undersigned, directly or
indirectly, would cause Franchisor irreparable injury, and that monetary damages would not be sufficient
to compensate Franchisor for any breach of this Agreement by the Undersigned.

Therefore, the Undersigned agrees that it shall (i) maintain the Confidential Information
confidential in the same manner as its own propriety information is maintained, (ii) not disclose the
Confidential Information to any third party other than officers, directors, and employees of its affiliates
without prior written consent from Franchisor as to who and why such persons may be provided access to
such information (iii) limit access to the information to a limited number of its employees and
representatives, which employees and representatives shall be informed of this Agreement and the
Undersigned shall be responsible for their compliance herewith to the extent they are acting within their
scope of employment and engagement, respectively, and (iv) return all Confidential Information furnished
or made available to the Undersigned by Franchisor in the event Franchisor and the Undersigned elect not
to pursue future business with Franchisor through the Undersigned.

Should the Undersigned or its representatives, in the reasonable opinion of Franchisor’s counsel,
be required by applicable law or regulation to disclose the Confidential Information or any information
regarding the production of the Confidential Information by Franchisor to the Undersigned, the terms of
this Confidentiality Agreement with respect to such disclosure, as required, shall be suspended.
Suspension of these terms must be in writing from Franchisor.

The Undersigned’s obligation to maintain the Confidential Information gained or learned in
confidence survive any expiration, termination or cancellation of the Agreement and shall continue to
bind the Undersigned and its successors and assigns during the term of the Franchise Agreement, and any
renewals or amendments of the Franchise Agreement, and for a period of two (2) years from the date of
any expiration, termination or cancellation of the Franchise Agreement, any renewals or amendments to
the Franchise Agreement (the “Confidentiality Period”).

The Undersigned further agrees that, that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of this
Agreement by the Undersigned, the Undersigned additionally agrees to be liable for all reasonable
attorney fees and related costs concerning any breach or threatened breach herein. It is agreed that
attorney fees shall be assessed at the rate of $350 per hour.

The Undersigned agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of this Agreement by
the Undersigned, Franchisor shall be entitled to injunctive or other equitable non-monetary relief, without
the necessity of showing any evidence of actual monetary loss. However, nothing herein shall be
construed as prohibiting Franchisor from pursuing any other remedies, including monetary remedies,
available to it for any such breach or threatened breach by Undersigned and/or its representatives.
Additionally, such remedy shall not apply to such information that was already known to Undersigned or
was otherwise generally available. Further, Franchisor agrees that all such information it desires to be
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protected under this agreement should be marked “Confidential”, as is practical, for transmittal to the
Undersigned.

It is also specifically understood and agreed that New Orleans Brew, LLC includes and is
intended to incorporate any and all Franchisor subsidiaries, affiliates, related corporations, franchises,
area developments, and related businesses.

In the event of any litigation or dispute related hereto, it is agreed that venue and jurisdiction shall
be the 22™ Judicial District Court for the Parish of St. Tammany, State of Louisiana.

In the event that any portion of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid for any
reason, then that portion shall be deemed severable and that the remainder shall remain in full force and
effect.

Franchisor specifically reserves the right to control the release of any Confidential Information or
documents subject to this Agreement.

The Undersigned understands and acknowledges that because Franchisor continually pursues
business in the same market as the Undersigned operates, it is also critical that the fact of any discussion
or negotiation between the Undersigned and Franchisor not be disclosed. Therefore, the Undersigned
agrees that as to the fact of such disclosure of a relationship between the Undersigned and Franchisor (for
instance, recipes and sauces, discussions or negotiations therein), Undersigned will treat same as
confidential as required of the Undersigned in the paragraphs above.

The Undersigned warrants that he/she has the requisite authority to sign this Confidentiality
Agreement and to bind any corporate, partnership joint venture, or limited liability entity to all terms and
conditions herein.

The Undersigned agrees to provide the appropriate corporate resolution to substantiate such
permission and authority.
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Franchisee:

By:

Title:

Date:
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EXHIBIT C

GUARANTY AGREEMENT

IN CONSIDERATION of the acceptance by New Orleans Brew, LLC, a Louisiana limited liability
Company, havmg its pr1nc1pal place of busmess at 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471486

v 00; § : (hereinafter called “Franchisor”) of a
Franchlse Agreement ora TRANSFER of F ranchlse Agreement if applicable dated

, and executed

by as an officer of
(if applicable), a(n)
(individually, as a corporation, or as an LLC) whose registered address
is: (hereinafter called “Franchisee), and for other
good and valuable consideration, I, Franchisee, and each of us solitarily, jointly and severally, absolutely
and unconditionally guarantee to Franchisor, (i) to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend Franchisor and
all of its officers, directors, executives, managers, members, partners, owners, employees, agents,
successors and assigns (collectively “Franchisor Indemnities”) from and against all losses, damages,
fines, costs, expenses or liability (including attorneys’ fees and all other costs of litigation) incurred in
connection with any action, suit, demand, claim, investigation or proceeding, or any settlement thereof,
that arises from or is based upon Franchisee’s (a) ownership or operation of the PJ’s Unit; (b) violation,
breach or asserted violation or breach of any federal, state or local law, regulation or rule; (c) breach of
any representation, warranty, or covenant, or provision of this Agreement or any other agreement between
Franchisor and (or an Affiliate); (d)
defamation of Franchisor or the System; (e) acts, errors or omissions committed or incurred in connection
with the PJ’s Unit, including any negligent or intentional acts; (f) infringement, violation or alleged
infringement or violation of any Mark, patent or copyright or any misuse of the Trade Secrets or
Confidential Information; or (g) infringement, violation or alleged infringement or violation of any patent,
trademark, or copyright or other rights controlled by third parties; and (ii) the timely performance of each
term, covenant, and obligation of the Franchisee set forth in the Franchise Agreement. The undersigned
specifically acknowledges that Franchisor is allowing the undersigned to enter into this Guaranty
Agreement instead of individually executing the Franchise Agreement as a matter of convenience to the
undersigned, and the undersigned agrees to be bound by the provisions of the Franchise Agreement
relating to non-competition and confidentiality as if those provisions were fully set forth herein. This is a
continuing guaranty which shall apply to the Franchise Agreement and any subsequent amendments or
modifications thereof, and such modifications of amendments shall be conclusively presumed to be
covered by this guaranty without further notice to or acceptance by the undersigned.

Franchisor reserves the right to retain counsel of its choosing in connection with any action, suit, demand,
claim, investigation or proceeding described in the preceding paragraph.

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that possession of this Guaranty Agreement by Franchisor
constitutes true and correct execution and actual and proper delivery of same to Franchisor and the
undersigned waives notice of acceptance of the guaranty and of any liability to which it applies or may
apply, and also waives presentment and demand for payment thereof, notice of dishonor or non-payment
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thereof, collection thereof including any notice of default in payment thereof of other notice to, or demand
of payment thereof on, any party. Payment by the undersigned shall be made at the office of Franchisor in
CevingtenrsMandeville, -Louisiana, or any other such location as Franchisor may designate from time to
time.

Franchisor may, at its option, at any time without the consent of or notice to the undersigned without
incurring responsibility to the undersigned, and without any terms or conditions and in whole or in part:
(1) change the manner, place or terms of payment or change or extend the time of payment of, renew, or
alter any liability of the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement hereby guaranteed, or any liabilities
incurred directly or indirectly hereunder, and the guaranty herein made shall apply to the liabilities of the
Franchisee, so changed, extended, renewed or altered; (2) exercise or refrain from exercising any rights
against Franchisee or others, or otherwise act or refrain from actions; (3) settle or compromise any
liabilities hereby guaranteed or hereby incurred, and may subordinate the payment of all or any part of
such liabilities to the payment of any liabilities which may be due to Franchisor or others; and (4) apply
any sums paid to any liability or liabilities of Franchisee to Franchisor regardless of what liability or
liabilities of Franchisee to Franchisor remain unpaid. Franchisor, may, at its option, without the consent
of or notice to the undersigned, apply to the payment of the liability created by this guaranty, at any time
after such liability becomes payable, any monies, property, or other assets belonging to the undersigned in
the possession, care, custody and control of the Franchisor.

VWATNESSES:— GUARANTOR(S):
Name:
Title:
Date:

New Orleans Brew, LLC 122

Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/26262021 - Amended 4/21/2021




EXHIBIT D

NEW ORLEANS BREW, L.L.C. D/B/A PJ’S COFFEE OF NEW ORLEANS
AUTOMATIC BANK DRAFT CONSENT

I authorize New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans (“PJ’s”) to initiate withdrawals
from my account at the financial institution named below for the payment of operating fees and advertising
contributions. If the sales and other reporting information that is required by PJ’s is not submitted or if PJ’s
is unable to access the computer system to obtain this information by the due date, I further authorize PJ’s
to withdraw from my account the same amount that was due from the last successful withdrawal plus a
10% non-fundable processing fee for the payment of operating fees and advertising contributions for the
most recent reporting period. Any difference in the amounts owed will be adjusted and paid upon the
submission of reporting information for that period. This authorization will remain valid until further notice
from PJ’s.

I understand that the Direct Payment program is an alternative method of payment only and does not
otherwise affect my rights or the rights of PJ’s or my financial institution with respect for each other.

Account Title:

Store Number(s):

Authorized Signature:

Joint Account Signature:

Financial Institution Name:

Address:

Transit/ABA Number:

Account Number:
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EXHIBIT E

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Listed here are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the state agencies having responsibility for
service of process. Franchisor may not yet be registered to sell franchises in any or all of these states.

CALIFORNIA

Department of Business Oversight:
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500

Toll Free (866) 275-2677

1515 K Street, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95814
(916) 445-7205

1350 Front Street
San Diego, CA 92101
(619) 525-4233

One Sansome Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94104-4428
(415) 972-8565

ILLINOIS

Franchise Bureau

Office of the Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

MARYLAND

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

New Orleans Brew, LLC
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CONNECTICUT

State of Connecticut

Department of Banking

Securities & Business Investments
Division

260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103-1800

(860) 240-8230

Agent: Banking Commissioner

HAWAIIL

Commissioner of Securities
State of Hawaii

335 Merchant Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722

INDIANA

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House

200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6531

MICHIGAN

Corporations Division

Bureau of Commercial Services
Department of Labor and Economic
Growth

P.O. Box 30054

Lansing, Michigan 48909
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MINNESOTA

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Commissioner of Commerce

85 7™ Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198
(651) 539-1600

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
600 East Boulevard Avenue
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 328-4712

OREGON

Department of Insurance and Finance
Corporate Securities Section

Labor and Industries Building

Salem, Oregon 97310

(503) 378-4387

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Securities

Department of Revenue & Regulation
445 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-4823

WASHINGTON

Director, Department of Financial Institutions

Securities Division
150 Israel Road S.W.
Tumwater, Washington 98501
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NEW YORK

New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6 Floor
Albany, New York 12231-0001
(518) 473-2492

OKLLAHOMA

Department of Securities

Suite 860, First National Center
120 N. Robinson

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
(405) 280-7700

RHODE ISLAND

Division of Securities

Rhode Island Dept. of Business
Regulation

Bldg. 69, First Floor

John O. Pastore Center

1511 Pontiac Avenue

Cranston, RI 02920

(401) 462-9500

VIRGINIA

Clerk of the State Corporation
Commission

1300 East Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9733

WISCONSIN

Administrator, Division of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions
345 W. Washington Ave., 4™ Floor
Madison, Wisconsin 53703




EXHIBIT F

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REAGAN & REAGAN

JOSEPH REAGAN, CPA KIM REAGAN, CPA
Partner Partner
The Members

New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.:

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC consents to the use in the Franchise Disclosure Document issued
by New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (“Franchisor”) on April 9, 2021, as it may be amended, of our
report dated April 8, 2021, relating to the financial statements of Franchisor for the fiscal years
ending December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019 and to our report dated April 8, 2020,
relating to the financial statements for the fiscal years ending December 29, 2019 and December
30, 2018.

feagan & Mragan CPA, LLC

April 9, 2021

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC
512 S. Tyler Street  Covington, LA 70433  Office 985-809-6505 fax 985-809-6507
www.randrcpa.com
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JOSEPH REAGAN, CPA KIM REAGAN, CPA
Partner Partner
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members
New Orleans Brew, L.L.C
Covington, LA

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C., which comprise the balance sheets as of
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, and the related statements of income, changes in members’ equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of New Orleans Brew,
L.L.C. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.’s ability to continue as a
going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC
512 S. Tyler Street  Covington, LA 70433  Office 985-809-6505 fax 985-809-6507
www.randrcpa.com



In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Covington, LA
April 8, 2021

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC
512 S. Tyler Street  Covington, LA 70433  Office 985-809-6505 fax 985-809-6507
www.randrcpa.com






New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Balance Sheets
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Due from affiliates
Total current assets

Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation
01$99,250 and $91,375 respectively

Goodwill and other intangible assets, less accumulated
amortization of $7,535 and $5,525 respectively

Total assets $

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $
Due to affiliates
Gift card fund
Deferred franchise and development fees - current
Total current liabilities

Deferred franchise and development fees - non-current

Total liabilities

Members' equity

Total liabilities and members' equity $

2020

917,058
813,104
107,728

2,882

1,840,772

23,916

1,938,067

3,802,755

109,553
1,188
557,800

223,342

891,883

1,890,086

2,781,969

1,020,786

3,802,755

$

2019

148,611
542,311
41,103
2,039
16,483
750,547

31,791

1,940,077

2,722,415

140,551

456,507

199,717

796,775

1,677,450

2,474,225

248,190

2,722,415

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Income
For the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

2020 2019
Revenues
Royalties and other related fees $ 2,071,755 $ 2,145,136
Franchise fees 945,239 467,769
Vendor incentives 14,516 41,673
3,031,510 2,654,578
Expenses
General and administrative 631,207 964,181
Payroll and payroll taxes 1,518,562 1,290,877
Selling and marketing 804,970 856,801
Depreciation and amortization 9,885 14,258
2,964,624 3,126,117
Income (Loss) from operations 66,886 (471,539)
Other income (expense)
Other income 326,051 5,778
Other expense - (3,000)
Interest expense - -
326,051 2,778
Net income (loss) $ 392,937 $ (468,761)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 392,937 $ (468,761)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 9,885 14,258
Cumulative effect adjustment of Topic 606 - (119,119)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (66,625) 31,986
Other receivables - 44,576
Restricted cash (169,500) (85,805)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (843) 4,516
Due from / to affiliates 17,671 17,737
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites (30,998) 12,639
Deferred franchise fees 236,261 544,767
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 388,788 (3,2006)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment - (3,396)
Net cash used in investing activities - (3,396)

Cash flows from financing activities:

M ember contributions 893,469 513,620

Member distributions (513,810) (452,359)
Net cash provided by financing activities 379,659 61,261
Netincrease in cash 768,447 54,659
Cash, beginning of period 148,611 93,952
Cash, end of period $ 917,058 $ 148,611

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest: $ - $ 57

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statement of Changes in Members’ Equity
For the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

Members’
Equity
Balance at December 30,2018 $ 774,808
Cumulative effect adjustment of Topic 606 (119,119)
Net loss for the period (468,761)
Member contributions 513,620
Member distributions (452,358)
Balance at December 29,2019 $ 248,190
Net income for the period 392,937
Member contributions 893,469
Member distributions (513,810)
Balance at December 27,2020 $ 1,020,786

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (the “Company”) is a Louisiana based limited liability company, formed on
January 23, 2008. The principle business of the Company is the franchising of “P.J.’s Coffee and Tea
Company” stores (PJ’s stores). The Company offers a franchise whose primary business is the sale of
gourmet coffees and teas, blended coffee and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet
desserts, and other food products and beverages under the name and service mark “PJ’s”. The Company
operates in the United States and abroad. The Company is currently operating in the states of Alabama,
Arkansas, Colorado, Louisiana, Mississippi, Maryland, South Carolina, Tennessee and Texas. The
Company has master franchisors in Vietnam, Malaysia and Kuwait, with open locations in Vietnam and
Kuwait.

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business.

Considerations Related to COVID-19

In December 2019, an outbreak of illness caused by a novel coronavirus called COVID-19 (“COVID-19”)
was identified in Wuhan, China. On January 31, 2020, the United States declared a public health
emergency related to COVID-19 and, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared that the
spread of COVID-19 qualified as a global pandemic. In an attempt to minimize transmission of COVID-19,
significant social and economic restrictions have been imposed in the United States and abroad. Though
various areas have begun relaxing such precautions, varying levels of restrictions remain in many places
and may be increased. In the preparation of these financial statements and related disclosures the Company
has assessed the impact that COVID-19 has had on the Company’s estimates, assumptions, forecasts, and
accounting policies and made additional disclosures, as necessary. As COVID-19 and its impacts are
unprecedented and ever evolving, future events and effects related to the pandemic cannot be determined
with precision and actual results could significantly differ from estimates or forecasts.

Basis of Accounting

The Company’s accounts are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Income is recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred.

The Company franchise arrangements provide its franchisee entities the power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact their economic performance; therefore, the Company does not consider it to be
the primary beneficiary of any such entity that might be a variable interest entity.

Fiscal Year

The Company utilizes a 52- or 53-week accounting period that ends on the last Sunday in December.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the

financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

Companies under Common Control

For the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, various members of the Company
were also members in other related entities. It is management’s opinion that the financial position and
results of operations of the Company have not been significantly affected by the transactions with these
entities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

For purposes of the financial statements, the Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased
with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and deposits at banks.

Cash held related to the advertising funds and the Company’s gift card programs are classified as restricted
cash as there are legal restrictions on the use of these funds and as such, the Company intends to use these
funds solely to support the advertising funds and gift card programs rather than to fund operations. Total
cash balances related to the advertising funds and gift card programs as of December 27, 2020 and
December 29, 2019 were $813,104 and $542,311, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at financial institutions. The balances, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. At December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, the Company did not
exceed the insured limit.

The franchisees purchase substantially all supplies and products sold at the PJ’s stores from a small group
of suppliers at prevailing prices.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from franchisees and area developers for franchise fees and
royalties and other related fees. Management assesses the collectability of receivables on an ongoing basis.
The Company records a provision for doubtful receivables, if necessary, to allow for any amounts which
may be unrecoverable, which is based upon an analysis of the Company’s prior collection experience,
creditworthiness and current economic trends. During the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and
December 29, 2019, the Company did not write off any receivables.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is determined on a straight-
line basis over the estimated remaining useful life of each asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related reasonably
assured lease term. Routine maintenance, repairs and replacement costs are expensed as incurred and
improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. When equipment is sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations. The amounts expensed for maintenance and repairs were
$1,325 and $840 for the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Assets to be
disposed of, if any, are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the residual purchase price after allocation of the purchase price of net assets acquired.
Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to annual impairment tests. The Company reviews the
recoverability of goodwill by comparing the fair value to the carrying value. Fair value of the Company’s
goodwill is estimated based upon a present value technique using discounted future cash flows. As of
December 27, 2020, and December 29, 2019, management determined there was no impairment of
goodwill. There can be no assurance that future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a charge to
earnings.

Other intangible assets consist of trademarks, which are stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line
method over a ten-year life. The Company tests for impairment of its intangible assets at a minimum on an
annual basis. The Company does not believe that any impairment exists as of December 27, 2020 and
December 29, 2019.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. At the balance sheet dates,
the fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities (cash, accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, amounts due to and from affiliates, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and deferred franchise and development fees) approximate their carrying values.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized is accordance with a five-step revenue model, as follows: identifying the contract
with the customer; identifying the performance obligations in the contract; determining the transaction
price; allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and recognizing revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Franchise fees and royalties and other related fees

The Company sells individual franchises through franchise agreements with terms ranging from 7 to 10
years. These agreements also convey multiple extension terms of five years, depending on contract terms if
certain conditions are met. The Company provides its franchisees system training, preopening assistance,
and general assistance in exchange for franchise fees, and royalties of 0%-8% of store sales. The
franchisees are also required to contribute a fee of 0-2% of the store’s gross sales into the national
marketing fund.

Royalties are accrued as earned and are calculated each period based on reported franchisees’ sales. The
Company has determined that a portion of the initial franchise services are distinct from the continuing
rights and services offered during the term of the franchise agreement and should not be treated as a single
performance obligation; therefore, a portion of such fees are recognized upon the opening of the franchise
location (see Note 6). For the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, $2,071,755
and $2,145,136 of royalties and other related fees were earned, respectively.

The Company charges a transfer fee when an existing store is transferred to a new franchisee. Transfer fees
are based on management’s estimates of anticipated costs and are recognized into revenue in a similar
manner to franchise fees.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

Franchise Operations

The Company enters into franchise agreements with unrelated third parties to operate locations using the
PJ’s brand within a defined geographical area. The Company believes that franchising is an effective and
efficient means to expand the PJ’s brand. The franchisee is required to operate its location in compliance
with its franchise agreement that includes adherence to operating and quality control procedures established
by the Company. The Company does not provide loans, leases, or guarantees to the franchisee or the
franchisee’s employees and vendors. If a franchisee becomes financially distressed, the Company does not
provide financial assistance. If financial distress leads to a franchisee’s noncompliance with the franchise
agreement and the Company elects to terminate the franchise agreement, the Company has the right but not
the obligation to acquire the assets of the franchisee at fair value. The Company has financial exposure for
the collection of the royalty payments. Franchisees generally remit royalty payments weekly for the prior
week’s sales, which substantially minimizes the financial exposure. Historically, the Company has
experienced insignificant write-offs of franchisee royalties. Franchise fees are paid upon the signing of the
related agreements.

Payments Received from Vendors

Vendor incentives include allowances and other funds received from vendors. Certain of these funds are
determined based on various quantitative contract terms. The Company receives vendor incentives from
certain manufactures and distributors calculated based on purchases made by franchisees. The Company
generally receives payment from vendors approximately 45 days from the end of a month for that month’s
purchases.

Advertising Costs

Adpvertising costs are treated as period costs and expensed as incurred. For the fiscal years ended
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, advertising costs totaled $804,970 and $856,801, respectively
(see Note 6).

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and does not incur income taxes.
Instead, its earnings and losses are included in the personal tax returns of the members. As such, the
financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in the ASU
supersedes the lease guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12
months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of
expense recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and
operating leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on its financial statements.

The Company has reviewed recently issued accounting pronouncements and concluded that they are either

not applicable to the operations or that no material effects are expected on its financial statements as a
result of future adoption.
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2014-09 “Revenue with Contracts from Customers (Topic 606)”, which supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in Accounting Standards Codification 605, “Revenue Recognition.” This ASU is
based on the principle that revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements
and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract.

The Company adopted Topic 606 at the beginning of the fiscal year 2019 using the modified

retrospective method. The adoption of these standards did not have a material impact on the Company’s
Statement of Income in 2019. The primary impact of adoption was the enhancement of the Company’s
disclosures related to contracts with customers and revenue recognized from those performance obligations,
which includes revenue related to initial fees charged to franchisees and revenue recognized related to
advertising fees (see Note 6).

Further, the Company implemented internal controls related to the recognition and presentation of the
Company’s revenues under this new standard.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

The Company has established a separate national marketing fund to administer funds collected from
franchisees for advertising. The franchisees are required to contribute a weekly fee of 0-2% of the store’s
gross sales into the national marketing fund. The cash balances related to the advertising fund as of
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019 were $255,304 and $85,804, respectively.

The Company has established a separate gift card pooling fund to administer funds related to gift card sales
and redemptions for the PJ’s stores. This fund is managed by a third party. The amounts are recorded as
an asset and offsetting liability in the amount of $557,800 and $456,507 as of December 27, 2020 and
December 29, 2019, respectively, in the accompanying Balance Sheets. The Company accounts for the
assets and liabilities of this fund as “restricted cash” and “gift card fund” in the accompanying balance
sheets. The restricted assets of these funds are classified as current as they are expected to be utilized to
fund systemwide gift card funds.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Following is a summary of property and equipment at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019:

Estimated
Useful Lives 2020 2019
Computers and equipment 5 $ 45,618 $ 45,618
Leasehold improvements 11 62,547 62,547
Furniture and fixtures 7 15,001 15,001
123,166 123,166
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (99,250) (91,375)
Property and Equipment, net $ 23,916 $ 31,791

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019 was $7,875
and $12,248, respectively.

11



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

NOTE 4 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business, for a purchase price of approximately $4,000,000. The
Company allocated its portion of the purchase price to tangible assets acquired in the acquisition at their
estimated fair values with the remainder allocated to goodwill as follows: $28,108 to accounts receivable,
and $1,925,500 to goodwill.

Following is a summary of intangible assets at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019:

2020 2019
Goodwill $ 1,925,500 $ 1,925,500
Trademarks 20,102 20,102
1,945,602 1,945,602
Less: Accumulated Amortization (7,535) (5,525)
Intangible assets, net $ 1,938,067 $ 1,940,077

Amortization expense for the years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019 was $2,010 and
$2,010 respectively. Estimated future amortization expense as of December 27, 2020 is as follows:

Fiscal year ending:

2021 $ 2,010

2022 2,010

2023 2,010

2024 2,010

2025 2,010

Thereafter 2,517

$ 12,567

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Nine franchises located in Louisiana are owned and operated by entities affiliated through common
ownership to the Company. The Company occasionally pays money to these and other entities under
common control or ownership, for the purpose of funding the operations of those commonly owned entities.
When the members have determined that these amounts cannot or will not be repaid, amounts owed by
these entities are treated as capital distributions to the members and are recorded as a reduction to members’
equity. As of December 27, 2020, and December 29, 2019, $0 and $16,483, respectively, was due to the
Company from entities under common control or ownership.

New Orleans Roast, LLC is an affiliate company that roasts and distributes coffee beans, and coffee related
products to all PJ’s Coffee franchises and other retail businesses. The Company’s general liability/property
insurance policy is part of this affiliated company’s insurance policy. As of December 27, 2020 and

December 29, 2019, $0 was due to the Company for payments made on behalf of New Orleans Roast, LLC.

The Company shares office space and certain employees with an entity affiliated through common

ownership. This entity also provides health insurance to the Company’s employees. Payroll expenses for
the shared employees totaled $835,942 and $689,011 for the fiscal years ended December 27, 2020 and

12
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

December 29, 2019, respectively. These amounts are included in payroll and payroll taxes in the
accompanying Statements of Income. As of December 27, 2020, and December 29, 2019, $1,188 and $0,
respectively, was due to this entity and is included in Due to Affiliates in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

The Company’s office space is leased in the name of an affiliated entity. The Company is not a party to the
lease. The Company incurred $128,881 and $122,649 in rent expense for fiscal years 2020 and 2019,
respectively, related to this lease.

In connection with financing arrangements entered by related entities, the Company, along with other
affiliated guarantors, is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor, a local financial institution
(see Note 8).

All related party balances owed to or by the Company are non-interest-bearing, unsecured and due on
demand.

NOTE 6 - FRANCHISE FEES AND AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company adopted the revenue recognition standards under Topic 606 at the beginning of fiscal year
2019 using the modified retrospective method. The adoption of these standards did not have an impact on
the Company’s recognition of continuing royalty fees from franchisees, which are based on a percentage of
franchisee revenues and are recognized in the period the related franchisee sales occur.

Franchise Fees

The adoption of Topic 606 impacted the Company’s accounting for initial fees charged to franchisees. In
the past, the Company recognized initial franchise fees when all material services or conditions relating to
the sale of the franchise had been substantially performed or satisfied by the Company, which was
generally when a new franchise store opened. In accordance with the new guidance, the Company has
determined that some of the initial franchise services are not distinct from the continuing rights or services
offered during the term of the franchise agreement and those costs should be treated as a separate
performance obligation. Therefore, the Company recognizes a portion of the initial fees received from the
franchisees as revenue over the term of the respective franchise agreement, ranging from 7-10 years.

The Company also enters into Area Development Agreements. Under these agreements, a third party (the
“Developer”) agrees to sell and open a certain number of franchises in the specified area over a period of
time stipulated in the contract. The Company records the area development fees as deferred franchise fees
when received and allocates the fee for each agreement to each individual franchise. Revenue is
recognized over the term of the respective franchise agreement each time a new franchise opens in that
area.

An adjustment to beginning retained earnings and deferred revenue of $119,119 was established on the date
of adoption, December 31, 2018, associated with the initial fees received through December 31, 2018 that
would have been deferred and recognized over the term of each respective franchise and area development
agreement if the new guidance had been applied in the past.

Under the new method, the Company recognized franchise and development fee revenue of $945,239 and
$467,769 during fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. At December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019,
the balance of deferred franchise and development fees was $2,113,428 and $1,877,167 respectively.
Royalties and Other Related Fees

Royalties from franchisee stores are based on a percentage of store revenue and are recognized in the

period the related franchised stores’ sales occur. For the years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29,
2019, the Company recognized $2,071,755 and $2,145,136 in royalties and other related fees, respectively.

13



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019

Advertising Fees

The adoption of the new guidance changed the reporting of advertising fund contributions from franchisees
and the related advertising fund expenditures, which were not previously included in the Statements of
Income. The new guidance requires these advertising fund contributions and expenditures to be reported on
a gross basis in the Statements of Income. The assets and liabilities held by the advertising funds, which
were previously reported as restricted assets and liabilities of advertising funds, respectively, are now
included within the respective Balance Sheet caption to which the assets and liabilities relate. Additionally,
advertising costs that have been incurred by the Company outside of the advertising funds are also included
within selling and marketing expenses in the Statements of Income.

NOTE 7 - PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM PROCEEDS

The Company received loan proceeds from Bank of America in the amount of $265,837 under the
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”), provided for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts up to 2.5
times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest
are forgivable after a specified period of time as long as the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible
purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels.

Based on the Company’s use of the PPP funding during 2020, the Company has determined that it does
qualify for the PPP loan and that it met all conditions of forgiveness. As such, by analogy, the Company
has accounted for the PPP proceeds in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605. Under this method, the
Company has treated the PPP loan as a conditional contribution and recognized the proceeds as a
refundable advance until the conditions of forgiveness are met or explicitly waived (see Note 11).

For the fiscal year ending December 27, 2020, the Company reduced the PPP advance account and
recognized $265,837 in income and is recorded in Other Income on the Statements of Income.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and liabilities, which arise in the
ordinary course of business relating to matters including, but not limited to, disputes with franchisees,
suppliers, employees and customers, as well as disputes over the Company’s intellectual property. In the
opinion of management, the amount of the ultimate liability with respect to any actions against the
Company will not have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations and cash flows.

Guarantees

In connection with financing arrangements entered into by certain companies which represent entities under
common control, as co-borrowers, the Company is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor,
a local financial institution, up to a maximum of $635,297 should these entities be unable to satisfy the
financing arrangement. In the event the Company is required to fund amounts pursuant to the above
arrangement, the Company may recover the amounts from the entities, although terms of such recovery
may extend over several future periods. The guarantees expire in May 2022.

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The Company has master area development agreements in countries outside of the United States. The

revenues and net income (loss) from those countries combined are in the table below. There are no long-
term assets held in countries outside of the U.S.
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2020 2019
Rest of Rest of
United States World United States World
Revenues $ 3,020,781 $ 10,729 $ 2,578,442 $ 76,136
Net Income (Loss) $ 394,056 $ 1,119 $ (511,704) $ 42,943

NOTE 10 - FAIR VALUE

Disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance
sheets is required. Fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. In cases where quoted market prices are not
available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those
techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of
future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of
the instruments. Therefore, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying
value of the Company.

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in
an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume
and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple
valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market
participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts
and circumstances and requires use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the
range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.

In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally
measured at fair value in three levels:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity
to develop its own assumptions.

At December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities
to value.

NOTE 11 —- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 25, 2021, the Company received loan proceeds related to the Second Draw Paycheck Protection
Program Loans under the CARES Act in the amount of $265,837.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available
to be issued, April 8, 2021, and determined that there were no other items for disclosure.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AGAN & REAGAN

As & Busine

To the Members
New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Covington, LA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (the “Company”’) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, and the related statements of income,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. as of December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Heagan & faagan CPA, LLC

April 8, 2020

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC
512 S. Tyler Street  Covington, LA 70433  Office 985-809-6505 fax 985-809-6507
www.randrcpa.com
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Balance Sheets
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

2019
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 148,611
Restricted cash 542,311
Accounts receivable 41,103
Other receivables -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,039
Due from affiliates 16,483
Total current assets 750,547

Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation
0f $91,375 and $79,127 respectively 31,791
Goodwill and other intangible assets, less accumulated

amortization of $5,525 and $3,515 respectively 1,940,077

Total assets $ 2,722,415

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 140,551
National marketing fund -
Gift card fund 456,507
Deferred franchise and development fees 1,877,167
Total current liabilities 2,474,225
Total liabilities 2,474,225
Members' equity 248,190
Total liabilities and members' equity $ 2,722,415

2018

93,952
563,754
73,089
44,576
6,555

34,220

816,146

40,642

1,942,087

2,798,875

127,912
61,033
502,722

1,332,400

2,024,067

2,024,067
774,808

2,798,875

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Income
For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

2019 2018
Revenues
Royalties and other related fees $ 2,145,136 $ 1,470,604
Franchise fees 467,769 330,500
Vendor incentives 41,673 82,911
2,654,578 1,884,015
Expenses
General and administrative 964,181 882,457
Payroll and payroll taxes 1,290,877 983,066
Selling and marketing 856,801 386,007
Depreciation and amortization 14,258 14,197
3,126,117 2,265,727
Loss from operations (471,539) (381,712)
Other income (expense)
Other income 5,778 97,469
Other expense (3,000) (409)
Interest expense - (114)
2,778 96,946
Netloss $ (468,761) $ (284,766)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (468,761) $ (284,766)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 14,258 14,197
Cumulative effect adjustment of Topic 606 (119,119) -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 31,986 (10,718)
Other receivables 44,576 130,424
Restricted cash (85,805) -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,516 (2,593)
Due from / to affiliates 17,737 30,422
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites 12,639 (40,395)
Deferred franchise fees 544,767 410,400
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (3,206) 246,971

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (3,396) (6,459)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,396) (6,459)

Cash flows from financing activities:

M ember contributions 513,620 367,509

Member distributions (452,359) (724,944)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 61,261 (357,435)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 54,659 (116,923)
Cash, beginning of period 93,952 210,875
Cash, end of period $ 148,611 $ 93,952

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest: $ 57 $ 114

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statement of Changes in Members’ Equity
For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

Members’
Equity
Balance at December 31,2017 $ 1,417,009
Net loss for the period (284,766)
Member contributions 367,509
Member distributions (724,944)
Balance at December 30,2018 $ 774,808
Cunulative effect adjustment of Topic 606 (119,119)
Net loss for the period (468,761)
Member contributions 513,620
Member distributions (452,359)
Balance at December 29,2019 $ 248,189

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (the “Company”) is a Louisiana based limited liability company, formed on
January 23, 2008. The principle business of the Company is the franchising of “P.J.’s Coffee and Tea
Company” stores (PJ’s stores). The Company offers a franchise whose primary business is the sale of
gourmet coffees and teas, blended coffee and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet
desserts, and other food products and beverages under the name and service mark “PJ’s”. The Company
operates in the United States and abroad. The Company is currently operating in the states of Arkansas,
Colorado, Florida, Louisiana, Mississippi, Maryland, South Carolina, Tennessee and Texas. The Company
has master franchisors in Vietnam, Malaysia and Kuwait, with open locations in Vietnam and Kuwait.

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business.

Basis of Accounting

The Company’s accounts are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Income is recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred.

The Company franchise arrangements provide its franchisee entities the power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact their economic performance; therefore, the Company does not consider it to be
the primary beneficiary of any such entity that might be a variable interest entity.

Fiscal Year
The Company utilizes a 52- or 53-week accounting period that ends on the last Sunday in December.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Companies under Common Control

For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, various members of the Company
were also members in other related entities. It is management’s opinion that the financial position and
results of operations of the Company have not been significantly affected by the transactions with these
entities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
For purposes of the financial statements, the Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased

with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and deposits at banks.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

Cash held related to the advertising funds and the Company’s gift card programs are classified as restricted
cash as there are legal restrictions on the use of these funds and as such, the Company intends to use these
funds solely to support the advertising funds and gift card programs rather than to fund operations. Total
cash balances related to the advertising funds and gift card programs as of December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018 were $542,311 and $563,754, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at financial institutions. The balances, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. At December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, the Company did not
exceed the insured limit.

The franchisees purchase substantially all supplies and products sold at the PJ’s stores from a small group
of suppliers at prevailing prices.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from franchisees and area developers for franchise fees and
royalties and other related fees. Management assesses the collectability of receivables on an ongoing basis.
The Company records a provision for doubtful receivables, if necessary, to allow for any amounts which
may be unrecoverable, which is based upon an analysis of the Company’s prior collection experience,
creditworthiness and current economic trends. During the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018, the Company did not write off any receivables.

Other Receivables
Other receivables consist of international area developer fees.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is determined on a straight-
line basis over the estimated remaining useful life of each asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related reasonably
assured lease term. Routine maintenance, repairs and replacement costs are expensed as incurred and
improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. When equipment is sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations. The amounts expensed for maintenance and repairs were
$840 and $6,812 for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Assets to be
disposed of, if any, are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the residual purchase price after allocation of the purchase price of net assets acquired.
Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to annual impairment tests. The Company reviews the
recoverability of goodwill by comparing the fair value to the carrying value. Fair value of the Company’s
goodwill is estimated based upon a present value technique using discounted future cash flows. As of
December 29, 2019, and December 30, 2018, management determined there was no impairment of
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018

goodwill. There can be no assurance that future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a charge to
earnings.

Other intangible assets consist of trademarks, which are stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line
method over a ten-year life. The Company tests for impairment of its intangible assets at a minimum on an
annual basis. The Company does not believe that any impairment exists as of December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. At the balance sheet dates,
the fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities (cash, accounts and other
receivables, prepaid expenses and other current assets, amounts due to and from affiliates, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, and deferred franchise and development fees) approximate their carrying values.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized is accordance with a five-step revenue model, as follows: identifying the contract
with the customer; identifying the performance obligations in the contract; determining the transaction
price; allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and recognizing revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Franchise fees and royalties and other related fees

The Company sells individual franchises through franchise agreements with terms ranging from 7 to 10
years. These agreements also convey multiple extension terms of five years, depending on contract terms if
certain conditions are met. The Company provides its franchisees system training, preopening assistance,
and general assistance in exchange for franchise fees, and royalties of 0%-8% of store sales. The
franchisees are also required to contribute a fee of 0-2% of the store’s gross sales into the national
marketing fund.

Royalties are accrued as earned and are calculated each period based on reported franchisees’ sales. The
Company has determined that a portion of the initial franchise services are distinct from the continuing
rights and services offered during the term of the franchise agreement and should not be treated as a single
performance obligation; therefore, a portion of such fees are recognized upon the opening of the franchise
location. See Note 6. For the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, $2,145,136
and $1,470,604 of royalties and other related fees were earned, respectively.

The Company charges a transfer fee when an existing store is transferred to a new franchisee. Transfer fees
are based on management’s estimates of anticipated costs and are recognized into revenue in a similar
manner to franchise fees.

Franchise Operations

The Company enters into franchise agreements with unrelated third parties to operate locations using the
PJ’s brand within a defined geographical area. The Company believes that franchising is an effective and
efficient means to expand the PJ’s brand. The franchisee is required to operate its location in compliance
with its franchise agreement that includes adherence to operating and quality control procedures established
by the Company. The Company does not provide loans, leases, or guarantees to the franchisee or the
franchisee’s employees and vendors. If a franchisee becomes financially distressed, the Company does not
provide financial assistance. If financial distress leads to a franchisee’s noncompliance with the franchise
agreement and the Company elects to terminate the franchise agreement, the Company has the right but not
the obligation to acquire the assets of the franchisee at fair value. The Company has financial exposure for
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the collection of the royalty payments. Franchisees generally remit royalty payments weekly for the prior
week’s sales, which substantially minimizes the financial exposure. Historically, the Company has
experienced insignificant write-offs of franchisee royalties. Franchise fees are paid upon the signing of the
related agreements.

Payments Received from Vendors

Vendor incentives include allowances and other funds received from vendors. Certain of these funds are
determined based on various quantitative contract terms. The Company receives vendor incentives from
certain manufactures and distributors calculated based on purchases made by franchisees. The Company
generally receives payment from vendors approximately 45 days from the end of a month for that month’s
purchases.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are treated as period costs and expensed as incurred. For the fiscal years ended
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, advertising costs totaled $856,801 and $386,007, respectively
(see Note 6).

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and does not incur income taxes.
Instead, its earnings and losses are included in the personal tax returns of the members. As such, the
financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in the ASU
supersedes the lease guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12
months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of
expense recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and
operating leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on its financial statements.

The Company has reviewed recently issued accounting pronouncements and concluded that they are either
not applicable to the operations or that no material effects are expected on its financial statements as a
result of future adoption.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2014-09 “Revenue with Contracts from Customers (Topic 606)”, which supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in Accounting Standards Codification 605, “Revenue Recognition.” This ASU is
based on the principle that revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements
and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract.

The Company adopted Topic 606 at the beginning of the fiscal year 2019 using the modified
retrospective method. The comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported
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under the accounting standards in effect for those periods. The adoption of these standards did not have a
material impact on the Company’s Statement of Income in 2019. The primary impact of adoption was the
enhancement of the Company’s disclosures related to contracts with customers and revenue recognized
from those performance obligations, which includes revenue related to initial fees charged to franchisees
and revenue recognized related to advertising fees. See Note 6.

Further, the Company implemented internal controls related to the recognition and presentation of the
Company’s revenues under this new standard.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

The Company has established a separate national marketing fund to administer funds collected from
franchisees for advertising. The franchisees are required to contribute a weekly fee of 0-2% of the store’s
gross sales into the national marketing fund. The cash balances related to the advertising fund as of
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018 were $85,804 and $61,033, respectively.

The Company has established a separate gift card pooling fund to administer funds related to gift card sales
and redemptions for the PJ’s stores. This fund is managed by a third party. The amounts are recorded as
an asset and offsetting liability in the amount of $456,507 and $502,722 as of December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018, respectively, in the accompanying Balance Sheets. The Company accounts for the
assets and liabilities of this fund as “restricted cash” and “gift card fund” in the accompanying balance
sheets. The restricted assets of these funds are classified as current as they are expected to be utilized to
fund systemwide gift card funds.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Following is a summary of property and equipment at December 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

Estimated
Useful Lives 2019 2018
Computers and equipment 5 $ 45,618 $ 42,221
Leasehold improvements 11 62,547 62,547
Furniture and fixtures 7 15,001 15,001
123,166 119,769
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (91,375) (79,127)
Property and Equipment, net $ 31,791 $ 40,642

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018 was $12,248
and $12,187, respectively.

NOTE 4 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business, for a purchase price of approximately $4,000,000. The
Company allocated its portion of the purchase price to tangible assets acquired in the acquisition at their
estimated fair values with the remainder allocated to goodwill as follows: $28,108 to accounts receivable,
and $1,925,500 to goodwill.

10
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Following is a summary of intangible assets at December 30, 2019 and December 30, 2018:

2019 2018
Goodwill $ 1,925,500 $ 1,925,500
Trademarks 20,102 20,102
1,945,602 1,945,602
Less: Accumulated Amortization (5,525) (3,515)
Intangible assets, net $ 1,940,077 $ 1,942,087

Amortization expense for the years ended December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018 was $2,010 and
$2,010 respectively. Estimated future amortization expense as of December 29, 2019 is as follows:

Fiscal year ending:

2020 $ 2,010

2021 2,010

2022 2,010

2023 2,010

2024 2,010

Thereafter 4,527

$ 14,577

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Nine franchises located in Louisiana are owned and operated by entities affiliated through common
ownership to the Company. The Company occasionally pays money to these and other entities under
common control or ownership, for the purpose of funding the operations of those commonly owned entities.
When the members have determined that these amounts cannot or will not be repaid, amounts owed by
these entities are treated as capital distributions to the members and are recorded as a reduction to members’
equity. As of December 29, 2019, and December 30, 2018, $16,483 and $19,855, respectively, was due to
the Company from entities under common control or ownership.

New Orleans Roast, LLC is an affiliate company that roasts and distributes coffee beans, and coffee related
products to all PJ’s Coffee franchises and other retail businesses. The Company’s general liability/property
insurance policy is part of this affiliated company’s insurance policy. As of December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018, $0 and $14,364 was due to the Company for payments made on behalf of New Orleans
Roast, LLC. This amount is included in due from affiliates in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

The Company shares office space and certain employees with an entity affiliated through common
ownership. This entity also provides health insurance to the Company’s employees. Payroll expenses for
the shared employees totaled $689,011 and $552,034 for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2019 and
December 30, 2018, respectively. These amounts are included in payroll and payroll taxes in the
accompanying Statements of Income.

The Company’s office space is leased in the name of an affiliated entity. The Company is not a party to the

lease. The company incurred $122,649 and $112,070 in rent expense for fiscal years 2019 and 2018,
respectively, related to this lease.

11
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In connection with financing arrangements entered by related entities, the Company, along with other
affiliated guarantors, is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor, a local financial institution
(see Note 7).

All related party balances owed to or by the Company are non-interest-bearing, unsecured and due on
demand.

NOTE 6 - FRANCHISE FEES AND AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company adopted the revenue recognition standards under Topic 606 at the beginning of fiscal year
2019 using the modified retrospective method. The adoption of these standards did not have an impact on
the Company’s recognition of continuing royalty fees from franchisees, which are based on a percentage of
franchisee revenues and are recognized in the period the related franchisee sales occur.

Franchise Fees

The adoption of Topic 606 impacted the Company’s accounting for initial fees charged to franchisees. In
the past, the Company recognized initial franchise fees when all material services or conditions relating to
the sale of the franchise had been substantially performed or satisfied by the Company, which was
generally when a new franchise store opened. In accordance with the new guidance, the Company has
determined that some of the initial franchise services are not distinct from the continuing rights or services
offered during the term of the franchise agreement and those costs should be treated as a separate
performance obligation. Therefore, the Company recognizes a portion of the initial fees received from the
franchisees as revenue over the term of the respective franchise agreement, ranging from 7-10 years.

The Company also enters into Area Development Agreements. Under these agreements, a third party (the
“Developer”) agrees to sell and open a certain number of franchises in the specified area over a period of
time stipulated in the contract. The Company records the area development fees as deferred franchise fees
when received and allocates the fee for each agreement to each individual franchise. Revenue is
recognized over the term of the respective franchise agreement each time a new franchise opens in that
area.

An adjustment to beginning retained earnings and deferred revenue of $119,119 was established on the date
of adoption, December 31, 2018, associated with the initial fees received through December 31, 2018 that
would have been deferred and recognized over the term of each respective franchise and area development
agreement if the new guidance had been applied in the past.

Under the new method, the Company recognized franchise and development fee revenue of $467,769
during fiscal year 2019. Under the previous method, the Company recognized franchise and development
fee revenue of $330,500. At December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, the balance of deferred franchise
and development fees was $1,877,167 and $1,332,400 respectively. Of these balances, $0 and $44,576 are
included in other receivables in the accompanying Balance Sheets for the fiscal years ended 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Royalties and Other Related Fees
Royalties from franchisee stores are based on a percentage of store revenue and are recognized in the
period the related franchised stores’ sales occur. For the years ended December 29, 2019 and December

30, 2018, the Company recognized $2,145,136 and $1,470,604 in royalties and other related fees,
respectively.

12
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Advertising Fees

The adoption of the new guidance changed the reporting of advertising fund contributions from franchisees
and the related advertising fund expenditures, which were not previously included in the Statements of
Income. The new guidance requires these advertising fund contributions and expenditures to be reported on
a gross basis in the Statements of Income. The assets and liabilities held by the advertising funds, which
were previously reported as restricted assets and liabilities of advertising funds, respectively, are now
included within the respective Balance Sheet caption to which the assets and liabilities relate. Additionally,
advertising costs that have been incurred by the Company outside of the advertising funds are also included
within selling and marketing expenses in the Statements of Income.

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and liabilities, which arise in the
ordinary course of business relating to matters including, but not limited to, disputes with franchisees,
suppliers, employees and customers, as well as disputes over the Company’s intellectual property. In the
opinion of management, the amount of the ultimate liability with respect to any actions against the
Company will not have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations and cash flows.

Guarantees

In connection with financing arrangements entered into by certain companies which represent entities under
common control, as co-borrowers, the Company is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor,
a local financial institution, up to a maximum of $1,023,369 should these entities be unable to satisfy the
financing arrangement. In the event the Company is required to fund amounts pursuant to the above
arrangement, the Company may recover the amounts from the entities, although terms of such recovery
may extend over several future periods. The guarantees expire starting in May 2020 and go through May
2022.

NOTE 8 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The Company has master area development agreements in countries outside of the United States. The

revenues and net income (loss) from those countries combined are in the table below. There are no long-
term assets held in countries outside of the U.S.

2019 2018
Rest of Rest of
United States World United States World
Revenues $ 2,578,442 $ 76,136 $ 1,836,881 $ 47,134
Net Income (Loss) $  (511,704) $ 42,943 $  (306,781) $ 22,015

NOTE 9 - FAIR VALUE

Disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance
sheets is required. Fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. In cases where quoted market prices are not

available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those
techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of

13
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future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of
the instruments. Therefore, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying
value of the Company.

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in
an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume
and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple
valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market
participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts
and circumstances and requires use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the
range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.

In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally
measured at fair value in three levels:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity
to develop its own assumptions.

At December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities
to value.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
As a result of the spread of the COVID19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely
to negatively impact revenues. Other financial impact could occur though such potential impact is unknown

at this time.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available
to be issued, April 8, 2020, and determined that there were no other items for disclosure.

14
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To the Members
New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Covington, LA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and the related statements of income,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. as of December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

fragan &~ Rragan CAS, LLC

Covington, LA
March 26, 2019

Reagan & Reagan CPA, LLC
512 S. Tyler Street  Covington, LA 70433 Office 985-809-6505 fax 985-809-6507
www.randrcpa.com
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Balance Sheets
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 93,952
Restricted cash 563,754
Accounts receivable 73,089
Other receivables 44,576
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,555
Due from affiliates 34,220
Total current assets 816,146
Other receivables 0
Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation
0f'$79,127 and $66,940 respectively 40,642
Goodwill and other intangible assets, less accumulated
amortization of $3,515 and $1,505 respectively 1,942,087
Total assets $ 2,798,875
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 127,912
Due to affiliates -
National marketing fund 61,033
Gift card fund 502,722
Deferred franchise and development fees 1,332,400
Total current liabilities 2,024,067
Total liabilities 2,024,067
Members' equity 774,808
Total liabilities and members' equity $ 2,798,875

2017

210,875
510,532
62,371
112,500
3,962

64,779

965,019

62,500

46,369

1,944,097

3,017,985

168,307
137
62,925
447,607
922,000

1,600,976

1,600,976
1,417,009

3,017,985

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Income
For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

2018 2017
Revenues
Royalties $ 1,470,604 $ 1,335,274
Franchise fees 330,500 75,000
Vendor incentives 82,911 42,921
1,884,015 1,453,195
Expenses
General and administrative 882,457 726,028
Payroll and payroll taxes 983,066 657,851
Selling and marketing 386,007 169,668
Depreciation and amortization 14,197 11,547
2,265,727 1,565,094
Loss from operations (381,712) (111,899)
Other income (expense)
Other income 97,469 12,195
Other expense (409) (7,604)
Interest expense (114) (1,835)
96,946 2,756
Net loss $ (284,766) $ (109,143)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (284,766) $ (109,143)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 14,197 11,547

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (10,718) 15,334
Other receivables 130,424 76,577
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (2,593) 1,023
Due from / to affiliates 30,422 (25,034)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites (40,395) 20,241
Deferred franchise fees 410,400 534,500

Net cash provided by operating activities 246,971 525,045

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment (6,459) (28,956)
Purchases of trademarks - (16,402)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,459) (45,358)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Member contributions 367,509 140,918

Member distributions (724,944) (535,572)
Net cash used in financing activities (357,435) (394,654)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (116,923) 85,033
Cash, beginning of period 210,875 125,842
Cash, end of period $ 93,952 $ 210,875

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest: $ 114 $ 442

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

Statement of Changes in Members’ Equity
For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Members’
Equity
Balance at December 25,2016 $ 1,920,806
Net loss for the period (109,143)
Member contributions 140,918
Member distributions (535,572)
Balance at December 31,2017 $ 1,417,009
Net loss for the period (284,766)
Member contributions 367,509
Member distributions (724,944)
Balance at December 30,2018 $ 774,808

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. (the “Company”) is a Louisiana based limited liability company, formed on
January 23, 2008. The principle business of the Company is the franchising of “P.J.’s Coffee and Tea
Company” stores (PJ’s stores). The Company offers a franchise whose primary business is the sale of
gourmet coffees and teas, blended coffee and tea beverages, whole bean and ground coffee, gourmet
desserts, and other food products and beverages under the name and service mark “PJ’s”. The Company
operates in the United States and abroad. The Company is currently operating in the states of Arkansas,
Colorado, Florida, Louisiana, Mississippi, Maryland, South Carolina and Texas. The Company has master
franchisors in Vietnam, Malaysia and Kuwait, with open locations in Vietnam and Kuwait.

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business.

Basis of Accounting

The Company’s accounts are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Income is recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred.

The Company franchise arrangements provide its franchisee entities the power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact their economic performance; therefore, the Company does not consider it to be
the primary beneficiary of any such entity that might be a variable interest entity.

Fiscal Year
The Company utilizes a 52- or 53-week accounting period that ends on the last Sunday in December.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Companies under Common Control

For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, various members of the Company
were also members in other related entities. It is management’s opinion that the financial position and
results of operations of the Company have not been significantly affected by the transactions with these
entities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the financial statements, the Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased

with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and deposits at banks.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at financial institutions. The balances, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. At December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company did not
exceed the insured limit.

The franchisees purchase substantially all supplies and products sold at the PJ’s stores from a small group
of suppliers at prevailing prices.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from franchisees and area developers for franchise fees and
royalties. Management assesses the collectability of receivables on an ongoing basis. The Company
records a provision for doubtful receivables, if necessary, to allow for any amounts which may be
unrecoverable, which is based upon an analysis of the Company’s prior collection experience,
creditworthiness and current economic trends. During the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, the Company did not write off any receivables.

Other Receivables
Other receivables consist of international area developer fees.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is determined on a straight-
line basis over the estimated remaining useful life of each asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related reasonably
assured lease term. Routine maintenance, repairs and replacement costs are expensed as incurred and
improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. When equipment is sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations. The amounts expensed for maintenance and repairs were
$6,812 and $10,475 for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Assets to be
disposed of, if any, are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the residual purchase price after allocation of the purchase price of net assets acquired.
Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment tests. The Company reviews the
recoverability of goodwill by comparing the fair value to the carrying value. Fair value of the Company’s
goodwill is estimated based upon a present value technique using discounted future cash flows. As of
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, management determined there was no impairment of goodwill.
There can be no assurance that future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a charge to earnings.

Other intangible assets consist of trademarks, which are stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line
method over a ten-year life. The Company tests for impairment of its intangible assets at a minimum on an
annual basis. The Company does not believe that any impairment exists as of December 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. At the balance sheet dates,
the fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities (cash, accounts and other
receivables, prepaid expenses and other current assets, amounts due to and from affiliates, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, and deferred franchise and development fees) approximate their carrying values.

Revenue Recognition

Franchise fee revenues derived from the initial sale of individual franchises are recognized when all
material services or conditions relating to the sale have been substantially performed or satisfied by the
Company. Substantial performance for the Company means that the Company has no remaining obligation
or intent to refund any cash received or forgive any unpaid notes or receivables, substantially all of the
initial services of the Company required by the franchise agreement have been performed, and no other
material conditions or obligations related to the determination of substantial performance exist. Initial
services are generally deemed to be complete at the commencement of operations by the franchisee. Initial
services include, among other things, assistance in site preparation, training, pre-opening, and opening
activities (see Note 6).

The Company receives royalty fees from franchisees based on a percentage of each store’s gross revenue,
as agreed upon in the franchise agreement. Royalty revenue percentages range from 0% to 6%. Royalty

fees are recognized when earned. For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
$1,470,604 and $1,335,274 of royalty fees were earned, respectively.

Franchise Operations

The Company enters into franchise agreements with unrelated third parties to operate locations using the
PJ’s brand within a defined geographical area. The Company believes that franchising is an effective and
efficient means to expand the PJ’s brand. The franchisee is required to operate its location in compliance
with its franchise agreement that includes adherence to operating and quality control procedures established
by the Company. The Company does not provide loans, leases, or guarantees to the franchisee or the
franchisee’s employees and vendors. If a franchisee becomes financially distressed, the Company does not
provide financial assistance. If financial distress leads to a franchisee’s noncompliance with the franchise
agreement and the Company elects to terminate the franchise agreement, the Company has the right but not
the obligation to acquire the assets of the franchisee at fair value. The Company has financial exposure for
the collection of the royalty payments. Franchisees generally remit royalty payments weekly for the prior
week’s sales, which substantially minimizes the financial exposure. Historically, the Company has
experienced insignificant write-offs of franchisee royalties. Franchise fees are paid upon the signing of the
related agreements.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recorded when a franchise agreement is signed by all parties. The franchise fee
remains deferred until the franchise location is opened, at which time the fee is recognized as
revenue, as substantially all of the Company’s obligations to the franchisee are met.

Payments Received from Vendors

Vendor incentives include allowances and other funds received from vendors. Certain of these funds are
determined based on various quantitative contract terms. The Company receives vendor incentives from
certain manufactures and distributors calculated based on purchases made by franchisees. The Company
generally receives payment from vendors approximately 45 days from the end of a month for that month’s
purchases.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are treated as period costs and expensed as incurred. For the fiscal years ended
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, advertising costs totaled $386,007 and $169,668, respectively.
Only advertising costs associated with the solicitation of new franchisees are included in the Company’s
advertising expense. Franchisees pay 0-2% of gross store revenue to an Advertising Fund, to pay for
advertising of PJ’s stores (see Note 2).

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and does not incur income taxes.
Instead, its earnings and losses are included in the personal tax returns of the members. As such, the
financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2014-09 “Revenue with Contracts from Customers (Topic 606).” ASU 2014-09 supersedes the
current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The guidance introduces a five-
step model to achieve its core principal of the entity recognizing revenue to depict the transfer of goods or
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-04, “Liabilities -
Extinguishments of Liabilities: Recognition of Breakage for Certain Prepaid Stored-Value Products.” ASU
2016-04 provides specific guidance for the derecognition of prepaid stored-value product liabilities. In
March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-08, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Principal versus
Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net).” ASU 2016-08 provides specific guidance to
determine whether an entity is providing a specified good or service itself or is arranging for the good or
service to be provided by another party. In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers: Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing.” ASU 2016-10 provides
clarification on the subjects of identifying performance obligations and licensing implementation guidance.

The requirements for these standards relating to Topic 606 will be effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 for private companies. Early adoption is permitted for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company will adopt these standards upon their
effective date, December 31, 2018. The Company does not believe the new revenue recognition standard
will materially impact the recognition of continuing royalty fees from franchisees. The Company believes
adoption of the new revenue recognition standard will impact the accounting for other fees charged to
franchisees and transactions involving the national marketing fund and gift card fund.

The Company expects the adoption of Topic 606 to impact the accounting for initial franchise fees.
Currently the Company recognizes revenue from initial franchise fees upon the opening of a franchised
location when the Company has performed all material obligations and initial services. Upon the adoption
of Topic 606, the Company expects to recognize the revenue related to initial franchise fees over the term
of the related franchise agreement.

The Company expects the adoption of the new revenue recognition standard to materially impact the
accounting for national marketing fees charged to franchisees and other transactions involving the
Company’s national marketing and gift card funds. Upon the adoption of Topic 606, the Company expects
to present marketing contributions received from franchisees as revenue and to record all expenses of the
national marketing fund and therefore expects that this will increase revenues and expenses on the
statements of income.



New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

The Company plans on adopting this standard by utilizing the full retrospective approach. As such, the
Company will continue to finalize accounting policies, quantify the impact of adopting this standard, and
design and implement internal controls during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2018. The Company is
currently unable to estimate the impact on the financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in the ASU
supersedes the lease guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12
months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of
expense recognition in the income statement. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. A modified retrospective transition approach is required for lessees for capital and
operating leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on its financial statements.

The Company has reviewed all other significant newly-issued accounting pronouncements and concluded
that they are either not applicable to the operations or that no material effects are expected on its financial
statements as a result of future adoption.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

The Company has established a separate national marketing fund to administer funds collected from
franchisees for advertising. The franchisees are required to contribute a bi-weekly fee of 0-2% of the
store’s gross sales into the national marketing fund. The amounts are recorded as an asset and offsetting
liability in the amount of $61,033 and $62,925 as of December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively, in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

The Company has established a separate gift card pooling fund to administer funds related to gift card sales
and redemptions for the PJ’s stores. This fund is managed by a third party. The amounts are recorded as
an asset and offsetting liability in the amount of $502,722 and $447,607 as of December 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively, in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Following is a summary of property and equipment at December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

Estimated
Useful Lives 2018 2017
Computers and equipment 5 $ 42,221 $ 35,761
Leasehold improvements 11 62,547 62,547
Furniture and fixtures 7 15,001 15,001
119,769 113,309
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (79,127) (66,940)
Property and Equipment, net $ 40,642 $ 46,369

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was $12,187
and $10,042, respectively.
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On June 17, 2008, the Company, and an affiliate, New Orleans Roast, LLC, completed an asset purchase
agreement with PJ’s USA, Inc. and PJ’s Wholesale, Inc., for substantially all of the assets of the PJ’s
franchise system and coffee roasting business, for a purchase price of approximately $4,000,000. The
Company allocated its portion of the purchase price to tangible assets acquired in the acquisition at their
estimated fair values with the remainder allocated to goodwill as follows: $28,108 to accounts receivable,
and $1,925,500 to goodwill.

Following is a summary of intangible assets at December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

2018 2017
Goodwill $ 1,925,500 $ 1,925,500
Trademarks 20,102 20,102
1,945,602 1,945,602
Less: Accumulated Amortization (3,515) (1,505)
Intangible assets, net $ 1,942,087 $ 1,944,097

Amortization expense for the years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was $2,010 and
$1,505 respectively. Estimated future amortization expense as of December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Fiscal year ending:

2019 $ 2,010

2020 2,010

2021 2,010

2022 2,010

2022 2,010

Thereafter 6,537

S___ 16587

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Nine franchises located in Louisiana are owned and operated by entities affiliated through common
ownership to the Company. The Company occasionally pays money to these and other entities under
common control or ownership, for the purpose of funding the operations of those commonly owned entities.
When the members have determined that these amounts cannot or will not be repaid, amounts owed by
these entities are treated as capital distributions to the members and are recorded as a reduction to members’
equity. As of December 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017, $19,855 and $59,343, respectively, was due to
the Company from entities under common control or ownership.

New Orleans Roast, LLC is an affiliate company that roasts and distributes coffee beans, and coffee related
products to all PJ’s Coffee franchises and other retail businesses. The Company’s general liability/property
insurance policy is part of this affiliated company’s insurance policy. As of December 30, 2018, $14,364
was due to the Company for payments made on behalf of New Orleans Roast, LLC. This amount is
included in due from affiliates in the accompanying Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2017, the
Company owed $137 to New Orleans Roast, LLC for payments made on behalf of the Company. This
amount is included within due to affiliates in the accompanying Balance Sheets.
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

As part of the franchise agreement, franchisees pay an amount equal to 0-2% of their weekly gross sales to
a national marketing fund (see Note 2). From time to time the Company pays certain costs of franchisee
advertising and is reimbursed by the marketing fund. As of December 30, 2018, and December 31, 2017,
the national marketing fund owed the Company $0 and $5,435, respectively. Per the franchise agreements,
the Company is not responsible for the advertising costs of the franchisees, and the franchisees are not
obligated to pay for advertising costs associated with soliciting new franchisees.

The Company shares office space and certain employees with an entity affiliated through common
ownership. This entity also provides health insurance to the Company’s employees. Payroll expenses for
the shared employees totaled $552,034 and $333,104 for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively. These amounts are included in payroll and payroll taxes in the
accompanying Statements of Income.

The Company’s office space is leased in the name of an affiliated entity. The Company is not a party to the
lease. The company incurred $112,070 and $97,103 in rent expense for fiscal years 2018 and 2017,
respectively, related to this lease.

The Company performs accounting and administrative services for certain entities affiliated through
common ownership. A monthly fee is charged for these services and is included in other income on the
Statements of Income. Total accounting fees charged to these entities totaled $93,033 and $0 for the fiscal
years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

In connection with financing arrangements entered by related entities, the Company, along with other
affiliated guarantors, is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor, a local financial institution
(see Note 7).

All related party balances owed to or by the Company are non-interest-bearing, unsecured and due on
demand.

NOTE 6 - FRANCHISE FEES AND AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

At the time a new franchisee signs a franchise agreement, the Company records deferred revenue for the
total amount of the initial franchise fee that is paid or to be paid by the franchisee. When the Company is
no longer obligated to refund any of the franchise fees, and has performed substantially all initial services,
the franchise fee is removed from deferred revenue and recognized as income. The Company generally
assumes that commencement of operations by the franchisee constitutes substantial performance and
recognizes the revenue at that time. The standard franchise arrangement requires an initial franchisee fee of
$30,000 and royalty fee equal to 5% of the store’s monthly gross sales.

The Company also enters into Area Development Agreements. Under these agreements, a third party (the
“Developer”) agrees to sell and open a certain number of franchises in the specified area over a period of
time stipulated in the contract. The Company records the area development fees as deferred franchise fees
when received and recognizes a portion of the fee as revenue each time a new franchise opens in that area.

For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company recognized $330,500
and $75,000, respectively, in franchise and development fee revenue. At December 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, the balance of deferred franchise and development fees was $1,332,400 and $922,000
respectively. Of these balances, $44,576 and $175,000 are included in other receivables in the
accompanying Balance Sheets for the fiscal years ended 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and liabilities, which arise in the
ordinary course of business relating to matters including, but not limited to, disputes with franchisees,
suppliers, employees and customers, as well as disputes over the Company’s intellectual property. In the
opinion of management, the amount of the ultimate liability with respect to any actions against the
Company will not have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations and cash flows.

Guarantees

In connection with financing arrangements entered into by certain companies which represent entities under
common control, as co-borrowers, the Company is contingently liable to satisfy the claims of their creditor,
a local financial institution, up to a maximum of $1,557,387 should these entities be unable to satisfy the
financing arrangement. In the event the Company is required to fund amounts pursuant to the above
arrangement, the Company may recover the amounts from the entities, although terms of such recovery
may extend over several future periods. The guarantees expire starting in May 2020 and go through May
2022.

NOTE 8 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The Company has master area development agreements in countries outside of the United States. The

revenues and net income (loss) from those countries combined are in the table below. There are no long-
term assets held in countries outside of the U.S.

2018 2017
Rest of Rest of
United States World United States World
Revenues $ 1,836,881 $ 47,134 $ 1,408,356 $ 44,839
Net Income (Loss) $  (306,781) $ 22,015 $  (102,374) $ (6,769)

NOTE 9 - FAIR VALUE

Disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance
sheets is required. Fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. In cases where quoted market prices are not
available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those
techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of
future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of
the instruments. Therefore, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying
value of the Company.

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in
an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume
and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple
valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market
participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts
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New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

and circumstances and requires use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the
range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.

In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally
measured at fair value in three levels:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity
to develop its own assumptions.

At December 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities
to value.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available
to be issued, March 26, 2019, and determined that there were no items for disclosure.
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Holding Foods

Avoid Cross-Contamination

Restaurant Sanitation

Safe Chemical Handling & Storage

Proper Disposal of Waste

Proper Pest Control

HACCP Program

Chapter Five: Restaurant Safety
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Safety of Personnel

Slips and Falls

Burns

Safe Lifting

Wounds and Cut

Electric Shocks

First Aid

Safety of Customers and Visitors

Injuries to Customers

Fire Safety

Fire Prevention

Fire Emergency Plan

Security and Protection

Robberies

Key Points of Protection

Cash Management and Control

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Requirements

Hazard Communication Program

Material Safety Data Sheets

Reporting an Accident to OSHA

OSHA Inspection
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Chapter Six: Restaurant Operations
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Daily Opening/Closing Procedures

Opening Responsibilities

Shift Change Responsibilities

Closing Responsibilities

Facilities Cleanliness

Daily and Weekly Sidework

Running Duties

Manager Opening/Closing Checklist

Weekly Cleaning Schedule

Table Maintenance

Floor Maintenance

Cleaning Guidelines

Personnel Training

Cleaning Supplies

Chemical Cleaning Products

Corporate Observation Form

Equipment

Approved Vendor List

Emergency Operations Procedures
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Emergency Closing Policy 1
Crash Kit 1
Chapter Seven: Personnel & Training 57

Introduction

Minimizing Turnover

Employment Resource

Employee Selection

Job Descriptions

PJ’s General Manager

PJ’s Assistant Manager

PJ’s Crew Member

Recruiting

Keys to Effective Recruiting

Equal Opportunity Employer

At-Will Employment

Guidelines for Hiring Non-U.S. Citizens

Employee Reference Checks

Fair Credit Reporting Act

New-Hire Reporting Law (USA)

PJ’s Employee Application Form

The Interview Process

PJ’s Interview Worksheet

Orientation

New Employee Package

Employee Administration

General Team Rules

Appearance Standards

Uniform Standards

Compensation and Benefits

Federal Wage and Hour Laws

Standby Time

Meal and Rest Periods

Equal Pay Act

Federal Child Labor Laws (USA)

Americans with Disabilities Act

Service Animals

Schedules

Absenteeism and Tardiness

Overtime

Payment Procedures

File Retention
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Employer Posting Requirements

Harassment Policy

Fraternization Policy

Substance Abuse Policy

Drug and Alcohol Testing

No Solicitation Policy

Helpful Resources

Company Specific Employee Policies

Employee Development and Training

The Training Process

4 - Step Training Method

PJ's Training Philosophy

Guidelines to PJ’s Crew Training

Guidelines to PJ’s Management Training

Coaching and Feedback

Providing Feedback

How to Motivate

Employee Relations

Handling Employee Issues

Counseling Employees

Employee Meetings

Daily Shift Meetings

Weekly Management Meetings

Bulletin Boards

Handling Disciplinary Action & Termination

Chapter Eight: Management Operations

Responsibilities

Management Goals

Scheduling

Developing the Schedule

Distributing the Schedule

Shift Planning Chart

Managing Labor

Effective Scheduling and Labor Costs

Calculating Labor Costs

Ways to Control Labor Costs

Managing Food Costs

Food Product Costs and Controls

Determining Food Costs

Determining Food Cost Percentages

How to Control Food Costs
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Reporting Procedures

Period Analysis Report

Weekly Management Meeting

POS System

Cash Management

Cash Management System

Components of a Cash Management System

Threats to Cash Management

Restaurant Tipped Employees

Background

Components of Compensation

Minimum Wage

Taxation

Employees Reporting of Tips

Annual Tip Return
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Chapter Nine: Marketing Your Restaurant
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Local Store Marketing

Getting to Know the Neighborhood

Trade Area Survey

Competitive Analysis Chart

Cross-Promotions Contact Form

Potential Groups Contact Form

Event Coordination Contact Form

Ongoing Marketing Plan

Corporate Use of Logo & Materials

Appendix of Forms

== = NN NN =] =

New Orleans Brew, LLC
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021

132




EXHIBIT H

STATE ADMINISTRATORS

CALIFORNIA: California Department of Business Oversight, at any of its offices. 1515 K Street, Suite
200, Sacramento, California 95814-4052, Phone: (916) 445-7205

FLORIDA: Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Consumer Services, City
Centre Building, Suite 7200, 227 N. Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, Phone: (850) 410-3754

HAWAII: Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs, Business Registration Division, 335
Merchant St., Room 203, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, Phone: (808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS: Illinois Attorney General’s Office, Franchise Bureau, 500 South Second Street, Springfield,
Illinois 62706, Phone: (217) 782-4465

INDIANA: Secretary of State, Franchise Section, 302 West Washington Street, Room E-111, Indianapolis,
Indiana 46204, Phone: (317) 232-6681

MARYLAND: Office of the Attorney General, Securities Division, 200 St. Paul Place, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, Phone: (410) 576-6368

MICHIGAN: Michigan Department of Attorney General, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise
Section, 525 W. Ottawa St., 1* Floor, Lansing, Michigan 48913, Phone: (517) 373-7117

MINNESOTA: Securities Unit, Minnesota Department of Commerce, 85 7™ Place East, Suite280, St.
Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198, Phone: (651) 539-1600

NEW YORK: NYS Department of Law, Investor Protection Bureau, 28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor, New
York, New York 10005, Phone: (212) 416-8285

NORTH CAROLINA: Business Opportunities, Department of the Secretary of State, P.O. Box 29622,
Raleigh, North Carolina 27626, Phone: (919) 807-2156

TEXAS: Secretary of State, Statutory document Section, P.O. Box 12887, Austin, Texas 78711, Phone:
(512) 475-1769

VIRGINIA: Virginia State Corporation Commission, Division of Securities and Retail Franchising, 1300
East Main Street, 9" Floor, Richmond, Virginia 23219, Phone: (804) 371-9051

WASHINGTON: State of Washington, Department of Financial Institutions, Securities Division, P.O.
Box 9033, Olympia, Washington, 98501-9033 Phone: (360) 902-8760

WISCONSIN: Division of Securities, 345 W. Washington Avenue, 4" Floor, Madison,
Wisconsin 53703, Phone: (608) 266-1064
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EXHIBIT I

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT

As you know, New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans (“Franchisor”, “PJ’s”, “we”,
“us” or “our”) and you are preparing to enter into a franchise agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) for
the establishment and operation of a PJ’s franchise (the “Franchised Business”). The purpose of this
Questionnaire-Acknowledgment is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you by
employees or authorized representatives of the Franchisor, or by employees or authorized representatives
of a broker acting on behalf of the Franchisor (“Broker”) that have not been authorized, or that were not
disclosed in the Disclosure Document or that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. The Franchisor,
through the use of this document, desires to ascertain (a) that the undersigned, individually and as a
representative of any legal entity established to acquire the franchise rights, fully understands and
comprehends that the purchase of a franchise is a business decision, complete with its associated risks,
and (b) that you are not relying upon any oral statement, representations, promises or assurances during
the negotiations for the purchase of the franchise which have not been authorized by Franchisor.

Any acknowledgement or representations of the franchisee which disclaim the occurrence and/or
acknowledge the non-occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Franchise Law are not
intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppels or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

In the event that you are intending to purchase an existing Franchised Business from an existing
Franchisee, you may have received information from the transferring Franchisee, who is not an employee
or representative of the Franchisor. The-questions-belewThis Acknowledgment does not apply to any

communications that you had with the transferring Franchisee. Please review each of the following

questions-and statements carefully-and-previde- honestand-complete responses-to-each.
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The undersigned acknowledges the following:

1. That vou have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement, each addendum,
and/or related agreement provided to you;

2. That you understand all of the information contained in the Franchise Agreement, each addendum,
and/or related agreement provided to you;

3. That you have vou received and personally reviewed the Franchisor’s Disclosure Document,
including all attached exhibits, that was provided to you;

4. That you understand all of the information contained in the Disclosure Document and any state-
specific Addendum to the Disclosure Document;

5. That you have discussed the benefits and risks of establishing and operating a Franchised Business
with an attorney, accountant, or other professional advisor or you have elected not to speak with
any of the aforementioned individuals;

6. That vou understand that the success or failure of your Franchised Business will depend in large
part upon vour skills and abilities, competition from other businesses, interest rates, inflation, labor
and supply costs, location, lease terms, your management capabilities and other economic, and
business factors;

7. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise concerning the actual or potential revenues, profits or operating costs of any
particular Franchised Business operated by the Franchisor or its franchisees (or of any group of
such businesses), that is contrary to or different from the information contained in the Disclosure
Document;

8. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating the franchised
business that is contrary to or different from the information contained in the Disclosure Document;

9. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating the franchised
business that is contrary to or different from the information contained in the Disclosure Document;
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10. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise concerning the total amount of revenue the Franchised Business will generate,
that is contrary to or different from the information contained in the Disclosure Document;

11. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise regarding the costs you may incur in operating the Franchised Business that
1s contrary to or different from the information contained in the Disclosure Document;

12. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement or promise concerning the likelithood of success that you should or might expect to
achieve from operating a Franchised Business;

13. That no employee of a Broker or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor have made any
statement, promise or agreement concerning the advertising, marketing, training, support service
or assistance that the Franchisor will furnish to you that is contrary to, or different from, the
information contained in the Disclosure Document or franchise agreement;

14. That no yvou have not entered into any binding agreement with the Franchisor concerning the
purchase of this franchise prior to today and that you have not paid any money to the Franchisor
concerning the purchase of this franchise prior to today;

Have vou spoken to any other franchisee(s) of this system before deciding to purchase this
franchise? If so, who?

———A——You recognize and understand that business risks, which exist in connection with the
purchase of any business, make the success or failure of the franchise subject to many variables, including
among other things, your skills and abilities, the hours worked by you, competition, interest rates, the
economy, inflation, franchise location, operation costs, lease terms and costs and the marketplace. You
hereby acknowledge your awareness of and willingness to undertake these business risks.

——B——You agree and state that the decision to enter into this business risk is in no manner
predicated upon any oral representation, assurances, warranties, guarantees or promises made by Franchisor
or any of its officers, employees or agents (including the Broker or any other broker) as to the likelihood of
success of the franchise. Except as contained in the Disclosure Document, you acknowledge that you have
not received any information from the Franchisor or any of its officers, employees or agents (including the
Broker or any other broker) concerning actual, projected or forecasted franchise sales, profits or earnings.

———&——You further acknowledge that the President of the United States of America has issued
Executive Order 13224 (the “Executive Order”) prohibiting transactions with terrorists and terrorist
organizations and that the United States government has adopted, and in the future may adopt, other anti-
terrorism measures (the “Anti-Terrorism Measures”). The Franchisor therefore requires certain
certifications that the parties with whom it deals are not directly involved in terrorism. For that reason, you
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hereby certify that neither you nor any of your employees, agents or representatives, nor any other person
or entity associated with you, is:

1) a person or entity listed in the Annex to the Executive Order;

(i1) a person or entity otherwise determined by the Executive Order to have
committed acts of terrorism or to pose a significant risk of committing acts of
terrorism;

(i)  a person or entity who assists, sponsors, or supports terrorists or acts of terrorism;
or

(iv) owned or controlled by terrorists or sponsors of terrorism.

You further covenant that neither you nor any of your employees, agents or representatives, nor
any other person or entity associated with you, will during the term of the Franchise Agreement become a
person or entity described above or otherwise become a target of any Anti-Terrorism Measure.

Signatiire Print Naome of I eaal Entitu
ulsllutul\y 1 1I1IIre TVamnmay T 1_4\45(11 ITCTU
Drint Name Ry
T IIae INammae Py .
Qignatiire
ulsllutul\y
Signatiire Print Name
ulsllutul\y 1T 1I1IIre TNamae
Print Name Title
T IIae INammae T IV
Print Name
T IIae INammae
FRANCHISEE:
Name
Title
Date
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EXHIBIT J

FRANCHISEES/LOCATIONS OF STORES
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Metaitie LA 70006
East-Gause-Coffee, LLC? 2040-E-Gause Blvd-Ste—+
EA . 985-649-6270
Attn:Barry Prendergast Shidell; EA-70461
ClearviewReyalLessee; Roval St-Charles Hotel
EA70430
MAPartrership; EEC 5359 Meunes-St:
EA . . 5047312905
Atta-Michael Pierce Harahan, FA-704123
Maple Brew LLC? F624 Maple-St
EA 5048615335
AttaPaul Ballard New-Orleans; EA-70HS
Marketplace Brew LLC? 70325 Hwy1077-Ste--A—+
EA . 985845841+
Attn:Paul Ballard Covington; FA-70433
Gumbe-Miller, LLC? 5432 Magazine St:
EA . 5048952202
Atti—Aubry-Miler New-Orleans; EAFOHHS
NelaBrewLEC 2200-David Dr:
EA : Metairie 1 504-883-3883
Plan 22 LEC 4480 Hwy22
EA . . 985-624-9015
Attn:Eleanor Fisher Mandeville, EA-—70471
R-&NRedStickCoffee 100-Lafayette St
EA pany 2253810055
AttrStephanie BatonReouge; FA70801
Redmann
EA 985-5491620
Atta-AmandaBennett Hammond, LA-70430
JTIK Coffee; LLC? 1600 NHwy190,Ste7
EA . 9858719236
Attn-Barry Prendergast Cevington; EA—70433
Rebins LEC 150-Ormond-Center Ct
EA . 9857647573
Attn:-TomLewis Destrahan LA-70047
S& S Wingerys HEC 2045 EJudge Perez
EA 5042795307
AttaKellyrSengy Chalmette; EA-70043
Saterlee Development; Ho58JeffersonHwy
LA ELC 304-738-7797
Sod e LLC Tulone Universiv L
FoH7
21 Brew, LLC? St-Tammany Parish Hospital
RDT Coffee; LLC? F614 Hwy23-Suite E
LA T 504-393-0858
Attn: Roxanne Tillotson Belle-Chase; LA-70037
LA TAM Poydras LLC? 1515 Poydras-St-Ste-400 504-875-2443
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Atta-Andrew-Jones New-Orleans; EA-70H2
BeanTown;, LLC? Northoaks Hospital
Atta-DennaMiller 15790 Paunl- Vega-MD, Hammend;
EA-70360
Compass-Group; LEC? OchsnerBaptist Hospital
Atta—JasonHewlett 4429 Clara-St New Orleans; A
JoHS5
e
Fauberge Dutae EBE-Casine
Casinoe
Attr-Sean-Malone BatonReouge; FA70820
Jeremy Griffen® 1311-St-Charles-St:
Claiborne Fresh- Market® Roberts Fresh-Market
Orleans; FA-70H8
HarrisonEresh- Market® Roberts Fresh-Market
Attt Mare Robert HH 80+ HarrisonAve; NewOrleans; A
70124
M-Robert Enterprises® Roberts Fresh-Market
Atta-Mare RobertHH 153 RobertE-Lee BlvdsNew
Orleans; FA-70124
ML Rebert 1L LLC? Roberts Fresh-Market
EA-70006
Compass-Group; LLC? OchsnerMedieal Center
Attn—JasonHewlett 2500 BeHe-Chase Hwy—-Gretna; LA
70056
e
Attn-Roy Brane New-Orleans; FA70H6
Compass-Group; LLC? OchsnerMedieal Center
Attn—JasonHewlett 51 4Jefferson HwysNew-Orleans;
EA 70121
MMAD Coffee, LLC? 402 West Highway 30, Suite A
Atta-Mateusz Geonzales; FA-70737
Dabrowski
FanBaHEC? 5555 Canal Blvd:
Compass-Group; LLC? LSUHS Shreveport
Attn—JasonHewlett 150 Kings HwShreveporb EA
7H63
SSF — I I Recional Al P
Seeurity)
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AttnRobert-Cotton 9430 Jackie-CochranDrBaten
Reupge; EA70807
2 DiazC - S
. ., irie.
Atta-Roxanne Tillotson )
70006
5 I X Recional Al T
Seeurity)
AttnRobert-Cotton 9430 Jackie-CochranDrBaten
Reupge; EA70807
Heathbrou; LLC 3625 NelsonRdSuite E
Attn—AaronBroussard Lake-Charles; LA-70605
Compass-Group; LEC? OchsnerMedical Center
Atta—JasenHevwdett 180-W-Esplanade AvesKenner A
70065
& O v Modical €
Attr—Philip-Martin 2000-Canal- St New Orleans; A5
70112
Aramark® Touro-Medical Center
Attn—Corie-Gardener 401 Foucher St NewOrleans; FA
70115
Deecatur Brews LLC? 501 Decatur St
Attt Roy Brane New-Orleans; FA-FH30
TF-&C-Coffee, LLC? 820 WestOak-St
INAR LLC? 6H03 Airpert Rd-Suite 7
Eavigre Plaza; EEC Blue Harber
70471
Stone-Creel Club-&Spa; Stene-Creelc Club-&-Spa; LEC
LEC
Atta—Seott-Gutterman 120+ Ochsner Blvd-Covington, LA
70433
Where's The 2140-Magazine-Street
Watermelon, LLC?
e Hosoiahiv LLC? 00 B Road
PJs Coffee-of Laplace; 1808 WestAdrline Hwy B
LEC
Brune Brew, LLC? 800 Metairie Rd-—Ste—V
Brune Brews, LLC? 509 Veterans Blvd-
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e 2255702268
Marketfare-St—Claude; Roberts Fresh-Market
2
EEC 504-262-988 Non-Traditional
EA 70T
Ripple BayouBeans; 15089 LA-73
ELC 2257441713
Atta-Shely Johnston Prairieville; EA-70769
Eagniappe-Coffee, LEC 2119 Airline Drive,Suite 100
. ) 318-588-5188
Atta-Brandy-Craft Besster Gty EAFAHH
840-Coffee Co; LLC New-Orleans-Advocate
EA701430
Sedexo-America, LLC? Palane University—Freeman-Sechool
AttaJeffery Burnham | 7 MeAlister Drive; New-Orleans; EA
JoH8
Capeorns HEC FheRiverwalk
Attn: Richard 500 Port of New Orleans Place; 504-218-5698 | Nen-Traditional
Capdebeseq NOLA 70130
Aramarld WestJefferson Medical Center
EA-70006

70433
JunDa, LLC? Kenner
70062
StPaul’s-School StPauls-Sehool
70433
5 EastHeouma
IIGQ
. 985-262-0622
Attn-Andrew-Jones H28 Grand-Calon Rd-Houma; LA
70363
Creseent-City-Coffee; New-OrleansEast
. 504-354-8622
Chamblis Fo427
Compass-Group; LEC? Ochsner BatonRouge
EA-70836
EA-70433
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EA 70148
TAM Carendalet LLC? Drip-AffogateBar
AttAndrewJenes 703 Carondelet St New-Orleans, LA | 504313161 | NenTraditional
70113
ArmstrongAdrport New-OrleansAirport—Concourse €
’ . . . Non-Traditional
Atta-Delaware North + Terminal Dr—Main-Terminal;
Kenner, EA-70062
Walker High-Sehool 12646 BurgessAvente
AttnJason-StPierre Walker LA 70785
Venus; LLC? 8621 Georgia Ave;Ste A2 .
Atta-Shag-Quershi SHver-Spring; MD-20910
Eee? 661-799-4901
Attn—Barry Prendergast Pieayune- MS 39466
6012492735
AttarMaria-Mena 10000-Factory-Shops Blvd-SteEC-
10,-Guliport MS 39053
TPMSEnterprises; HEC Stennis-Space-Center
AttFanya-Surla Butlding H009, ReomNISOB
. 2017 Main-Street
James-& Catherine 178 931 1942
Ceoast-Coffee LLC? 14100 CookRoad
L 2282151510
Central Avenue-Coffee; 10439 D'Iberville Blvd:
e 228 207 4509

Attn: +H-AshleyAvenue, MUSE
> Philins Plaza Buildi
At‘ti: |(;(;ha‘la::a b 2 b
37219
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GA Greensbero; GA T-&C-Coffee; LLC—Terri-&-Charlie Sampey 7625551187
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Alpharetta;- GA The-Secial- Gaming Experience; LLC*—Kenya-Harris 334-324-8791
Lawrenceville;GA Muneeb-Axif F70-8262713
...
Poenchateula; LA Beantown, ELC*—Deonna-Miller 985-969-0104
BatonReuge; FA EAReasters; EEC*—AndrewJones 404-427-0366
BatonReuge; FA EAReasters; EEC*—AndrewJones 404-427-0367
BatonReuge; FA EAReasters; EEC*—AndrewJones 404-427-0368
Houma; LA FAGInvestments; EEC*—Andrew Jones 404-427-0369
Walker; EA Walker Needs-Coffee, LEC* —Aubry- Miller 504-234-0282
Eafayette; EA Aden-&Julie Cummings’ 9857783313
Eafayette; EA Aden-&Julie Cummings’ 9857783313
Eafayette; EA Aden-&Julie Cummings’ 98577183313
Rusten; FA Kristy-&Robert Meounts 385126384
New-Orleans; LA Ash-Salem 504-655-83719
BatonReuge; FA A& Dina-Perkins® 225-907-4370
BatonReuge; FA A& Dina-Perkins® 225-907-4379
...
Bewies MB TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 240-423-2328
Bewies MbB TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 240-423-2329
AnnapehssMbB TMT Holding Co- > —Michael Harris 240-423-2328
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College ParlcMD TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 240-423-2328

Hyattsvile; MB TMT Holding Co->—Michael Harris 240-423-2328
...

Hattiesbure, MS Paul Sanders-and Brooke Stampley? 085 630-7162

Hattiesburg; MS Paul-Sanders-and Brooke-Stampley” 985-630-H62

Hattiesburg; MS Paul-Sanders-and Brooke-Stampley” 985-630-H64

Oeean-Springs; MS Coast-Coffee; LLC*—David LeBron 228-229-0689

Bilexi; MS Coast-Coffee; LLC*—David LeBron 228-229-0690

Gulfpert MS Coast-Coffee; LLC*—David LeBron 228-229-0691

Broekhaven; MS John-&Angelaambert 601-695-2039

Meridian; MS FarheenLala® 602-686-2636

Meridian; MS EarheenLala® 602-686-2637

Meridian; MS EarheenLala® 602-686-2637

Fackson,-MS John-Stanton® 504-858-5800

Fackson,-MS John-Stanton® 504-858-5800

Fackson,-MS John-Stanton® 504-858-5801

. Spinges, MS Ronmie Al& B Whi 707-319-5068
.|

Charlette; NC Raheel- &Asil-Quershi 917-992-664H
.|

Watehume N The Family Bean,; EFLC—Islam Badr 2017447962
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Mentville; NJ Geran-&DivaaPoepevski 973-342-5044
.|

Ridgeland,SC Lueley-8-Ceoffee; ELC—LindaJohnsen 843-619-1911

Reek Hil;-S€ JeffHateley 949-899-3835
...

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6004

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6005

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6006

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6007

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton; LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6008

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6009

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6010

Heusten; X OnePrice Friton, LLC*—Mike Price 281-468-6012

SanAntenrte X Martin-& Deberah-Bomba® 210-287-9694

RoundReelgTX Martin-& Deberah-Bomba® 210-287-9695

Aastiox Martin-& Deberah-Bomba® 210-287-9696

Menahans; X Ever-&Marielena-Saenz 432-260-9737

Springs X Paul-Picard® 713-302-3251
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= HoustonTX Paul Picard® H3-302-5252
= HoustonTX Paul Picard® H3-302-5253
= Eort Werth; X Mark-& BarbaraNull 1777138310
= Amarilo; X Cathy-&Joel Meyers 206-445-4139
VA Richmond VA Venus; LLC*—Shaq-Qureshi 703-868-6031
VA Richmond VA Venus; LLC?—Shagq-Qureshi 703-868-6032
VA Richmond VA Venus; LLC?—Shaq-Qureshi 703-868-6033
VA Richmond VA Venus; LLC*—Shaq-Qureshi 703-868-6034
FAST KNOWN
STATE EFRANCHISEE EASTKNOWN-ADDRESS TELEPHONE
BrunoBrews LLC 622 Canal St
LA ) 504-561-8552
AttaRoy Brune New-Orleans; FA
ArmstrongAdrport New-OrleansAirport—Conecourse-C
LA Ceneessions; LEC 504-463-5550
ArmstrongAdrport New-OrleansAirport—Concourse B
LA Ceneessions; LEC 504-466-2154
ArmstrongAdrport New-Orleans Airport—Conecourse D
LA Coneessions 504-463-5500
: feld 000-Aitline Drive K LA 7006
T&CCoffee, LLEC 4100-General Degaulle Dr-
LA . ChaslieS New-Osl LA 70131 504-392-4280
T&CCoffee LLC F6t4 Hwy23-Suite E
EA Attn- Charlie-S Belle Chase- LA70037 504-393-0858
FISSCEEC 1515 Peydras-St-Ste—400
LA L Eusel; New-O LA 70110 5048752443
Dz I LLC DianC - S
LA . Giselle Eastlac] ho-Cl e Pl Metairie LA70006 5047792976
LA Natural Brew, EEC J600-N-Hwy190:Ste—7 985871 9234
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STATE

FRANCHISEE

Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC
Attn: Harry Dodich

ADDRESS

6510 Spanish Fort Blvd.
Spanish Fort, AL 36527

DRIVE-
TRADITIONAL | THRU /
TELEPHONE / NON- NO
TRADITIONAL | DRIVE-
THRU
.. Drive-
251-648-3855 Traditional =
thru

R & J Coffee, LLC
Attn: Renee Prutch

T & C Coffee, LLC

922 E. Hailey Lane
Pueblo West, CO 81007

1010 Market St.

719-647-2848

Traditional

EAB Coffee, LLC 106 East Main St., Ste. 103 No

AR Attn: Peter Dunn Eldorado, AR 71730 870-875-1409 Traditional Drive-
thru
Eric Seyller & 210 W. 22nd Street No

AR Rebecca Seyller Stuttgart, AR 72160 870-674-8622 Traditional Drive-
thru

Drive-
thru

Attn: Kenya Harris

Alpharetta, GA 30005

- Drive-
GA Attn: Charlie Sampey Greensboro, GA 30642 762-555-1187 Traditional thru
The Social Gaming 3460 Old Milton Parkway Dri
GA Experience, LLC 334-324-8791 Traditional #ﬁf

New Orleans Brew, LLC
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21 Brew LLC 70456 HWY 21, Ste. 1 N Drive-

LA Attn: Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70433 IB5-875-7894 Traditional E
B.E.D. Café, LLC 5300 Tchoupitoulas St. No

LA Attn: Thomas Boudreaux New Orleans, LA 70115 204-895-2007 Traditional Déli;f_

Ballard Pearson LLC 73015 Hwy 25, Ste. F - Drive.

LA Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70435 985-892-1202 Traditional E

Bean Town, LLC 14282 W. University Ave., Ste. A . Drive-

LA Attn: Donna Miller Hammond, LA 70401 285-542-5515 Traditional E
Bean Town, LLC 224 W. Thomas No

LA Attn: Donna Miller Hammond, LA 70401 985-345-1533 Traditional Déli;f_

Brew Boys LLC 1665 Dove Park Rd. - Drive.

LA Attn: Paul Ballard Mandeville, LA 70471 985-898-5282 Traditional E

LA Campus Brew LL.C Tulane University 504-862-8063 Non-Traditional




Attn: Paul Ballard 6501 Willow St., New Orleans, LA No
70117 Drive-
thru
Campus Brew LLC Tulane University No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard 6823 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, 504-865-5705 Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70117 thru
Bellinaloo Coffee, LLC 1545 Lapalco Blvd, Bldg. E-1A No
LA Attn; Cherie White Harvey, LA 70058 204-368-6600 | Traditional Dtﬂerf
TAM Coffee, LLC 3070 Holiday Drive . Drve—
LA Attn: Andrew Jones New Orleans, LA 70131 204-392-4280 Traditional E
Gimme Coffee LLC 6600 Franklin Ave., Ste. B-1 No
LA Attn: Harry Johnson New Orleans, LA 70122 204-715-4965 Traditional Dg:f’
East Gause Coffee, LLC 2040 E Gause Blvd, Ste. 1 N Drve—
LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Slidell, LA 70461 985-649-6270 Traditional E
Clearview Royal Lessee, Royal St. Charles Hotel
LLC - &
LA Attn: m Kline 135 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, LA 204-207-8909 Non-Traditional Dtﬁ:_
70130
MA Partnership, LLC 5359 Mounes St. N Drive-
LA Attn: Michael Pierce Harahan, LA 70123 204-731-2905 Traditional E
Maple Brew LLC 7624 Maple St. No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard New Orleans, LA 70118 504-861-5335 Traditional Dg:f’
Marketplace Brew LLC 70325 Hwy 1077 Ste. A-1 N Drve—
LA Attn: Paul Ballard Covington, LA 70433 285-845-8411 Traditional E
Gumbo Miller, LLC 5432 Magazine St. No
LA Attn: Aubry Miller New Orleans, LA 70115 504-895-2202 Traditional Dg:f’
Nola Brew LLC 2200 David Dr. No
LA Attn: Brent Jouandot Metairie, LA 504-883-3883 Traditional Dg:f’
Plan 22 LILC 4480 Hwy 22 E
LA Attn: Eleanor Fisher Mandeville, LA 70471 985-624-9015 Traditional Dg:f’
R & N Red Stick Coffee 100 Lafayette St. g
LA Company 225-381-0055 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Stephanie Redmann Baton Rouge, LA 70801 thru
Caffeinated, LLC 1913 SW Railroad Ave. N Drive-
LA Attn: Amanda Bennett Hammond, LA 70430 985-549-1620 Traditional E
JTJK Coffee, LLC 1600 N Hwy 190, Ste. 7 No
LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Covington, LA 70433 985-871-9236 Traditional Dg:f’
Robins LLC 150 Ormond Center Ct. - Drive.
LA Attn: Tom Lewis Destrahan, LA 70047 985-764-7573 Traditional E
LA S & S Wingery, LLC 2015 E. Judge Perez 504-279-5307 Traditional
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Attn: Kelly Songy Chalmette, LA 70043 Drive-
thru
Saterlee Development, 10158 Jefferson Hwy No

LA LLC 504-738-7797 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Anthony Saterlee River Ridge, LA 70123 thru
Sodexo America, LLC Tulane University Library No

LA Attn: Phoebe Cook 7001 Freret St.New Orleans, LA 70117 | 204-862-3086 | Non-Traditional DtEVe'
hru
St. Tammany Parish St. Tammany Parish Hospital No

LA Hospital 985-892-8242 | Non-Traditional | Drive-
Attn: Lori Foret 1202 S. Tyler St., Covington, LA thru
RDT Coffee, LLC 7614 Hwy 23 Suite F No

LA 504-393-0858 Traditional Drive-
— Attn: Roxanne Tillotson Belle Chase, LA 70037 thru
TAM Poydras 1515 Poydras St., Ste. 400 No

LA Attn: Andrew Jones New Orleans, LA 70112 504-875-2443 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Bean Town, LLC Northoaks Hospital No

LA Attn: Donna Miller 15790 Paul Vega MD, Hammond, LA 985-230-6061 Non-Traditional Drive-
70360 thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Baptist Hospital No

LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 4429 Clara St., New Orleans, LA 504-894-2701 Non-Traditional Drive-
70115 thru
Magnolia Hospitality, LLC 300 Canal St., Ste. R No

LA Attn: Corrado Giacona New Orleans, LA 70130 504-210-0392 | Non-Traditional Dtﬂve_
hru
L’auberge Du Lac Casino LDL Casino No

LA Attn: Sean Malone Baton Rouge, LA 70820 225-490-7358 Non-Traditional Dtﬂve_
hru

Jeremy Griffen 1311 St. Charles St. N Drive-
LA Attm: Jeremy Griffen Houma, LA 70360 285-873-414] Traditional thru
Claiborne Fresh Market Roberts Fresh Market No

LA Attn: Marc Robert III 8115 S. Claiborne Ave., New Orleans, 504-488-0536 Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70118 thru
Harrison Fresh Market Roberts Fresh Market No

LA Attn: Marc Robert III 801 Harrison Ave., New Orleans, LA 504-293-1201 Non-Traditional Drive-
70124 thru
M. Robert Enterprises Roberts Fresh Market No

LA Attn: Marc Robert 111 153 Robert E. Lee Blvd., New Orleans, | 304-282-3428 | Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70124 thru
ML Robert II, LLC Roberts Fresh Market No

LA Attn: Marc Robert III 5016 W. Esplanade Ave., Metairie, LA | 304-885-7005 Non-Traditional Drive-
70006 thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No

LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 2500 Belle Chase Hwy., Gretna, LA 504-392-3131 | Non-Traditional Drive-
70056 thru
Jackson Square Coffee, 630 Chartres St. No

LA LLC 504-267-4545 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Roy Bruno New Orleans, LA 70116 thru
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Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 1514 Jefferson Hwy., New Orleans, LA 504-842-3000 Non-Traditional Drive-
70121 thru
MMAD Coffee, LLC 402 West Highway 30, Suite A N Drive-
LA Attn: Mateusz Dabrowski Gonzales, LA 70737 225-644-5955 Traditional thru
Jun Da, LLC 5555 Canal Blvd. No
LA Attn: Shuai Wang New Orleans, LA 70124 504-309-3398 Traditional Déllve'
hru
Compass Group, LLC LSUHS Shreveport No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 1501 Kings Hwy., Shreveport, LA 318-675-4560 | Non-Traditional Drive-
71103 thru
SSP America Baton Rouge Regional Airport (Pre- No
Security) .. —
LA Attn: Robert Cotton 9430 Jackie Cochran Dr., Baton Rouge, 225-354-3448 Non-Traditional Déll;f_
LA 70807 -
RDT Coffee II, LLC Diaz Convenience Store Dri
.. rive-
LA ) . 4400 Clearview Pkwy., Metairie, LA 504-779-2976 Non-Traditional h
Attn: Roxanne Tillotson thru
70006
SSP America Baton Rouge Regional Airport (Post- No
Security) .. —
LA Attn: Robert Cotton 9430 Jackie Cochran Dr., Baton Rouge, 225-354-3448 Non-Traditional Déll;f_
LA 70807 -
Heathbrou, LLC 3625 Nelson Rd., Suite E - Drive-
LA Attn: Aaron Broussard Lake Charles, LA 70605 337-429-2561 Traditional thru
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Medical Center No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 180 W. Esplanade Ave., Kenner LA 985-875-2828 Non-Traditional Drive-
70065 thru
Aramark University Medical Center No
LA Attn: Philip Martin 2000 Canal St., New Orleans, LA, 504-201-9349 Non-Traditional Drive-
70112 thru
Aramark Touro Medical Center No
LA Attn: Corie Gardener 1401 Foucher St., New Orleans, LA 504-897-7011 Non-Traditional Drive-
70115 thru
Decatur Brew, LL.C 501 Decatur St. No
LA Attn: Roy Bruno New Orleans, LA 70130 504-207-4100 Traditional Déllve'
hru
T &C Coffee, LLC 820 West Oak St N Drive-
LA Attn: Charlie Sampey Amite, LA 70422 204-392-4280 Traditional thru
Lavigne Plaza, LLC Blue Harbor N Drive-
LA Attn: Chip Lavigne 2963 Hwy 190, Mandeville, LA 70471 | 25>-074-1565 Traditional thru
Stone Creek Club & Spa, Stone Creek Club & Spa, LLC
LLC ]
LA Attn: Scott Gutterman 1201 Ochsner Blvd., Covington, LA 285-801-7135 Non-Traditional Drive-
thru
70433
Where's The Watermelon, 2140 Magazine Street No
LA LLC 504-355-2934 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Aubry Miller New Orleans, LA 70817 thru
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Griffin Hospitality, LLC

200 E. Bayou Road

.. Drive-
LA Attn: Jeremy Griffin Thibodaux, LA 70301 285-492-1207 Traditional thru
PJ's Coffee of Laplace, 1808 West Airline Hwy B No
LA LLC 985-359-7575 Traditional Drive-
Attn: Wayne Vicknair LaPlace, LA 70068 thru
Bruno Brew, LLC 800 Metairie Rd. Ste. V No
LA Attn: Roy Bruno Metairie, LA 70005 204-828-1460 Traditional Dtﬂve_
hru
Bruno Brew, LLC 509 Veterans Blvd. . Drive-
LA Attn: Roy Bruno Metairie, LA 70005 304-841-0990 Traditional thru
KL & AM Holdings, LL.C 20103 Old Scenic Hwy. N Drive-
LA Attn: Aubry Miller Zachary, LA 70791 225-570-2268 Traditional thru
Marketfare St. Claude, Roberts Fresh Market
LA LLC 504-262-888 Non-Traditional Dlr% -
- Attn: Marc Robert 2222 St. Claude Ave., New Orleans, = = thnf
LA 70117 -
Ripple Bayou Beans, LLC 15089 LA-73 No
LA Attn: Shelly Johnston Prairieville, LA 70769 225-744-1713 Traditional Dtﬂve_
hru
Lagniappe Coffee, LLC 2119 Airline Drive, Suite 100 N Drive-
LA Attn: Brandy Craft Bossier City, LA 71111 318-588-5188 Traditional thru
840 Coffee Co, LLC New Orleans Advocate No
LA Attn: John Georges 840 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, LA | 504-266-2145 [ Non-Traditional Drive-
70130 thru
Sodexo America, LLC Tulane University - Freeman School of No
Business .. —
LA Attn: Jeffery Burnham 7 McAlister Drive, New Orleans, LA 203-862-8152 Non-Traditional Drive-
thru
70118
Aramark West Jefferson Medical Center No
LA Attn: Philip Martin 1101 Medical Center Blvd., Marrero, 504-349-1156 Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70006 thru
Ballard Brew, LLC Ochsner Health Center - Covington No
LA Attn: Paul Ballard 1000 Ochsner Blvd., Covington, LA 985-302-5470 Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
St. Pauls School St. Pauls School No
LA Attn: 917 S Jahnke Ave. Covington, LA 985-892-3200 | Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
JAG Investment Group, East Houma
LLC .. Drive-
LA Attn: Andrew Jones 1128 Grand Cailou Rd. Houma, LA 985-262-0622 Traditional thru
70363
Crescent City Coffee, LLC New Orleans East Dri
.. rive-
LA Attn: Stephanie Chamblis 5733 Read Blvd. New Orleans, LA 504-354-8622 Traditional thru
70127 e
Compass Group, LLC Ochsner Baton Rouge No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 10310 The Grove Blvd Baton Rouge, 225-761-5200 | Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70836 thru
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Attn: Michael Harris

Bowie, MD 20720

St. Scholastica Academy St. Scholastica Academy No
LA Attn: 122 S Massachusetts St, Covington, LA | 285-892-2540 Non-Traditional Drive-
70433 thru
Compass Group, LLC University of New Orleans No
LA Attn: Jason Hewlett 2000 Lakeshore Dr. New Orleans, LA N/A Non-Traditional Drive-
70148 thru
TAM Carrondalett, LLC Drip Affogato Bar No
LA Attn: Andrew Jones 703 Carondelet St, New Orleans, LA 504-313-1611 | Non-Traditional | Drive-
70113 thru
Armstrong Airport New Orleans Airport - Concourse C
LA Concessions, LLC N/A Non-Traditional Dlr%e—
- Attn: Delaware North 1 Terminal Dr.- Main Terminal - thru
Kenner, LA 70062 —
Walker High School 12646 Burgess Avenue No
LA . 335-664-4825 Non-Traditional Drive-
= Attn: J. St. P
HSASON SLETE Walker, LA 70785 thru
Walker High School 12646 Burgess Avenue No
LA . 335-664-4825 Non-Traditional Drive-
= Attn: J. St. P
HSASON SLETE Walker, LA 70785 thru
ABM Ochsner Medical Center - Elmwood No
LA Attn: Eric Lyons 2121 S. Clearview Parkway, Metairie, N/A Non-Traditional Drive-
LA 70121 thru
FND Coffee, LLC 653 US Highway 190 Drive-
LA 504-858-6869 Traditional -
Attn: Barry Prendergast Covington, LA 70433 thru
Allen Cummins & 18-1 Camellia Blvd. Drive-
LA . . 985-778-3313 Traditional “thru
Julie Cummins Lafayette, LA 70508 thru
LA Kristy Mounts & 1736 Farmerville Hwy. 18.512 4 Traditional Drive-
LA Robert Mounts Ruston. LA 71270 318-512-638 raditiona thru
Venus, LLC 8621 Georgia Ave., Ste A-2 No
MD Attn: Shaq Quershi Silver Spring, MD 20910 240-863-3810 Traditional Déllve_
hru
TMT Holdings Co. 12530 Fairwood Parkway No
MD 240-423-2328 Traditional Drive-

Three Cups of Coffee 117 North Main St., Ste. A No

MS Attn: Barry Prendergast Picayune, MS 39466 601-799-4901 Traditional Déllve'
hru

Praise Properties LLC 1213 Delaware Ave. N Drive-
M3 Attn: Pat Brumfield McComb, MS 39648 601-249-2735 Traditional thru

Gulfport Food Systems, Gulfport Outlet Mall

LLC .. &

MS Attn: Maria Mena 10000 Factory Shops Blvd., Ste. FC- 228-8716020 Non-Traditional D£;/;:—
10, Gulfport, MS 39053 —
TMS Enterprises, LLC Stennis Space Center No

MS Attn: Tanya Surla Building 1100, Room N180B 228-688-1197 Non-Traditional Déllve'
hru
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2017 Main Street

MS Jammme By St Louis, MS 30520 208231-1942 |  Traditional Dtﬂf
MS oast Coffee, LLC 100 Coo Road 228-215-1510 Traditional Drive-
— Attn: David LeBron Biloxi, MS 39532 thru
MS Paul Sanders & RN 985-630-7162 Traditional Drive-
T Booke Stampley Hattiesburg, MS thru
John "Jack" Stanton & 3100 Old Canton Road, Suite 100 . Drive-
MS Aneie Stanton Jackson, MS 39216 602-686-2635 Traditional E
MS Farheen Lala 2 MBS 602-686-2635 Traditional Drive-
—_ Meridian, MS 39305 thru

West Point Military

Academy
Attn:

West Point Military Academy

606 Thayer Rd., West Point, NY 10996

NA

Non-Traditional

Drive-

thru

Sodexo America, LL.C Medical University South Carolina No

SC Attn: 171 Ashley Avenue, MUSC 843-792-0393 Non-Traditional Déllve—
thru

Lucky 8 Coffee, LLC 8026 E. Mail Street N Drive-
S Attn: Linda Johnson Ridgeland, SC 29936 843-619-1911 | Traditional thru

IGWT Coffee, LLC

Attn: JC Chavarria

One Price Triton, LLC

Philips Plaza Building

414 Union St., #105, Nashville, TN
37219

11930 Barker Cypress Rd., Ste 800

615-953-7997

Traditional

Drive-

thru

I Attn: Mike Price Cypress, TX 77433 832:653-6235 | lraditional Dtﬂf
JKSAM & Sons, LLC 12640 Broadway St., Ste 102 N Drive-
X Attn: Kyra Sam Pearland, TX 77584 832-406-7350 Traditional E
X Lver Saenz & 1298120 432-260-9737 Traditional Drive-
_ Marielena Saenz Monahans, TX 79756 thru
Martin Bomba & 3800 E. Palm Calley Blvd., Suite 100 N Drive-
X Deborah Bomba Round Rock, TX 78665 210-287-9694 Traditional E
P & M Coffee, LLC 9703 Bandera Road N Drive-
X Attn: Philip Sebastian San Antonio, TX 78250 210-912-5996 Traditional E
RREAL IIL. LLC 1314 W. Palma Vista Drive, Suite 10 )
X Attn: Aracely & Marcus Palmview, TX 78572 956-432-4228 Traditional Dg_;/;:—
Villarreal e
HRK Management PJs1, 6091 W. University Drive .
TX LLC 201-572-3365 Traditional Dtﬂ—:f—

Attn: Ridham Bhatt

McKinney, TX 75071
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LOCATION/CITY

NAME OF FRANCHISEE

Block 10 Plot 288 Abu Al Hassaniya No
KU Hesham Abdulla Alroumi Kuwait, Abu Al Hassaniya 65-9-987-0622 Traditional Délive—
nru
TR Group International 145-147 Neuyen Co Thach, No
VN Pte. Ltd. 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional Drive-
Attn: Rick Yvanovich An Loi Dong Ward, District 2, Vietnam thru
TR Group International British International School - I
Pte. Ltd. .. &
VN Attn: Rick Yvanovich 101 Thao Dien Street, District 2, Ho 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional D,(E;f_
Chi Minh City _—
TR Group International British International School - 11
Pte. Ltd. .. &
VN Attn: Rick Yvanovich 246 Neuyen Van Huong Street, District 84-8-382-6900 | Non-Traditional D,(E;f_
2, Ho Chi Minh City B

PHONE NUMBER

AL Mobile, AL Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC - Harry Dodich? 251-648-3855
AL Mobile, AL Eastern Shore Coffee, LLC - Harry Dodich? 251-648-3855
AL Tuscaloosa, AL Armellino Italian Ices Co. - Bill Getchel 631-848-6737

CA Carmichael, CA Danny Phung 916-505-6575
CO Pueblo, CO Prutch Coffee of Pueblo, LLC - Joe & Renne Prutch 719-251-2673
CO Colorado Springs, CO SV Enterprises, LLC - Vijay Hurkute 719-337-3802

FL Orlando, FL Whitetail26, LLC - Susan Wright 630-688-4240
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684
FL Pensacola, FL Southern Perk, LLC - Don & Michele Carlton? 985-237-0684

GA Lawrenceville, GA Muneeb Arif 770-826-2713

GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808

GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808

GA Columbus, GA P2 Brew, LLC - Paul Amos® 706-577-5808

GA Atlanta, GA Michael Adams 404-304-2013
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LA Ponchatoula, LA Beantown, LLC - Donna Miller 985-969-0104
LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
LA Baton Rouge, LA LA Roasters, LLC - Andrew Jones? 404-427-0366
LA Houma, LA JAG Investments, LLC - Andrew Jones® 404-427-0369
LA Walker, LA Walker Needs Coffee, LLC - Aubry Miller 504-234-0282
LA Lafayette, LA Allen & Julie Cummings® 985-778-3313
LA Lafayette, LA Allen & Julie Cummings® 985-778-3313
LA New Orleans, LA Ash Salem 504-655-8719
LA Baton Rouge, LA Al & Dina Perkins® 225-907-4370
LA Baton Rouge, LA Al & Dina Perkins® 225-907-4370
LA Lafayette, LA Home Grown Brands LA LLC 085-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA Home Grown Brands LA LLC 085-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA Home Grown Brands LA LLC 085-778-5494
LA Lafayette, LA Home Grown Brands LA LLC 085-778-5494
LA Baton Rouge, LA Quincee B. Roccaforte 504-915-1538
LA Slidell, LA Lakeshore Coffee, LL.C - Shane & Kelly Songy 504-628-7721
LA New Orleans, LA Crescent City Coffee, LLC - Stephanie Chamblis 504-354-8622
LA Monroe, LA Rookard Investment Group, LLC - Austin Rookard 318-282-1632
LA Lafayette, LA JK Bold Brew, LLC - Jolene Credeur? 337-258-1327
LA Lafayette, LA JK Bold Brew, LLC - Jolene Credeur? 337-258-1327
LA Lutcher, LA BBB Neighbors, LLC - Aaron Tregre 504-382-9993
LA Lake Charles, LA FAST Brew, LLC - Frank & Tiffany Wilson 225-773-0798
...
MD Bowie, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
MD Annapolis, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
MD College Park, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
MD Hyattsville, MD TMT Holding Co. - Michael Harris? 240-423-2328
..
MO Platte City, MO Dundee's Brew - Jill & Josh Nelson 816-383-4798




MS Hattiesburg, MS Paul Sanders and Brooke Stampley? 985-630-7162
MS Hattiesburg, MS Paul Sanders and Brooke Stampley? 985-630-7162
MS Ocean Springs, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Biloxi, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Gulfport, MS Coast Coffee, LLC - David LeBron? 228-229-0689
MS Brookhaven, MS John & Angela Lambert 601-695-2039
MS Meridian, MS Farheen Lala® 602-686-2635
MS Meridian, MS Farheen Lala® 602-686-2635
MS Jackson, MS John "Jack" Stanton? 504-858-5799
MS Jackson, MS John "Jack" Stanton? 504-858-5799
MS Ocean Springs, MS Ronnie Ali & Brianne Whitney 707-319-5068

NC Charlotte, NC Raheel & Asil Quershi 917-992-6611
NJ Watchung, NJ The Family Bean, LLC - Islam Badr 201-744-7962
NJ Montville, NJ Goran & Divna Popovski 973-342-5014

Nashville, TN

SC Rock Hill, SC Jeff Hateley 949-899-3835
SC Columbia, SC Lonnie Williams 804-381-5063

IGWT Coffee, LLC - JC Chavarria®

615-953-7997

Nashville, TN

IGWT Coffee, LLC - JC Chavarria®

615-953-7997
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19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 Houston, TX One Price Triton, LLC - Mike Price? 281-468-6004
19,4 San Antonio, TX Martin & Deborah Bomba? 210-287-9694
New Orleans Brew, LLC 160



X Austin, TX Martin & Deborah Bomba? 210-287-9694
X Spring, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
19,4 Houston, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
19,4 Houston, TX Paul Picard? 713-302-5251
X Dallas, TX Mark & Barbara Null 817-773-8310
19,4 Amarillo, TX Cathy & Joel Meyers 806-445-4139
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX HRK Management PJs1, LLC - Ridham Bhatt? 201-572-3365
X Dallas, TX Eight28 Enterprises, LLC - Brittany Willis 504-812-5642
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
19,4 Palmview, TX RREAL III, LLC - Aracely & Marcus Villarreal? 956-432-4228
X Dallas, TX Suliman Mukatren 469-371-0383
19,4 Grand Prairie, TX Kevyn's Joe, LLC - Mark Sheets 214-802-7061
X Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
19,4 Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
19,4 Dallas, TX Browning Hospitalities, LLC - Andrew Browning’ 214-995-2092
X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX JK Brews, LLC - Kim & James Stitzel® 703-209-0375
X Dallas, TX A Little Bit of Lagniappe, LLC - Donna Bush 504-915-5979
19,4 Houston, TX Space City Brew, LLC - Nate Brown? 317-384-6460
19,4 Houston, TX Space City Brew, LLC - Nate Brown? 317-384-6460
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 Houston, TX Aroma-TPIG, LLC - Yang Xu? 281-460-8349
19,4 San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344
19,4 San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344
D, ¢ San Angelo, TX R & H Coffee, LLC - Ryan & Heather Suiter? 432-235-2344
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VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi® 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Richmond, VA Venus, LLC - Shaq Qureshi? 703-868-6031
VA Fairfax, VA The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas® 760-473-8291
VA Fairfax, VA The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas® 760-473-8291
VA Fairfax, VA The Clerico Group, LLC - Mateo & Gabby Salas® 760-473-8291

LAST KNOWN
STATE FRANCHISEE LAST KNOWN ADDRESS TELEPHONE
Jun Da, LLC Kenner
LA Attn: Shuai (Sean) Wang 2240 Veterans Blvd. Kenner, LA 70062 04-305-0305
Irish Brew, LLC Clearview Mall
LA Attn: Brett Pearson 4436 Veterans Blvd., Ste. 8, Metairie, LA 70006 504-883-5516
INAR, LLC 61103 Airport Rd Suite 7
LA Attn: Barry Prendergast Slidell, LA 70460 285-847-9470
TR Group International Pte. 72 70, Le Thanh Ton (Vincom Mall B1)
VN Ltd. 84-8-382-6900
Attn: Rick Yvanovich Ho Chi Min City, District 1, Vietnam
Capcorn, LLC The Riverwalk
LA Attn: Richard Capdeboscq 500 Port of New Orleans Place, NOLA 70130 304-218-5698

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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EXHIBIT K

GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT

This General Release is entered into this day of , 20 by and between New
Orleans Brew, L.L.C., a Louisiana limited liability company d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans, located at:
4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana 70471 (“Franchisor”) and

(“Franchisee”) pursuant to the Franchise Agreement between such

parties.

Franchisee hereby acquits, releases, exonerates, covenants not to sue, and forever discharges Franchisor
of and from any and all past, present, and future claims, demands, losses, causes of action, damages,
costs, rights of reimbursement, loss of earnings, loss of services, and compensation whatsoever, which
Franchisee now has or may hereinafter accrue on account of or in any way growing out of the Franchise
Agreement or any association, relationship or rights relating thereto of resulting therefrom.

This General Release also applies to, and shall inure to the benefit of, Franchisor’s past, present, and
future directors, officers, shareholders, parent companies, agents, servants, employees, insurers,
subcontractors, subsidiaries, affiliates, partners, predecessors, successors, assigns, heirs, executors,
administrators, attorneys, and all other firms or corporations which any of the former have been, are now
or may hereafter be affiliated. This General Release is also binding upon Franchisee’s respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, assigns, and subrogees.

Franchisee agrees to assume full and sole responsibility for the payment and satisfaction of any and all
past, present, and future claims, liens and subrogation rights made or asserted by any third party
(including, but not limited to, governmental agencies). Franchisee further agrees to indemnify, protect,
defend, and save harmless Franchisor from all claims, liens and subrogation rights made or asserted by
any third party. It is Franchisee’s express intent that this General Release completely releases and
discharges Franchisor from all liability in connection with or arising out of the Franchise Agreement or
any association, relationship or rights relating thereto or resulting therefrom, including, but not limited to,
liability to any person, entity, or party for contribution, indemnity, or subrogation.

Franchisee represents and warrants that no other person or entity has, or has had, an interest in any claim
Franchisee may have against Franchisor, other than those specifically identified and released herein, and
that no other relative(s) of Franchisee is entitled to recovery against Franchisor under any theory of

recovery.

a:s Gftue day-of . s 2
FRANCHISEE(S): FRANCHISOR:
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
By: By:
Date: Name:
Title:
New Orleans Brew, LLC 163

Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/26262021 - Amended 4/21/2021




EXHIBIT L

PJ’S CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

This Contingent Assignment of Lease (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the date set forth
below by and among the following parties:

LESSOR: LESSEE:

FRANCHISOR: New Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a
PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans (hereinafter “PJ’s™)
4480 LA-22, Suite 2

Mandeville, Louisiana 70471 130 New-CameliaBoulevard,-Suite 100

)
( moton— A 70432
Ao ropos

Fati
SO VI g o, 127 7

RECITALS

WHEREAS, under the terms of the lease agreement entered into or intended to be entered into between
Lessor and Lessee, (“Lease Agreement”), Lessor has agreed to lease to Lessee certain premises (the
“Premises”) and PJ’s has accepted the Premises as a suitable location for Lessee’s PJ’s Unit, subject to
the terms and conditions set forth herein, located at the following street address:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and other good and
valuable consideration, including the acceptance by Franchisor of the Premises as a location for a PJ’s
Unit, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Notices. Lessor agrees to furnish Franchisor with copies of any and all letters and notices to
Lessee pertaining to any default by Lessee under the Lease at the same time and in the same manner as
any such notice is sent to Lessee. Lessee agrees to furnish Franchisor prompt written notice of any and all
amendments, waivers, extensions, renewals or other modifications to the Lease. All notices hereunder
shall be mailed or delivered to the addresses set forth above, unless changed from time to time by any
party through written notice mailed or delivered to the other parties.

2. Assignment. In the event of termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement or Lessee’s
default under the Lease, Lessee shall, at Franchisor’s option, assign to Franchisor any and all interest of
Lessee in the Lease, including any rights to renew the Lease or to sublease the Premises; and Lessor
hereby consents to such assignment, subject to the following conditions:

(a) Franchisor shall notify Lessee and Lessor in writing (the “Election Notice™) within thirty-
five (35) days after termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, or Franchisor’s receipt of any
notice of default by Lessee under the Lease, if Franchisor elects to accept assignment of the Lease. Upon
receipt of an Election Notice by Lessee and Lessor, Franchisor shall have the right as between Lessee and
Franchisor to the Premises. Upon receipt of an Election Notice by Lessee from Franchisor, Lessee hereby
grants, assigns, transfers and sets over to Franchisor all rights, title and interest in and to the Lease
Agreement and the Premises leased thereunder and hereby abandons any existing leasehold
improvements. Franchisor failure to accept assignment of the Lease upon any default of Lessee under the
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Lease which has been subsequently cured by Lessee shall not be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s future
right to accept such assignment in the event of any future default of Lessee;

(b) Lessee agrees to take any and all actions necessary under the Lease Agreement to effectuate
assignment of the Lease Agreement to Franchisor;

() Lessor agrees to the assignment of the Lease Agreement from Lessee to Franchisor upon
Lessor’s receipt of an Election Notice and agrees to take any and all present and/or future action
reasonably necessary to assist Franchisor, when and as requested, in effecting the assignment of the lease
to PJ’s; provided, however, that Lessor shall not be required to bear any expense thereof;

(d) If Franchisor elects to accept assignment of the Lease, Franchisor shall take possession of
the Premises as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than 30 days after receipt of the Election Notice
by Lessor, and Franchisor shall commence payment of rent and other customary and reasonable charges
under the Lease as of the date of receipt of the Election Notice by Lessor;

(e) If Franchisor elects to accept assignment of the Lease, it shall commence payment of rent
and any other charges due under the Lease retroactive to date of the giving of election notice. If, at the
time Landlord receives the election notice hereunder, there are any past due rents or other charges under
the Lease, Franchisor shall only be obliged to pay to Landlord the sum of one (1) month’s rent and other
charges in order to accept assignment of the Lease. Upon accepting same, Landlord shall be estopped and
precluded from holding Franchisor responsible for any past defaults of Tenant under the lease that predate
Landlord’s receipt of the election notice pursuant to this contingent assignment.

® Nothing herein shall affect Lessor’s right to require Lessee to remain liable as a guarantor
for the remaining term of the Lease, to recover from Lessee any and all amounts due under the Lease or to
exercise any rights of Lessor against Lessee as provided under the Lease.

3. Assignment to Third Party. At any time after receipt of the Election Notice by Lessor, Franchisor
may request to assign its lease, or sublease the Premises, to a third-party franchisee of Franchisor for the
purpose of continuing to operate the PJ’s Unit at the Premises. Lessor agrees not to unreasonably
withhold its consent to any such assignment or sublease and any such request shall be in accordance with
the terms of the lease relating to assignment/sublease.

4. Entry by Franchisor. Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has agreed under the Franchise Agreement
that Franchisor and its employees or agents shall have the right to enter the PJ’s Unit operated by Lessee
at the Premises at any reasonable time for the purpose of conducting inspections, protecting Franchisor
proprietary marks, and correcting deficiencies of Lessee. Lessor and Lessee hereby agree not to interfere
with or prevent such entry by Franchisor, its employees or agents.

5. De-Identification. Lessee acknowledges that in the event the Franchise Agreement expires or is
terminated, Lessee is obligated under the Franchise Agreement to take certain steps to de-identify the
location as a PJ’s Unit operated by Lessee. Lessor agrees to cooperate with Franchisor in allowing
Franchisor to de-identify the Premises, including allowing Franchisor, its employees and agents to enter
and remove signs, decor and materials bearing or displaying any marks, designs or logos of PJ’s;
provided, however, that Lessor shall not be required to bear any expense thereof. Lessee agrees that if
Lessee fails to de-identify the Premises promptly upon termination or expiration as required under the
Franchise Agreement, PJ’s may cause all required de-identification to be completed at Lessee’s expense.

6. General Provisions.
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(a) This Agreement shall run with the land and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and administrators. The rights and obligations herein contained shall
continue notwithstanding changes in the persons or entities that may hold any leasehold or ownership in
the land or building. Any party hereto may record this agreement or a memorandum hereof.

(b) Any party hereto may seek equitable relief, including without limitation injunctive relief
or specific performance, for actual or threatened violation or non-performance of this Agreement by any
other party. Such remedies shall be in addition to all other rights provided for under law or other
agreements between any of the parties. The prevailing party in any action shall be entitled to recover its
legal fees together with court costs and expenses of litigation.

(c) This Agreement is directed to a specific Lease Agreement set forth herein, but the Lessee,
Lessor and Franchisor agree that this Agreement is applicable to any extensions, renewals or other options
of Lessee with respect to the Lease Agreement and the Premises, as well as being applicable to any
subsequent lease agreements between Lessee and Lessor concerning the PJ’s Unit with respect to the
Premises.

(d) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall affect any term or condition in the Franchise
Agreement between Lessee and Franchisor. Nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a guaranty or
endorsement by Franchisor of the terms and conditions of the Lease between Lessor and Lessee. In the
event that Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines not to accept assignment of the Lease as permitted
hereunder, neither Lessor nor Lessee shall have any claims against Franchisor. No terms or conditions
contained in the Lease shall be binding on Franchisor s unless and until it elects to accept assignment of
the Lease hereunder.

WATNESSES: LESSOR:

BY:
Print Name:
Date:

WATNESSES: LESSEE:

BY:
Print Name:
Date:

WATNESSES: FRANCHISOR: NEW ORLEANS BREW,
LLC

BY:
Print Name:
Date:
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EXHIBIT M

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In recognition of the requirements of the California Franchise Investment Law, Cal. Corporations Code
Sections 31000 et seq. the Franchise Disclosure Document for NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC for use in
the State of California shall be amended as follows:

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

See the cover page of the Disclosure Document for our URL address. FRANCHISOR’S WEBSITE HAS
NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS
OVERSIGHT. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE
DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT AT
WWW.DBO.CA.GOV.

Item 3 of the FDD is supplemented to include the following:

Neither the franchisor, any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 8.78(a) et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in such association or exchange.

Item 17 of the FDD shall be supplemented to include the following:

You must sign a general release of claims if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations
Code Section 31512 provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person
acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order there
under is void. Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law
(California Corporations Code Section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations
Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043)).

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws and forum of Louisiana. These provisions may
not be enforceable under California law.

California Corporations Code, Section 31125 requires us to give you a Disclosure Document, approved
by the Department of Business Oversight prior to a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an
existing franchise.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee
concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

The franchise agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section
1671, certain liquidated damages are unenforceable.

The franchise agreement requires binding arbitration to occur at American Arbitration Association’s
office in New Orleans, Louisiana, with each party bearing its own costs (including, but not limited to,
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attorney's fees, expert witness fees, and other costs incurred in connection with arbitration). Prospective
franchisees are encouraged to consult with private legal counsel to determine the applicability of
California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a Franchise Agreement
restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of
federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section

1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a

forum outside the State of California.

If the franchise agreement requires waiver of compliance with California franchise law, that provision is
void.

The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A Sec. 101 ef seq.).

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the
franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO THE FDD AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF WASHINGTON.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD AND THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO THE FDD AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[llinois law governs the Franchise Agreement(s).

A Surety Bond has been obtained by Franchisor to assure its financial capability; the Bond is on
file with the Office of the Illinois Attorney General. This financial assurance requirement was imposed by
the Office of the Illinois Attorney General due to Franchisor's financial condition.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois

Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with
the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.
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Franchisor: New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

Franchisee:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

New Orleans Brew, LLC
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF INDIANA.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF INDIANA
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA

For franchises and franchisees subject to the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana Deceptive
Franchise Practices Law, the following information supersedes or supplements, as the case may be, the
corresponding disclosures in the main body of the text of the New Orleans Brew, LLC Franchise
Disclosure Document (“FDD”).

Item 8. Item 8 of the FDD is amended to include the following disclosure:

The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-1(4) prohibits provisions in a
franchise agreement subject to Indiana Law which allow the franchisor to obtain money, goods, services,
or any other benefit from any other with whom the franchisee does business, on account of, or in relation
to, the transaction between the franchisee and the other person, other than for compensation for services
rendered by the franchisor, unless the benefit is promptly accounted for, and transmitted to the franchisee.
To the extent that any provision of the Franchise Agreement conflicts with Indiana Law, Indiana Law will
control.

The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law (“Law”), Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-2(6) makes its unlawful for
any franchisor to obtain money, goods, services, or any other benefit for any other person with whom the
franchisee does business, on account of, or in relation to, the transaction between the franchisee and the
other person, other than compensation for services rendered by the franchisor, unless the benefit is
promptly accounted for, and transmitted to the franchisee. To the extent that any of New Orleans Brew,
LLC’s business practices conflicts with Indiana Law, Indiana Law will control.

Item 12. Item 12 of the disclosure document is amended to include the following disclosure:

Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-1(2) prohibits any provision in the Agreement which allows New Orleans Brew,
LLC to establish a franchisor-owned outlet engaged in a substantially identical business to that of the
franchised business within the exclusive territory. Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-2(4) prohibits any franchisor who
has entered into any franchise agreement with a franchisee who is either a resident of Indiana or a
nonresident operating a franchise in Indiana from establishing a franchisor-owned outlet engaged in a
substantially identical business to that of the franchised business within the territory. To the extent that
any provision of the Franchise Agreement or New Orleans Brew, LLC’s business practices conflict with
Indiana law, Indiana law will control.

Item 17. Item 17 of the disclosure document is amended to include the following disclosure:

Indiana prohibits the franchisor from requiring its franchisees to prospectively assent to a release,
assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppels which purports to relieve any person from liability.

To the extent that you are required to execute a release in favor of New Orleans Brew LLC, such release
shall exclude liabilities arising under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law, Ind. Code §23-2-
2.7-1.

Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-2(3) makes it unlawful for a franchisor to deny the surviving spouse, heirs, or estate
of a deceased franchisee the opportunity to participate in ownership of the franchise under a valid
franchise agreement for a reasonable time after the death of the franchisee, provided that the surviving
spouse, heirs or estate maintains all standards and obligations of the franchise. To the extent that the
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Franchise Agreement requires a surviving spouse, heirs, or an estate representative to assume liability
under the Franchise Agreement and to complete training, the Franchise Agreement has been amended in
accordance with Indiana law to provide that all such conditions must be met within 6 months of the
franchisee’s date of death.

Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-1(10) prohibits any provision in the Agreement which limits litigation brought for
breach of the Franchise Agreement in any manner whatsoever. To the extent that any provision of the
Franchise Agreement conflicts with Indiana law, Indiana law will control.

The choice of law provision contained in the Franchise Agreement should not be considered a waiver of
any right conferred upon you by the provisions of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law or the Indiana
Deceptive Franchise Practices law with respect to the offer and sale of a franchise and the franchise
relationship. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Franchise Agreement shall
be governed by the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law Ind. Code §23-2-2.5 and the Indiana Deceptive
Franchise Practices Law Ind. Code §23-2-2.7.

Indiana franchisees are allowed access to Indiana courts. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement
which designates jurisdiction or venue or requires the franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue in a
forum outside of Indiana with respect to any matter governed by the Indiana Deceptive Franchise
Practices Law and Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law is void.

The post term covenant not to compete is limited to your non-exclusive area under the Franchise
Agreement pursuant to Ind. Code §23-2-2.7-1(9).
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD>)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF MARYLAND.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND
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AMENDMENT TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

This Amendment shall apply to residents of this State and franchises to be located in the State of
Maryland and shall be for the purpose of complying with Maryland statutes and regulations.
Notwithstanding anything which may be contained in the body of the Franchise Agreement to the
contrary, the Franchise Agreement shall be amended as follows:

1. Franchisor has obtained a Franchisor Surety Bond with the Gray Casualty & Surety Company.
The Franchisor Surety Bond shall remain in full force and effect until any franchisees signed are opened.

2. Any general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, assignment and/or transfer shall not
apply to any release from liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Article
13 of the Franchise Agreement is amended accordingly.

3. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which terminates the Franchise Agreement upon the
bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be enforceable under Title 11, United States Code Section 101.

4. A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be
brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.

6. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of

liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

SIGNATUREPAGE TOFOEEOWDated this————dayef——— 20—

Franchisor: New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.

By:
Print Name:
Title:
Date:

Franchisee:

By:
Print Name:
Title:
Date:
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

This Addendum shall apply to residents of this State and franchises to be located in the State of Maryland.
For franchises and franchisees subject to the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, the
following information replaces or supplements, as the case may be, the corresponding disclosures in the
main body of the text of the New Orleans Brew, LLC Franchise Disclosure Document:

Item 5

Franchisor has obtained a Franchisor Surety Bond with the Gray Casualty & Surety Company. The
Franchisor Surety Bond shall remain in full force and effect until any franchisees signed are opened.

Item 17

The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to
any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

Termination of the franchise agreement upon bankruptcy of the franchisee may not be enforceable under
federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 ef seq.).

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. The franchisee disclosure acknowledgement
statement is hereby amended.
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF MICHIGAN.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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MICHIGAN DISCLOSURE NOTICE PURSUANT TO MCL 445.1508

The State of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise
documents. If any of the following provisions are in the franchise documents, the provisions are
void and cannot be enforced against you.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating
to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel
which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a
franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a
reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating
the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have
no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies
only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than five (5) years, and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area
subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six (6) months
advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at
a location outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise,
except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal

to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
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(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or
to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a
right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that
grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such
assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure
the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made
for providing the required contractual services.

The fact that the Notice of Intent is on file with the attorney general in Michigan does not
constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general of the franchise
offering.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

Michigan Department of Attorney General
G. Mennen Williams Building, 7" Floor
525 W. Ottawa St.

P.O. Box 30212

Lansing, MI 48909

Telephone: (517) 373-1110
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD>)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.
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THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD

New Orleans Brew, LLC 187
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/20202021 - Amended 4/21/2021




NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. AMENDMENT TO NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRED
BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

2. ADDENDUM TO NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

New Orleans Brew, LLC 188
Franchise Disclosure Document 4/946/26262021 - Amended 4/21/2021




AMENDMENT TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

This Amendment shall pertain to those franchises sold in the State of Minnesota and shall be for the
purpose of complying with Minnesota statutes and regulations. Notwithstanding anything which may be
contained in the body of the Franchise Agreement to the contrary, the Franchise Agreement shall be
amended as follows:

The Minnesota Department of Commerce requires that we indemnify Minnesota franchisees against
liability to third parties resulting from claims by third parties that their use of our Marks infringes upon
the trademark rights of the third party. We will not indemnify any franchisee against the consequences of
their use of our Marks except in accordance with the requirements of the Franchise Agreement, and as the
condition to an indemnification, the franchisee must provide notice to us of any such claim immediately
and tender the defense of the claim to us. If we accept tender of defense, we have the right to manage the
defense of the claim, including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, or to
determine whether to appeal a final determination of the claim.

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400] prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted
outside of Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document shall abrogate or reduce any of
your rights as provided for in Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, New Orleans Brew, LLC will comply with
Minnesota Statute Section 80C.14. Subd. 3 — 5, which requires (except in certain specified cases) (1) that
a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-
renewal of the Franchise Agreement.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation,
or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute §§ 80C.01 - 80C.22.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J, among other things, prohibits us from requiring you to waive your rights to a
jury trial or to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties, or judgment notes.

Franchisee’s Initials/ Date Franchisor’s Initials/Date
Date: Date:
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

For franchises and franchisees subject to the Minnesota Franchise Act, the following information
supersedes or supplements, as the case may be, the corresponding disclosures in the main body of the text
of the New Orleans Brew, LLC Franchise Disclosure Document.

Item 13

The Minnesota Department of Commerce requires that we indemnify Minnesota franchisees against
liability to third parties resulting from claims by third parties that their use of our Marks infringes upon
the trademark rights of the third party. We will not indemnify any franchisee against the consequences of
their use of our Marks except in accordance with the requirements of the Franchise Agreement, and as the
condition to an indemnification, the franchisee must provide notice to us of any such claim immediately
and tender the defense of the claim to us. If we accept tender of defense, we have the right to manage the
defense of the claim, including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, or to
determine whether to appeal a final determination of the claim.

Item 17

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400] prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted
outside of Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document shall abrogate or reduce any of
your rights as provided for in Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, New Orleans Brew, LLC will comply with
Minnesota Statute Section 80C.14. Subd. 3 — 5, which requires (except in certain specified cases) (1) that
a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-
renewal of the Franchise Agreement.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation,
or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute §§ 80C.01 - 80C.22.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J, among other things, prohibits us from requiring you to waive your rights to a
jury trial or to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties, or judgment notes.
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF NEW YORK.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FDD CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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STATEMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED
IN THE PROSPECTUS. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING
PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH
ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS PROSPECTUS.
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK

L. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SOURCES OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND
NYS DEPARTMENT OF LAW, INVESTOR PROTECTION BUREAU, 28 LIBERTY
STREET, 215" FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10005.

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE
FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS
FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in
Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable
civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business,
which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial
condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or,
within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a
civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law;

fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or
deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust,
trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding
brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
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association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or
is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business
activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without
limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of Item 4:

Neither the franchisor, its affiliate, its predecessor, officers, or general partner during the 10-year
period immediately before the date of the offering circular: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against
it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its
debts under the bankruptcy code; or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a general partner
in a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after that officer or general partner of the franchisor
held this position in the company or partnership.

The following is added to the end of Item 5:

The initial franchise fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and will be used as such in
our discretion.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State
of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be
satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

7. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(j), titled “Assignment of
contract by franchisor”:
However, no assignment will be made except to an assignee who in good faith and judgment of
the franchisor, is willing and financially able to assume the franchisor’s obligations under the
Franchise Agreement.

8. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of
forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:
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The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon
the franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the
State of New York.
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD”)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF WASHINGTON.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.

L

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MUST BE
REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FDD
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180 which may supersede the franchise agreement in
your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.
There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in the
state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by
the arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as
those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights
or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

Dated thic davof 20

altva uarnrs uu)‘ \v s \v4

New Orleans Brew, LLC Prospective Franchisee
Date:
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NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD>)
CONTAINS INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BOTH THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE STATE OF WISCONSIN.
THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION
REQUIRED EXCLUSIVELY BY THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
AND IS BEING PROVIDED TO YOU AT THE SAME TIME AS THE FDD.
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AMENDMENT TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

This Amendment shall pertain to franchises sold in the State of Wisconsin and shall be for the purpose of
complying with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law. Notwithstanding anything which may be contained
in the body of the Franchise Agreement to be contrary, the Agreement shall be amended as follows:

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law (Wis. Stats. Ch. 135, et seq.) supersedes any provisions of this
Agreement or a related document between Franchisor and Franchisee inconsistent with the Law.

Franchisee’s Initials/Date Franchisor’s Initials/Date
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ADDENDUM TO
NEW ORLEANS BREW, LL.C FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

For franchises and Franchisees subject to the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the following information
supersedes or supplements, as the case may be, the corresponding disclosures in the main body of the text
of the New Orleans Brew, LLC’s Wisconsin Franchise Disclosure Document.

Item 17

For Wisconsin Franchisees, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law (Wis. Stats., Ch. 135, ef seq.) supersedes
any provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract between Franchisor and Franchisee
inconsistent with the Law.
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EXHIBIT N
MULTI-UNIT OPTION AGREEMENT

This Multi-Unit Option Agreement (“Agreement”) made this day of
20 (“Effective Date”), by and between New Orleans Brew, LLC, a a Louisiana limited 11ab111ty
company d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans located at 4480 LA- 22 Suite 2, Mandeville, Louisiana
70471180 Ne amellia Heva § ARe : (“Franchisor”), and
with a ma1hng address of:
(the “Franchisee”):

Background

A. Franchisee and the Franchisor have entered into a Franchise Agreement (“Franchise
Agreement”) for the right to establish and operate one (1) PJ’s Unit, and Franchisee has paid
Franchisor the Initial Franchise Fee of $

B. Franchisor offers qualified franchisees the right and optlon to establish and operate
additional PJ’s Units during the term of the option period (defined below) and otherwise upon
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

C. Franchisee wishes to purchase an option to establish and operate additional PJ’s Units under
the terms and conditions set forth herein.

D. Franchisor wishes to grant Franchisee the right to purchase the option to establish and
operate additional PJ’s Units under the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

Agreement

1. Grant of Option and Option Fee. In consideration of Franchisee’s payment to Franchisor the

sum of (“Option Fee”), which is due and payable upon
Franchisee’s execution of this Agreement, Franchisor grants Franchisee the option to establish and
operate additional PJ’s Unit(s) under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement (the “Option”). This Option Fee is deemed fully earned upon payment and is
nonrefundable.

2. Eligibility. Franchisee shall be an existing, qualified Franchisee in good standing with the
Franchisor.

3. Term. Subject to any right of earlier termination as provided for herein, Franchisee shall be granted
the Option for a term of no longer than years, subject to the conditions herein
(“Term”). The Term shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate immediately upon the
occurrence of any of the following events (1) Franchisee’s execution of the Franchise Agreement to
establish and operate a PJ’s Unit in the Development Area; or (2)
years from the Effective Date of this Agreement, whichever should first occur.

4. Option Period. Franchisee shall not execute a lease for any additional PJ’s Unit(s) prior to exercising
Franchisee’s option, pursuant to Section 6 below. Franchisee shall establish and operate PJ’s Units in
accordance with the Development Schedule (Exhibit B) within the Development Area (Exhibit A).

4.1. For purposes of determining compliance with the Development Schedule, only the PJ’s Units
actually open or in active stages of development, including site selection, as of the last day of the
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Option Period will be counted toward the number of PJ’s Units required to be open and
continuously operating for the applicable period.

4.2. Franchisee acknowledges and recognizes that the Development Schedule is fair and reasonable for
the development of PJ’s Units in the Development Area and is an accurate reflection of market
demand without over saturation of Franchisor’s proprietary services offered under the System. If
Franchisee fails to establish and open PJ’s Units as set forth in the Development Schedule,
Franchisee no longer has an option for those additional PJ’s Units for which Franchisee has not
opened, unless Franchisee requests an extension of the Option Period in writing which will be
approved at Franchisor’s sole discretion.

5. Development Area. Franchisee shall have the right to develop PJ’s Units in accordance with
Development Schedule within the Development Area defined on Exhibit A, pursuant to the terms
and conditions defined in this Agreement.

5.1.Franchisee acknowledges that during the Term of this Agreement, Franchisor may award and
develop Traditional PJ’s Units within the Development Area. “Traditional PJ’s Units” are
defined as PJ’s Units located within free-standing buildings, strip malls, multi-tenant
developments, or the like, which feature street-level storefront entrances.

5.2.Franchisee acknowledges that during the Term of this Agreement, Franchisor may award and
develop Non-traditional PJ’s Units within the Development Area. “Non-traditional PJ’s Units”
include, without limitation, PJ’s Units located within (1) military bases or government facilities;
(2) public transportation facilities; (3) sports facilities or arenas, including race tracks; (4) student
unions or other similar buildings on college or university campuses; (5) amusement and theme
parks; (6) community and special events; (7) hotels, casinos, and resorts; (8) airports; (9) hospitals;
(10) shopping malls; or (11) corporate dining facilities. “Non-traditional PJ’s Units” may or may
not be established and operated pursuant to a franchise agreement. Franchisee acknowledges
that Franchisor may perform this act freely and without paying Franchisee any compensation.

5.2.1. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee and Franchisor acknowledge that should an
opportunity be presented for Franchisee to establish and operate a Non-traditional PJ’s
Unit within the Development Area, Franchisee may do so pursuant to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

5.2.2. Franchisee acknowledges that although Franchisor may offer Franchisee the
opportunity to establish and operate the Non-traditional PJ’s Unit, the owner/operator
of the facility that houses the Non-traditional PJ’s Unit may reserve the right to approve
Franchisee. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee indemnifies and holds
Franchisor harmless as it relates to any acceptance or rejection of Franchisee by the
owner/operator of the facility that houses the Non-traditional PJ’s Unit. Franchisee
acknowledges that Franchisor is not responsible for any actions performed by or
decisions of any such third party and Franchisee is not entitled to any compensation
related hereto.

5.2.3. Franchisee further acknowledges that a Non-traditional PJ’s Unit may be established
and operated by the institution or entity where the Non-traditional PJ’s Unit is located
(e.g. the military base where the Non-traditional PJ’s Unit is located), or it may be
established by the institution/entity and operated by a third party, or some other non-
traditional arrangement. In any such event, Franchisee shall have no right to establish
and operate such a Non-traditional PJ’s Unit. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor
may perform this act freely and without paying Franchisee any compensation.
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5.3. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has the exclusive right to offer, sell or distribute any
products or services associated with the System (now or in the future) under the Marks or any
other trademarks, service marks or trade names or through any distribution channel or method,
all without paying Franchisee any compensation. The distribution channels or methods
include, without limitation, grocery stores, club stores, convenience stores, wholesale,
business or industry locations (e.g. manufacturing site, office building), military installations,
military commissaries, or the internet, including but not limited to sales through Franchisor’s
website(s).

5.4. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and our affiliates have the right
to grant other franchises or develop and operate company or affiliate-owned PJ’s Units at any
location anywhere outside of the Development Area. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor
may perform this act freely and without paying Franchisee any compensation.

6. Exercise of Option. In order to exercise the Option for each additional PJ’s Unit, Franchisee must
satisfy all of the following conditions, upon the exercise of each Option:

6.1. Execute a new and then-current franchise agreement ("Additional Franchise Agreement(s)") for
each Additional PJ’s Units, subject to the terms and conditions thereof;

6.2. Franchisee is notin defaultunder this Agreement, or any other agreement with Franchisor and/or
its affiliates, including any other franchise agreement or development agreement, and has fully
and faithfully performed all of Franchisee’s material obligations under any such agreements
throughout their respective terms;

6.3. Neither this Agreement, Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with you
has expired or been terminated by Franchisor and/or its affiliate;

6.4. Franchisee has timely paid any fees or other monies due to Franchisor as and when they become
due under the terms of the Franchise Agreement(s) or any other agreement with Franchisor,
including interest or principal due under any note payable to Franchisor;

6.5. There has been no change in the effective control of Franchisee (by way of change in
share ownership, membership or partnership interest, or otherwise) without Franchisor’s
written consent; and

6.6. Franchisee or Franchisees designated manager has successfully completed Franchisor’s
required training programs.

Franchisee’s Option may be applied only to opening a new PJ’s Unit and may not be applied to
already existing locations.

7. Termination; Default.

7.1. If Franchisee is placed in default for any reason, Franchisor may, at its option, and without
waiving any rights hereunder or any other rights available at law or in equity, including its
rights to damages, terminate this Agreement and all of Franchisee’s rights hereunder
effectively immediately upon the date Franchisor gives written notice of termination or upon
such other date as may be set forth in such notice of termination or in those instances set forth
below, automatically upon the occurrence of, or the lapse of the specified period following an
event of default. From the date of such termination or expiration of this Agreement,
Franchisee shall have no rights under this Agreement and shall have no rights to operate in
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the Development Area.

7.2. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute an event of default
and grounds for termination of this Agreement by Franchisor:

7.2.1. If Franchisee fails to open or cause to be open a PJ’s Unit pursuant to the Development
Schedule as set forth in Exhibit B;

7.2.2. If Franchisee makes, or has made, any materially false statement report to Franchisor
in connection with this Agreement, or any other agreement;

7.2.3. If Franchise receives from Franchisor two (2) or more notices to cure under the
Franchise Agreement during any twelve (12) month period;

7.2.4. If Franchisee violates any covenant of confidentiality or non-disclosure under the
Franchise Agreement;

7.2.5. If Franchisee or any person owning an interest in Franchisee is tried or convicted of a
felony; or

7.2.6. If Franchisee or any person owning an interest in Franchisee files for bankruptcy
protection in any court of competent jurisdiction.

8. Post-Termination Rights, Obligations and Covenants. Franchisee shall not, in any
communication to any other representative or third party, disparage Franchisor or interfere with
any contract to which Franchisor is a party.

9. Sale or Assignment. Franchisee’s rights under this Agreement are personal and any right granted
herein may not be sold, transferred, or assigned. Notwithstanding, if Franchisee is an individual or a
partnership, Franchisee has the right to assign Franchisee’s rights under this Agreement to a corporation
or limited liability company upon the same terms and conditions as provided in Section 13.1 (vi) of the
Franchise Agreement. Franchisor has the right to assign this Agreement in whole or in part in its sole
discretion.

10. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to any time fixed for performance of
any requirement set forth in this Agreement.

11. Acknowledgment. Franchisee acknowledges that this Agreement is not a franchise agreement and
does not confer upon you any rights to use the Franchisor Proprietary Marks or the System.
Franchisee has no right under this Agreement to sublicense or subfranchise others to operate a
business or store or use the System or the Marks.

12. Notices. All notices, requests and reports to be given under this Agreement are to be in writing,
and delivered by either hand, e-mail with a confirming receipt, overnight mail, or certified mail,
return receipt requested, prepaid, to the addresses set forth above (which may be changed by
written notice).

13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in the State of Louisiana
and shall be construed according to the laws of Louisiana without regard to its conflict of laws,
La. CC Arts. 3515 et seq., and any amendments and/or revisions thereto.

14. Dispute Resolution. All claims and disputes arising under or relating to this Agreement are to be settled
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

by binding arbitration in the state of Louisiana or another location mutually agreeable to the parties.
The arbitration shall be conducted on a confidential basis pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules
of the American Arbitration Association. Any decision or award as a result of any such arbitration
proceeding shall be in writing and shall provide an explanation for all conclusions of law and fact. Any
such arbitration shall be conducted by an arbitrator experienced in franchise law and shall include a
written record of the arbitration hearing. The parties reserve the right to object to any individual who
shall be employed by or affiliated with a competing organization or entity. An award of arbitration may
be confirmed in a court of competent jurisdiction. This franchise agreement provides that disputes are
resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is unfair or deceptive
practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of
the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether
this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

The terms of this Section 14 shall survive termination, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement.

Third Party Beneficiaries. Franchisor’s officers, directors, shareholders, agents, employees
and/or affiliates are express third party beneficiaries of this Agreement and the mediation and
arbitration provisions contained herein, each having authority to specifically enforce the right to
mediate and arbitrate claims asserted against such person(s) by Franchisee.

Injunctive Relief. Nothing contained in this Agreement herein shall prevent Franchisor from
applying to or obtaining from any court having jurisdiction, without bond, a writ ofattachment,
temporary injunction, preliminary injunction and/or other emergency relief available to safeguard
and protect Franchisor's interest prior to the filing of any arbitration proceeding or pending the trial
or handing down of a decision or award pursuant to any arbitration proceeding conducted
hereunder.

Jurisdiction and Venue. With respect to any proceeding not subject to arbitration, the parties agree
that any action at law or in equity instituted against either party to this Agreement shall be
commenced only in the 22nd Judicial District for the Parish of St. Tammany, Louisiana or the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana at Franchisor’s discretion.

Jury Trial Waiver. With respect to any proceeding not subject to arbitration, the parties
hereby agree to waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim, whether at law or
equity, regardless of which party brings suit. This waiver shall apply to any matter whatsoever
between the parties hereto which arises out of or is related in any way to this Agreement, the
performance of either party, and/or Franchisee’s purchase from Franchisor of the franchise, option
and/or any goods or services.

Waiver of Punitive Damages. Franchisee waives to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right
to or claim for any punitive, exemplary, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages
(including, without limitation, lost profits) which Franchisee may have against Franchisor, its
affiliates, successors or assigns, arising out of any cause whatsoever (whether such cause be based
in contract, negligence, strict liability, other tort or otherwise) and agree that in the event of a dispute,
recovery shall be limited to actual damages. If any other term of this Agreement is found or
determined to be unconscionable or unenforceable for any reason, the foregoing provisions shall
continue in full force and effect, including, without limitation, the waiver of any right to claim any
consequential damages.

Class Action Waiver. Franchisee hereby agrees to waive any class action proceeding or
counterclaim against Franchisor, its affiliates, successors or assigns, whether at law or equity,
regardless of which party brings suit. This waiver shall apply to any matter whatsoever
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

between the parties hereto which arises out of or is related in any way to this Agreement, the
performance of either party, and/or Franchisee’s purchase from Franchisor, its affiliates,
successors or assigns of the franchise and/or any goods or services.

Attorneys’ Fees. If either party institutes any judicial or arbitration proceeding to enforce any
monetary or non-monetary obligation or interpret the terms of this Agreement, each party will
bear its own attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with any judicial or arbitration proceeding.

Non-waiver. Franchisor’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
Agreement shall not be a waiver of Franchisor's right to do so, any law, custom, usage or rule to
the contrary notwithstanding. Delay or omission by Franchisor respecting any breach or default
shall not affect Franchisor's rights respecting any subsequent breaches or defaults. All rights and
remedies granted in this Agreement shall be cumulative. Franchisor's election to exercise any
remedy available by law or contract shall not be deemed a waiver or preclude exercise of any other
remedy.

Severability. The parties agree that if any provisions of this Agreement may be construed in two
ways, one of which would render the provision illegal or otherwise voidable or unenforceable and
the other which would render it valid and enforceable, such provision shall have the meaning,
which renders it valid and enforceable. The language of all provisions of this Agreement shall be
construed according to fair meaning and not strictly construed against either party. The provisions
of this Agreement are severable, and this Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced as if all
completely invalid or unenforceable provisions were not contained herein, and partially valid
and enforceable provisions shall be enforced to the extent that they are valid and enforceable. [f any
material provision of this Agreement shall be stricken or declared invalid, the parties agree to
negotiate mutually acceptable substitute provisions. In the event that the parties are unable to agree
upon such provisions, Franchisor reserves the right to terminate this Agreement.

Construction of Language. Any term defined in the Franchise Agreement which is not defined
in this Agreement will be ascribed the meaning given to it in the Franchise Agreement. The
language of this Agreement will be construed according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for
or against either party. All words in this Agreement refer to whatever number or gender the
context requires. If more than one party or person is referred to as you, their obligations and
liabilities must be joint and several. Headings are for reference purposes and do not control
interpretation.

Successors. References to "Franchisor" or "Franchisee" include the respective parties' successors,
assigns or transferees, subject to the limitations of Section 6 of this Agreement.

Additional Documentation. Franchisee must from time to time, subsequent to the date first set forth
above, at Franchisor’s request and without further consideration, execute and deliver such other
documentation or agreement and take such other action as Franchisor may reasonably require in
order to effectuate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement. In the event that Franchisee
fails to comply with the provisions of this Section, Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor as
Franchisee’s attorney-in-fact to execute any and all documents on Franchisee’s behalf, reasonably
necessary to effectuate the transactions contemplated herein.

No Right to Offset. Franchisee may not withhold all or any part of any payment to Franchisor or
any of its affiliates on the grounds of the alleged nonperformance of Franchisor or any of its
affiliates or as an offset against any amount Franchisor or any of its affiliates may owe or allegedly
owe you under this Agreement or any related agreements.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties concerning
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the purchase and operation of additional PJ’s Units; no promises, inducements or
representations (other than those in the Franchise Disclosure Document) have been made, nor shall
any be of any force or effect, or binding on the parties. Nothing in this or any related agreement,
however, is intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the franchise disclosure
document that Franchisor furnished the franchisee. Modifications of this Agreement must be in
writing and signed by both parties. Franchisor reserves the right to change Franchisor's policies,
procedures, standards, specifications or manuals at Franchisor's discretion. In the event of a
conflict between this Agreement and any Additional Franchise Agreement(s), the terms,

conditions and intent of this Agreement shall control.

IN-WITNESS-WHEREOF,AND THEREFORE, INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND
HEREBY,THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED
EFFECTIVE THE DATE FIRST SET FORTH ABOVE.

WITNESSES:— FRANCHISEE:
Print Name: Name:
Date:
FRANCHISOR:

NEW ORLEANS BREW, LLC

Print Name:—— Print Name:
Title:

Print Name
Date:

MULTI-UNIT OPTION AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT A

DEVELOPMENT AREA

The Development Area referred to in this Agreement shall be the geographic area described as
follows:
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The Development Area is defined as

FRANCHISEE:
Name:
MULTI-UNIT OPTION AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT B
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE
New Orleans Brew, LLC 211
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Minimum Number of PJ’s Cumulative Number of PJ’s
Onption Period Units to be opened during Units Operational at the end of
ption Fero the Option Period Term the Option Period Term
Effective Date 0 0
Within 12 months of Effective Date
Within 24 months of Effective Date
Within 36 months of Effective Date
Within 48 months of Effective Date
Within 60 months of Effective Date
FRANCHISEE:
Name:
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state,
or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, [llinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.
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This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered,
or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

STATE EFFECTIVE DATE

California PendingMay 26,2020

Ilinois Pendingiuby 22020

Indiana PendingFuby 72020

Maryland PendingSeptember 25,2020
Michigan PendingFuby24,2020

Minnesota PendingFuby 16,2020

New York PendingOetober 26,2020

Virginia Pendingfune 23,2020

Wisconsin April 21, 202 1PendingApri- 21,2620

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those
that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.
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EXHIBIT O
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If New Orleans Brew, LL.C d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans offers you a franchise, New Orleans Brew,
LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans must provide this Disclosure Document to you fourteen (14)
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement or make payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale.

However, New York law requires New Orleans Brew, LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans to provide
the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting held to discuss the
franchise sale or ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Franchisor does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency
identified in Exhibit H.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is as follows:

Ryan Stansbury, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-CameliaBoulevard,-Suite 100;

Covington, LA-70433, (985) 792-58995776
David Mesa, Jr., 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-CamelliaBoulevard,-Suite 100

Covington, LA-70433, (985) 792-5776
Victoria Bermond, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471, (985) 792-5776

The issuance date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 89, 26262021 as amended April 21,
2021.

We authorize the respective agents identified in Exhibit E to receive service of process for us in the
particular states.

I received a Disclosure Document from New Orleans Brew, LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans dated
April 189, 26202021 as amended April 21, 2021, that included the following Exhibits:

Franchise Agreement

Confidentiality and Nondisclosure Agreement
Guaranty Agreement

Direct Debit Authorization Form

Agents for Service of Process

Financial Statements

Manuals— Table of Contents

State Administrators

Franchise Disclosure Acknowledgment Statement
List of Existing Franchisees and Franchisees How Have Left the System
General Release

Contingent Assignment of Lease

FARSCEOTEUO®ER
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M. State Specific Addenda
N. Multi-Unit Option Agreement
0. Receipts
SIGNATUREPAGETOFOELOW-

Dated: PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:
If a corporation or LLC: If an individual:
(Name of corporation or LLC) (Signature)
By:

(Print Name)
Its
(Title)

(Signature)
(Print Name) (Print Name)
(Signature)
(Print Name)

Address of corporation, LLC, or individual(s):

You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans at 4480 LA-22. Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-Camelia

Boulevard,-Suite 100,-Covington; EA70433, or by faxing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to New
Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans at (985) 792-1201.

YOUR COPY- RETAIN FOR YOUR FILES
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If New Orleans Brew, LL.C d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans offers you a franchise, New Orleans Brew,
LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans must provide this Disclosure Document to you fourteen (14)
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement or make payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale.

However, New York law requires New Orleans Brew, LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans to provide
the Franchise Disclosure Document to you at the earlier of the first meeting held to discuss the franchise
sale or ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of
any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Franchisor does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency
identified in Exhibit H.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is as follows:

Ryan Stansbury, 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-CameliaBoulevard,-Suite 100;

Covington, LA-70433, (985) 792-58995776
David Mesa, Jr., 4480 LA-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-CamelliaBoulevard,-Suite 100

Covington, LA-70433, (985) 792-5776
Victoria Bermond, 4480 L. A-22, Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471, (985) 792-5776

The issuance date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 89, 26262021 as amended April 21,
2021.

We authorize the respective agents identified in Exhibit E to receive service of process for us in the
particular states.

I received a Disclosure Document from New Orleans Brew, LLC d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans dated
April 189, 26202021 as amended April 21, 2021, that included the following Exhibits:

Franchise Agreement

Confidentiality and Nondisclosure Agreement
Guaranty Agreement

Direct Debit Authorization Form

Agents for Service of Process

Financial Statements

Manuals— Table of Contents

State Administrators

Franchise Disclosure Acknowledgment Statement
List of Existing Franchisees and Franchisees How Have Left the System
General Release

Contingent Assignment of Lease

FARSCEOTEUO®ER
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M. State Specific Addenda
N. Multi-Unit Option Agreement
0. Receipts
SIGNATUREPAGETOFOELOW-

Dated: PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:
If a corporation or LLC: If an individual:
(Name of corporation or LLC) (Signature)
By:

(Print Name)
Its
(Title)

(Signature)
(Print Name) (Print Name)
(Signature)
(Print Name)

Address of corporation, LLC, or individual(s):

You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to New Orleans Brew, L.L.C.
d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans at 4480 LA-22. Suite 2, Mandeville, LA 70471180 New-Camelia

Boulevard,-Suite 100,-Covington; EA70433, or by faxing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to New
Orleans Brew, L.L.C. d/b/a PJ’s Coffee of New Orleans at (985) 792-1201.

FRANCHISOR COPY -
PLEASE RETURN TO FRANCHISOR
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